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1 for their final cost proposal,
2 At that point Whiting Turner would alsoc have
3 a major input and provide their selection to ForestCity
4 for approval. And at that time we would review the
5 final packages and make, you know, and say that is the
6 contractor.
7 Q. That is a very owner-involved process.
8 A ForestCity is a general contractor. We got é
9 away from it years ago because development goes up and
10 down. But we are a very hands-on group and we do
11 understand construction. And we have done it
12 ourselves. 8o, you know, we pride ourselves on, you
13 know, producing quality projects on time and on budget,
14 or that are under budget, which this project was undex H
i5 budget. g
16 0. Oh, really? I wasn't aware cof that. i
17 So you were involved in obvicusly with the-
.18 selection of Mojave —-
19 A. Yes.
20 Q. -—- as a subcontractor? .
21 A, Along with other ForestCity entities -~ or
22 personnel . .
23 Q. Okay. BAnd do you go any further down the —- j
24 A. No. H
25 Q. -— subtier?
e R e
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And when it comes to, I guess, management of
payments, are you -— 1is the owner involved in managing
payments to subcentractors?

A. No.

Q. So would you only then be approving payments
t£o Whiting Turner, or how did the whole payment process
work?

A. ' The payment process was also pretty detailed.
It was detailed in development agreement of how it
would be done. Once a month all the subecontractors
would provide Whiting Turner with their billing
information. I would review all the detail of Mojave's
billing per se. Because it's billed on a percentage of
completion, I would say yes or no, or this area is not
what he is billing for or whatever; we would make
corrections.

At that point, when that was correctsd, we
would sit down with the City staff and walk the
project. They would also review the completion
percentages, as well as the architect at the same time.
When that was -- when everybody agreed to that package,
then we would —- it would be signed by the architect.

I would send that package to Cleveland, where the
executive vice president was required to initial off to

make sure, which he understocd that I went through it
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pretty thoroughly.

And then the invoice would at that point be

put together -- that billing would be put together with

our invoice, for our fees and architectural fees or any

other fees we would have a combined invoice of

everyone's. That would be submitted to the City. The

City had a five-person signoff of that invoice.

At that time it would be sent to the trustee

for the project, which is I believe Bank of America.

They would at that time wire transfer funds to Whiting

Turner for their billing. They would wire transfer

ForestCity, which in turn we would wire transfer to our

third-party consultants.
0. And that happened every month?

A. Every month.

Q. Wow. 8o how long would that process take for

the approval of a billing?

A. We were required to do that within ten days

in the development agreement. The City had ~- as soon

as we completed our process, the City had ten days to

do it. We were following under the State statute of I

believe 45 days, which we always met.
0. Wow. So I guess just to backtrack a tiny
bit, how exactly did the whole development —-- because

it was privately owned property, but there was

Page 18 |§
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i obviously a public component, I guess, in.some way.

2 Can you describe to me how that sort of worked?

3 A. It was a private public partnership. The

4 funding came from Build American Bonds, and we were

5 able to construct and develop it for the City. And we

6 negotiated for land costs to do the trade of the two

7 parcels for the rest of it.

8 0. okay. 8o did you have a requirement for

9 Whiting Turner concerning the Disadvantaged Business
10 Entities percentage that was to be met or to try to be
11 met on the project?
12 A. That was —- during our negotiations with the
13 City, it was at a time when they ﬁere laying off -
14 people. It was a tough time to sell a new City Hall,
15 The City had a lot of pressure on them from the
16 minority gtoups to say, If you are going to do this,
17 please get participation. The City does not have a
18 diversity program that they can enforce in the ecity.
19 So they came to us and said, We would like
20 you to try and get the participation. And we agreed as
21 a goal to try to get 15 percent. We included that goal
22 to Whiting Turner's contracts. And from there they
23 managed how thatlwas obtained.
24 Q. So it was a city requirement essentially?
25 A. Well, it was a request, a strong reguest.
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Which we ended up getting over 20 percent at the end of
the day.

0. So did you leave it to Whiting Turner, then,
to enforce it or encourage subcontractors te meet
certain goals?

A During that first interview process before,
you know, we awarded contractors, we toid them that it
was an important factor in selection, as‘well as for
selection purposes. They needed to come to the table
with some diversity.

Q. So were they required te identify like which
areas they would be, you know, meeting diversity with?

A. Early on, no. They basically came back and
said, We feel for this contract we can .get 8 percent or
we can get 10 percent, you know. And we monitored
them. And most of the contractors met their goals.

And the ones that didn’t actually we had them

contribute.

Q. How do you mean?

A, There was one contractor that poorly missed
his goal. &and we had him -- well, he volunteered to —-

in the minority publications take out ads for his
company, which was a benefit to the minority magazines

and to the minority groups. So we convinced them to do

things of that nature.

Page 20
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1 0. Okay. Was there -- I guess speaking of if.
2 they didn't meet their goal, was there any consedguenceft
3 A. No. We would only ask that they do
4 something. %
5 Q0. Okay. §
6 A. It was monitored on a monthly basis during %
7 the pay application process.
8 Q. Because they were reguired to submit like the
9 certificates of DBE\with their pay aps?
i0 A. Yeah.
1% 0. So did you check that with Whiting Turner on
12  a monthly basis? |
i3 A. No. They provided ForestCity with a report. g
i4 It was based off costs of the project, costs of each
15 subcontractor. They provided us a breakdown and we
16 never audited,
17 Q. Then I guess in conjunction with payments,
is did you require a certain waiver or releases from subs
19 and suppliers for Whiting Turner to get those, or did
20 you rely on Whiting Turner to make sure that they were
21 obtaining the proper releases?
22 Al We did get all releases.
23 Q. How did you monitor, I guess, what releases
Z4 you would need?
25 A. They had a -- Whiting Turner had a breakdown
o = T SRELS
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within the pay application for the previous month's

payments. We would get unconditionals, you know, for

PSR P bR

that breakdown after the payment and they would provide
us conditional waivers with the initial payment. And
Whiting Turner had to do unconditiocnals and
conditionals to us for the project too.

0. So did you have anyone in your offices

W 2 s W N

tracking, say, preliminary notices with releases, or

9 how did you --

10 A. Yes, that went toc our corporate.
11 0. So someone in Cleveland was handling that?
12 A. Yes. Michelle did -~ Michelle Lagina did

13 that. She bugged me all the time. When am I getting
14 my releases? ‘ |
15 0. So did you rely on a combiration of Whiting
16 Turner keeping track of which suppliers were supplying
17 to the projects under subcontractors, or did you have
18 your own tracking system?

19 A. We did not get conditionals or unconditionals
20 from suppliers. It was from the first tier. So we

21 would get -- like, Mojave would provide us conditionals

22 and unconditionals for --

23 0. Its payments?
24 A, Yeah.
25 Q. Then you weren't tracking downstream subs and
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1 suppliers to Mojave?
2z A No.
3 Q. Is there a reason why you weren't tracking
4 downstream? §
5 A, Because that is not part of our standard
6 process.
7 Q. pid you rely on Whiting Turner to be tracking
8 downstream?
8 A, Mo, not in our contract it's not required.
i0 0. Were you concerned about lien claims from
11 people who might be unpaid under the subcontractor’s
12 second, third tier suppliers or subs?
13 A Concerned about it? It happens all the time.
14 0. But, I mean, not concerned enough to require
15 that, I guess, releases be provided?
16 A, I+ hasn't been in our past history a major
17 concern for us on subtiers and suppliers.
18 0. Okay. Can you tell me what the status of the
19 project is now?
20 A, Well, on February 14th of this year it's
21 going to be one year opened. We had substantial
22 completion on February 14th of 2012.
23 0. Is the project totally closed out at this
24 point? :
25 A. No.
e T = T sz T TR e
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1 And what is, I gquess, left open?

2 A. The contract with Whiting Turner is still

3 open.

4 Q. Why is it open?

5 A We were still negotiating some requests from

6 them specifically. We still have the Mojave contract

ki open because there is payments still within that -- !

8 their line items or schedule of values for the I

9 generator, which I held after -- it was pretty much %
10 paid out, but it was the completion pertion that's
11 there. | %
12 0. So you are holding money for the generator

13 from Whiting Turner?
14 A. From Mojave.
15 0. From Mojave. Do you recall offhand how much ;
16 you are holding? 1Is it the full cost of the generator
17 line item?

18 A. No. I would be surprised if it's $30,000.

19 It's somewhere in there, I think.

20 0. So the project has a‘permanent C of O7?

21 A. Correct.

22 Q. Do you recall when you got that?

23 A, On February 1l4th.

24 Q. And then -- I mean, I am sure you generally

25 know that we are here because Cashman didn't get paid
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for the generator and the UPS equipment that it
supplied to the project.
A, I have been told that.
Q. So when we talk about the generator and UPS
equipment, it's kind of a package deal. You know what
I am referring to?

A. Yes.

o 1 oy oo N

Q. So what is the status of the generator, UPS

9 equipment on the proiect now?

10 A. Well, it's installed. I am being told that
11 it would operate in case of an emergency. I have not
12 witnessed that. Due to a lack of some programming on

13 the system itself, it does not give my client, the
14 City, the opportunity to go into a laptop on site or
15 off site and monitor the status of the generator

16 systems, which is critical. Most buildings are fully

rrotr RO

1% automated and have a building management system. And
18 they sit up in an office when they need to check to

19 verify that the fuel is correct, the batteries are

20 operating, how that system is operating after it starts
21 up for RPMs and the technical things that need to be

22 monitored on these systems in case of an emergency, and
23 that is not available.

24 Q. And so as a result of that, were you taking

25 any action against Whiting Turner or Mojave or --

BLATERLY i
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1 A. We have been, you know, pushing to get
2. resolution of that.
3 Q. Of that issue? E
4 A, Of that issue.
5 Q. So does that leave any pending issues between
6 you, your company, or ForestCity and the City of Las
7 Vegas?
8 A, The City is aware of the situation. Being
9 aware of it, they can manually go check things, which
10 they are doing, but they are not very pleased about it.
11 Because there is a fault on the generator panel.
12 Q. What do you mean? What does that mean?
i3 A It's a big red light that flashes.
14 Q. Like something is wrong?
15 A Yeah. §
16 (Exhibit 2 marked.) |
17 BY MS. LLCYD:
18 Q. Can you take a look at this deocument? This
19 was produced in conjunction with a subpoena that I
20 issued to ForestCity. Do you recognize this document?
21 A, Yes. It's the one I provided. It's the last
22 executed pay application to Whiting Turner.
23 Q. Okay. And then if you go to page Bates stamp
24 5, can you tell me what —-- under the electrical, that |
25 first line item, it looks like there is a withholding.
Q= oW e T PR SR i e st ez PN S OTE TR TR e e T e T =3
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Am I reading that correctly?

A. Yeah, there was a retainage still held.

It looks like -- is that 792 or --

A. Yeah, it's --

0. In that range?

A. Yeah, I believe.

0. Is that still being withheld?

A. Yes.

0. From Whiting Turner? ;

A. From Mojave.

0. Through Whiting Turner, I guess. So why is
that being withheld?

A. We were closing out with Mojave. There were
several change orders that they had asked for that did i
not get approved before this was done.

0. So that line item is not related to the
generator equipment?

A, No.

Q. Do you have a breakdown of what it is related
to somewhere else?

A. Whiting Turner would. .Whiting Turner held
all the files for this project. I did not keep -- they
are to provide me on disk the entire file system, which E
I have not received because we haven't closed out yet.
So this is all I had available.

T : O
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1 o. What type of file, like, recordkeeping

2 software do they use?

3 A I don't know.

4 Q. There wasn't a requirement for a specific

5 program?

6 A. {(Shakes head.)

7 Q. 36 that withholding on there is not related

8 to the generator?

9 A No.
i0 Q. In speaking with Nancy from Whiting Turner,
E she seemed to indicéte that it was related to the
12 generator. Unless I misunderstcod -- I guess I am
13 trying to understand. Do you recall -- you are still
14 holding it, or have you pald it out?
15 A, No.
16 Q. You are still holding it?
17 . A, Until a proﬁec£ is completely closed out with
18 a contractor, I do not release. I release 5 percent.
19 That is 5 percent, I believe. And then column, I think
20 it says 5 percent. I released under percentage
21 retainage; it's 5 percent. Until a project is closed
22 out, ForestCity's poliay is we do not release all the
23 retainage. And it's not specifically to any certain
24 item.
25 0. Well, that particular item shows both a
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balance to finish and a retainage amount. Those are
two separate -- are those two separate —-- because most
of the items show basically no balance to finish,
because they are all looking like they are complete and
have been paid out, except for socme show retention. So
that's why I was trying to understand exactly what the
status of the payment to Whiting Turner was on that
particular item, because it looks like there is a
balance to finish and then a retainage amount.

A. The balance to finish was listed of the

contract change orders that we were still negotiating.

Q. Do you recall what those were about?
A. No.
0. So did the owner withhold any funds from

Whiting Turner and Mojave related to the generator
bevond ~—~ 1 think you identified 30,0007

A. . That's all we did because it was a specific
line item. Mojave's contract would have —-- or pay
application would have this cover sheet. And then they
were required to give us schedule of values for every
item of their scope of work, which entailed the
electrical, audio, visual, I mean, the whole breakdown.
It was a specific line item for the generator.

Q. So the generator line item was scmewhere in

the range of 800,000. But if it was, would you have

JF TR
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1 withheld 800,000 or would you withhold an amount you

2 determined separately, or did you have a way of coming

3 up with what you were going to withhold?

4 a. The generator was already paid out before

5 this was brought to our attention. 8o I Jjust refused

) tc pay any more on that line item.

7 Q. Okay. I guess.whqt's the status of the : H

8 negotiations with Whiting Turner to close everything

9 out?
10 A. We are hoping to have it all closed out :
11 within the next two weeks. 1
12 Q. Then what is your plan, I guess, in reference

13 to the operation of the generator equipment as far as,
14 you know, T guess sort of how that is going to work
15 with the City?

le A. We have asked Whiting Turner to give us a

LR LT By

17 proposal‘on how they want to handle it. They have to -

18 deal with their contractor.

19 Q. Have they come teo you with any propcsal yet?
20 A. No. They are in the -- they are just
21 following this process. That is all they can give us i

22 the information.

23 Q. So is that item just going to remain open
24 until the litigation is complete?

25 A. Well, the lien has been bonded arcound. Aas
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far as the City, the lien has been bonded. But
operationalwise I am not sure, We have been trying to
get resolution of this, so that I can go down and talk
to the City to determine exactly what their position is
on this.

0. Ckay. Did you have any involvement in
choosing the generator system requirements?

A. Ne, I am not an electrical engineer.

Q. So was that a JMA role as paxrt of théir
design services?

A. Yes. JMA, JBA.

Q. Did you have any iavolvement in approving the
system that was proposed by Mojave to be used?

A. Ne.

0. Would that just have been JMA and Whiting

Turner?

A, It's a combination of JMA, Whiting Turner and
JBA.

0. So would you have seen any of the submittals

concerning any type of the equipment that was being
supplied to the project?

A. No, not on that specific item, no. The
specifications are performance specifications. It
requires -- it will provide at least three different

manufacturers of equipment, three to five, which is our

TRTE

TS =

Depo International, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 admin@depointernational.com

JA 00002141




David Phillips - 1/10/2013
Cashman Equipment Company, et al. vs. CAM Consalting, Inc., et al,

0w oy U W N R

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

requirement. We cannot single-source a product for
ForestCity. We are a public company. Any of those
manufacturers would have to meet the performance
specifications that the engineers design to. If
those -- that selection process, they are all egual in
the engineer's eyes as well as the owner's eyes, then
they can -~ they are responsible for making sure that
system is complete.
{(Exhibit 3 marked.)

BY MS., LLOYD:

Q. Take a look at this document. Have you seen

it before?

A. Yes.

Q. 2nd when did you first see the lien?

A. I don't recall exactly when I saw the lien.
Q. Was it shortly after it was recorded?

A. At some point. Like I said, I can't give an

exact time.

Q. Did you -- it was forwarded to you from
Cleveland, your Cleveland offices?

A. Yes.

Q. and then what action did you take once you
were aware of the lien?
A. T took a copy over to Whiting Turner and

said, Address this issue.

|
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Q. And what did they say?

A, That is when it was bonded around.

Q. And so did yocu take any other action in
relation to the lien oxr the lien claim?

A. No.

Q. Did you have any discussions with Whiting
Turner about what happened or why there was a lien?

A. I asked what was going on and they said they
were trying to contact Mojave to find out.

Q. Did you do any inguiry beyond that
afterwards?

A, No.

MS, LLOYD: I don't think I have any other
questions.
MR. BOSCHEE: I think I have a couple.
EXAMTNATTON

BY MR. BOSCHEE: ‘ i

0. Looking at Exhibit 3, I understand that you
don't recall exactly what date that you saw that. Was
that the first time that you learned or ascertained of
the issue that has caused us to sit here todayé

A. Well, this was not specific to the issues we
are sitting here today. It was a lien from Cashman for

equipment. That didn't explain why we are sitting here

today.

T e TR

T T

Depo International, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 admin@depointernational.com

JA 00002143




David Phillips - 1/10/2013
Cashman Equipment Company, et al. vs. CAM Consulting, Inc., et al.

oo B N & A 4 B O A

10
11
12
13
14
15
1le
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 34
Q. Well, what is your understanding of why we
are here today?
A. It's all hearsay.
Q. Okay.

MS. LLOYD: Depos are okay for hearsay.

THE WITNESS: When we started to commission
this building, we have a third-party commissioner on
the project. When they started to come out and test
equiprment and do things, there was this flag that was
put on the generator system by our third-party
consultant concerning, you know, PCL or whatever. And
at that point it sat there and I kept asking, Is this

resolved? TIs this resolved? 2And they said, No, not

“yet, not yet. 2And finally it came out that -- how it

was told that there was an issue with Cashman and CAM.
BY MR. BOSCHEE:

Q. Yeah.

A. And they explained to me the situation. At
that point they didn't have all the detailed facts.
They just -- you know, they reassured ForestCity. It
was at an owner's meeting. We would have a meeting
prior to -~ before the City came in. So in our meeting
they explained of the situation. And.that they assured
us that we had final releases and things of that

nature. That pﬁt people somewhat to comfort and it was
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1 bonded around. And we didn't know how -- we knew we
2 needed to get the program so that we could complete ocur
3 commissioning and move forward with the City.
4 Q. Prior to seeing this lien and getting this
5 from your corporate office, did you have any actual
6 knowledge that Cashman Equipment Company was invelved
7 in what we will call the project? Have you ever heard
8 of them before?
9 A. I have been here for 24 years. I have heard
i0 of Cashman. But no, generators show up, equipment
11 shows up. Who supplies it, who is installing it, I am
12 just relying on Whiting Turner to make sure it's done,
13 Q. Okay. And T mean, sitting here right now, do
14 you have any actual knowledge of when or whether
15 Cashman Equipment Company actually supplied the
16 generators to the project?
17 A, No, I don't,
18 Q. And following up on that, do you have any
19 specific recollection of when the generators were
20 delivered to the project?
21 A, Not specifically, no.
22 0. Is it fair to say you just know that they got
23 there and it got put in and the construction kept
24 flowing?
25 A, Correct.
T T , e , : |
Depo International, LLC

(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-329% admin@depointernational.com

JA 00002145




David Phiflips - 1/16/2013
Cashman Equipment Company, et al. vs, CAM Consulting, Inc., et al.

Page 36

s e e

0. Wow, I had another gquestion frem my notes in
talking to you. Do you recall -— I believe there was a
pending log that you reviewed from time te time; is
that correct?

a. Every day.

0. I didn't want to hold vour feet toc the fire

on the everyday thing, but I knew it was pretty much

[0 N N =1 T 2 YR VG I A0 N el

every day. Do vou recall seeing anything in the

9 pending log about change crders with respeclt to the
10 generators?
11 A There was none.
12 Q. Okay. And again, just to clarify, your
13 company and you persconally had played no part in the --
14 I guess we will call it the screening process for the
15 disadvantaged business entities that were used on this
16 project, did you?
17 A, No.
18 Q. And with respect to -- with respect to JMA's
19 involvement, you talked to Ms. Llcyd about this a
20  little bit earlier. Is it fair to say that their
21 primary job was to deal with the design and the design
22 changes conce the project got going; is that fair?
23 AL Yes.
24 MR. BOSCHEE: I den't think I have anything

25 further.

ny == s e s ST
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MS. LLOYD: I have a follow-up.
FURTHER EXAMINATION
BY MS. LLOYD:
Q. What is a pending log?
A ForestCity requires all of our contractoxrs to

keep track of any possible change or foreseeable change

st

and project a cost that cquld impact the project. We
don't like surprises. If you know you have a

problem ~~ if we know ﬁe have a problem out there with
some steel, we would indicate that on this pending leog £
and we would project a cost. So every month we knew

what our exposure was to the project in any changes.

It might end up being zZero.

The City might come and say, Dave, I want you
to redo these floor plans, which they did. We would
put that on there and we would project a cost involved
in.that.! So that at the end of the day, every month we
knew what our true cost exposure was on a monthly basis

for finance purposes.

et

Q. Would you see, like, a pending cost if
Whiting Turner determined that, say, a sub missed
something and didn't bid it properly so they were going
to essentially put the cost back onto the sub? Would
they have notified you of something like that?

A, No.

e e e T e T S = AN == e e
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0. Or only if it was going to be an
owner—-impacted change or potential cost?

A It tracked ~- if Whiting Turner missed
something in the contract itself, that item would be
put -~ it would be tracked to Whiting Turner. If
ForestCity asked for a change, it would be listed as
ForestCity. And if the City made a change, it would be
City. Beyond that, nothing else went on that log.

Q. S0 it was only if, say, Whiting Turner was
going to ask for more money ==

A Right.

Q. —— related to a certain item.

So if they made a determination that, say,
Mojave missed something and it was in the drawings and
they should have included it and it wasn't going to be
a change to the owner, you wouldn't be notified --

A, No, I wasn't.

0. -— an issue like that.

Talking about the generator, I guess,

delivery. Do you recall seeing the generators be

delivered?
A I just saw them sitting there one day.
Q. Before they were in the box or however they

are housed in the equipment room, or after they were

already in the equipment room?

g ST R P T O X B e e T P
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A, After they were already in the -- it's a wall
enclosure.
0. Okay. Do you recall meeting Shane Norman of

Cashman Equipment Company?

A His name doesn't sound familiar.

lien,

Q.

It would have been around the time of the

sort of the dispute concerning the payment

issues. He recalled, I guess visiting the site and

meeting you, but I don't know if you had recalled.

A, I met so many people.

0.

No, I am sure. Especially every day..

A. The name doesn't sound familiar, but I am not

saying I didn't meet him. I am Jjust saying I don't

recall meeting him.

Q.

But you don't recall having a conversation

concerning this bounced check and the issue with the

nonpayment of the generator?

A. I don't recall that.

MS. LLOYD: Okay. That is all I have.
(Thereupon, the deposition

concluded at 4:00 p.m.)
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CERTIFICATE OF DEPONENT
PAGE LiNE CHANGE REASON

* * * * *

I, David Phillips, deponent herein, do hereby
certify and declare the within and foregoing
transcription to be my deposition in said action; that
I have read, corrected and do hereby affix my signature

to said deposition under penalty -of perjury.

DAVID PHILLIPS, Deponent
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CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
STATE OF NEVADA )
) 551
COUNTY OF CLARK )
I, Christy L. DeJonker, a duly commissioned

Notary Public, Clark County, State of Nevada, do hereby

certify: That I reported the deposition of David
Phillips, commencing or Thursday, January 10, 2012, at
3:00 p.m.

That prior to being deposed, the witness was
duly sworn by me to testify to the truth. That I
thereafter transcribed my said shorthand notes into
typewriting and that the typewritten transcript is a
complete, true and accurate transcription of my said
shorthand notes. That review of the transcript was
requested. _
I further certify that I am not a relative,

employee or independent contractor of counsel of any of

the parties; nor a relative, employee or independent
contractor of the parties involved in said action; nor

a person financially interested in the action; nor do I

have any other relationship with any of the parties or
with counsel of any of the parties involved in the
actien that may reasonably cause my impartiality to be
questioned. '

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand in my

office in the County of Clark, State of Nevada, this
14th day of January, 2013.

CHRISTY LYN DeJONKER, CCR NO. 691
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, a Nevada

corporation,
AG42583

Plaintiff,

vSs.

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

CAM CONSULTING, INC., a Nevada )
corporation; ANGELO CARVALHO, an )
individual; JANEL RENNIE aka JANEL )
CARVALHO, an individual; WEST EDNA }
ASSOCIATES, LTD. dba MOJAVE ELECTRIC, a )
Nevada corporation; WESTERN SURETY )
1 COMPANY, a surety; THE WHITING TURNER )
CONTRACTING COMPANY, a Maryland )
corporation; FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT )
COMPANY OF MARYLAND, a surety; )
TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY )
OF BMERICA, a surety; DOES 1-10, )
inclusive; and ROE CORPORATIONS 1-10, )
inclusive; )
)

)

)

)

Defendants.

DEPOSITION OF PERSON MOST KNOWLEDGEAEBLE OF
CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY
KEITH LOZEAU

Las Vegas, Nevada
Tuesday, September 4, 2012

REPORTED BY: Tammy M. Breed, CTCR NO., 305
JOB NO.: 164928

JA 00002153




(o T o o B I = 2 T &

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

KEITH LOZEAU - 9/4/2012

DEPOSITION OF PERSON MOST KNOWLEDGEABLE OF CASHMAN
EQUIPMENT CCOMPANY, KEITH LOZEAU, taken at 400 Scuth Fourth
Street, Las Vegas, Nevada, on Tuesday, September 4, 2012, at
9:30 a.m., befcre Tammy M. Breed, Certified Court Reporter, in

and for the State of Nevada.

For the ?Plaintiff:

JENNIFER R. ROBINSON, ESQ.
Pezzille Robinson

6750 Via Austi Parkway

Suite 170

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

(702) 233-4225
jrobinsonfpezzilleorobinson, com

|
|
|
|
§
APPEARANCES: z
|
E
i
|
i

For the Defendants:

BRIAN W. BOSCHEE, ESQ.

SHEMILLY A. BRISCOE, ESC.

Cotton, Driggs, Walch, Holley
Weloson & Thompson

A00 Scowuth Fourth Street

Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 85101

(702} 791-0308

bboscheelfnevadafirm. com

SBriscoel@nevadafirm. com
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I N D E X
WITNESS: KEITH LOZEAU
EXAMINATION PAGE
BY: Mr. Boschee 4
E X H I B I T S
EXHIBIT PAGE §
Exhibit 1 Notice of 30(B)(6) Deposition of 9
Person Most Knowledgeable of
Cashman Egquipment Company
H
Exhibit 2 Letter from Jennifer R. Robinson, 10 i
Esq., Dated 8/31/12 ;
Exhibit 3 Stop Payment on a check to Cashman 35
Equipment in the amocunt of
$755,893.89, Dated 4/29/11, Bates ;
CASHO14 ' i
Exhibit 4 Application For Credit, Bates 51
CASHOO0L to 002 :
Exhibit & Invoices and Bill of Lading, Bates 54
CASHO03 to 008
Esthibit 6 Subcontractor's Daily Log, The 60
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Whiting-Turner Contracting Company,
Bates WIC00070.to 71
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Page 4

o

Las Vegas, Nevada; Tuesday, September 4, 2012
9:30 a.m.

-000-

Whereupon -—-

KEITH LOZEAU

having been first duly sworn to testify to the truth, was

examined

and testified as follows:

EXAMINATION

BY MR. BOSCHEE:

Q. Can you please state your full name for the record?

A. Keith Daniel Lozeau.

Q. You'd better spell the last name for the court
reporter.

A. Yes, L-0-Z-E-A-U.

Q. You ever been deposed before, Keith?

A, No.

Q. This is the first time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Great. I'll run through a couple of ground rules
with you. I'm sure you talked about this with your counsel
but -- and you are represented by counsel, is that correct,
Jennifer --

A. Uh-huh.

Q. -~ Robinson's here?

P = R s e e A T R S R e ey
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A. Yes.

Q. First, the oath you just tock from the court
réporter is the zame cath you take in a court of law. It
carries with it the same obligations and penalties that the

~ocath would take in court. So I just want té make sure you i
understand that before we get started. OCkay? %

A. Yes, sir; Yep. g

Q. Okay. You're not going to be able to remember
everything that I ask you about today, I'm sure, and I don't

want you to guess at anything. I don't want you speculating

T

or guessing at the cquestions I'm asking. But I am entitled to
your best recollection. So to the extent that you remember
anything related to the questions I've asked, I'm entitled to
know that, but don't guess at something., If you don't know,

you don't know, just let me know that. Okay?

!
A. Okay. §

Q. The court reporter is going to make a transcript 3
about what we're talking about today, my questions and your §
answers. Couple things related to that. I will do my best %
'

not to ask a follow-up question while you're still answering,
if you would do me the same courtesy of not answering when I'm
asking a gquestion. She can't transcribe us both talking at
the same time. Okay?

A, Understood.

Q. Along the same lines, your lawyer may object, may

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648-2595
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tell you not to respond to one of my questions. I don't think
I've got anything like that in here, but she may make an

obijection for the record. Let her finish before you say

e e R A A s

anything or -~ and I'll try to do the same, give her the same

courtesy as well. Okay?

A. Fair enough.

Q. The court reporter can'ﬁ transcribe head nods, head
shakes.

A. (Witness nodding.)

Q. Just like that.

A. Right. Understocod. Understood.

Q. Audible responses are going to be great for her. If

you need me to clarify any of my questions, if there's
something I asked that you don't understand, which is very
likely at some point in the mofning, Just ask me to clarify
something because it's very likely that -- I know exactly what
I'm talk -- what I'm asking about and you're going to hear a
question that I think is really artfully asked of you, and
you're going to be like, I don't have any idea what you're
talking about, Brian. Please clarify that. &And I'd be happy
te do that. Okay?

A. Okay. Thank you.

Q. This is not -- I know that we're under a little bit
of a time crunch today, you need to be somewhere this

afterncon. That said, I don't want this to be an endurance

o R TR

S — (702) 648-2595
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I Q. Kind of related to what I said earlier, your counsel

I best testimony today?

KEITH LOZEAU - 5/4/2012
Page 7

contest. If you need to run down the hallway to the restroom,
get something to drink, anything like that, we can take a
five-minute break. It's not a big deal. Just let me know and
say, hey, can we take a quick break, and we'll go off the
record and take a quick break. All right?

A, Cool.

may make objections for the record at some point during this
proceeding. Unless she -- however, unless she instructs you
not to answer my question, let her make the objection. I may
or may not respond. And then go azhead and answer the question
at that point. Okay?

A. Okay.

Q. Cool.

Are you on any medication today that would prevent

you from giving your best testimony?

A. No.

Q. Is there any other reason why you can't give your

A, No.

Don't have a cold or a flu or anything?

A. Other than a three-day weekend, everything's fine.
Q. I've got that same problem working for me this
morning.

Let me ask you, other than speaking to your attorney

ThYy A RS S e A
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have you done anything to prepare for this deposifion this
morning?

A. I went through back —— excuse me. I went bhack
through scme of my e-mails from the time period, but there was
a lot of things that were frankly verbal, um, leading up to a
lot of this very early on. So I —— there's not -— there
wasn't a lot of preparation I was able to do, so I had to do
some review of some e-mails but that's about it.

Q. Sure. And that's part of the reason that we're
taking a deposition today, becanse a lot of this was verbal
and there were meetings and whatnot and I just need to know
kind of what happened.

Other than your counsel have you spocke —- did you

speak to anybody about your deposition today?

A. No.

Q. Nobody at the company?

A. At Cashman?

Q. Yeah.

A. There's a couple people at Cashman that know I'm

here. My supervisor, Joel Larson, and Shane Norman, who
yocu've already deposed I think, so -- but other than that, no.

Q. Shane was the one I was kind of -- did you talk to
Shane at all about the substance of what you were coming here
to do today, or does he just know that yvou’'re here?

A. He just knows I'm here.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648- 2595
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g
1 Q. Anything substantive you talked about with anybody g
2 at Cashman other than, hey, I've got to go take this %
3 deposition? I'm going to this deposition, I'm geing to be out %
4 of the office for a few hours? V
5 A. Yeah -- no.
6 Q. Okay. Did you iook at -- other than the e-mails we g
I Just talked about, did you look at any documents to prepare '
8 for this depositioﬁ? %
9 A. No. §
10 MR, BOSCHEE: I'm going to mark as the first i
11 exhibit, it's the amended, submitted depo notice. é
12 (Exhibit No. 1 marked.) §
13 Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) Take a look at this exhibit. This ;
14 is an amended deposition notice that we sent out, which is why E
15 you're here today. !
i6 A, Uh-huh. !
17 Q - Do you recall receiving a copy of this? g
18 A Yes, sir.
19 Q. Go to page 3.
20 § A {(Witness complving.)
21 Q. Excluding items three and four, which we'll talk
22 about in just a second, are you -- to the bast of your
23 | understanding are you the person most knowledgeable from

eight? BAnd take a second.

Cashman with respect to items one, twe, five, six, seven, and %

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648-2595
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A. Likely so. g
Q. Okay. I'm going to mark the next -- keep that in %
front of you. §
A, Okay. i
Q. I have another exhibit that I just received this
morning. I'm literally going to ask you one gquestion. %
{Exhibit No. 2 marked.) %
Q. {BY MR. BOSCHEE)} ©Okay. I don't know that you've §
actually seen this letter before. You may have. |
A, Nope.
Q. Okay. My question to you is, without going back to %

items three and four in your -- in the deposition notice,
relates to insurance policies and insurance claims basically.

My understanding from this letter is that you are not the

-person most knowledgeable from Cashman as to insurance-related

issues; is that correct?

A, That is correct.

Q. Just to save us some time because I've now deposed
two folks over at Cashman and I don't want to have to keep
doing this, do you happen to know off the top of your head who
I would need to talk about insurance-related issﬁes, who that
person might be?

If you don't know, you don't know. That's fine.
I'm just trying to save everybody a little bit of time going

forward.

L T B A B e 31 BT 08 A o LA e LI R B A4 i G 28 S S AL
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Page 11
A. There's one of two people.
Q. Okay.
A. And the only reasen I say it's one of two people is

ATV L

we had some turnover. Our previous CFO would have been the

T

company is Mike Pack, and Mike at the end of the day might be

person.
Q. Uh-huh. g
i

A. Our new CFO was not present when all this happened. :
]

Q. Okay. §
A. So his name is Lee Vanderpool. The president of the [
i

<

]

'

the best person to discuss insurance and that kind of --

Q. Mike Pack was the CFO at the time?

A. No, he is president.

Q. Okay . %

A. And he has been president throughout. ;
E

Q. Who was the CFO at the time? ;

A Jim Moore. é

Q. Jim Moore. %

A. And quite frankly, I'm not sure Jim Mocre would be E

available to be deposed or not because he has terminal cancer.

rarwrarrrrorr P IPL A oL —ar )

Q. That would prcbably be no.

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. I assume --— is that why he left the company?
A. That is.

Q. Okay.

P TS b
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A. So I'm sorry to just give kind of an obtuse answer,
but that's ~—- that's the situation.
Q. No, that -- that stinks. Okay.
Well, it could be -- it could be something where

counsel may pick up the phone and ask a gquestion or two and
get to the bottom of this, but I don't want -- I'm certainly
not going to drag him in for that.

Okay. But other -- other than the insurance, who we

may need to talk to Mike or Lee about, you're good to go on

everything else in the depo =-- in Exhibit 1 there?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What is your position with Cashman?

A, I am the sales and rental manager of the power
division.

Q. Okay. And how long have you had that position?

A. Six years.

Q. Okay. Did you have a different position with the

company prior to that?

AL I was just a sales rep.

Q. Ckay. What are your -- as -- as manager of the
power division, what are your job responsibilities with that
position for the last six years or so?

A. All of our acceounit managers statewide report to me,
and basically I}m responsible for growing our sales and rental

business.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648-2595
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Page

Q. Okay. How long have you been employed with Cashman
overall?

A. Sorry, I have to think because I left for two years.

Overall about 19 years.

Q. Well, walk me through that. You started with

Cashman when?

A. ‘91, TLeft in '97.

Q. Okay .

A Came back in '99. Been with them ever since.

Q. What did you do with them from '91 to '977?

A, I was a technician for a good part of the time, and

when I left I was a salesperson.
Q. What were your job responsibilities as technician?

Walk me through a typical day in the life of a Cashman

technician.
‘A. Okay. We repair anything that we sell, and that's
primary Caterpillar products but there -- there's some other

products associated with that too. I worked on generators,

electrical equipment, engines, some machinery. You know, the
H

idea was to get things running before warranty repairs, 1

startups, those kind of things.

Q. = Okay. BAnd that was what you did before you become a

sales rep®?

A. Yes, sir. i
Q. Okay. BAnd when did you kind of transition from tech i

T O T T SO TE e R
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Page 14
into sales? §
A. I believe it was 1995. ;
Q. Okay. And then when you came back in '93, were you
again a sales rep or --
A, I was —-
Q. Okay. g
A. - yes. %
Q. Okay. And you've had that until about six years
ago?
A. Correct.
Q. Which would be 2006, 2007, sometime in there? E
A, Yes.
Q. With respect to your current job, does your current

job require any of your, I guess, technical background or your
background as a technician? Does that come into play with

what you do now?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. How so?

A. What we do is —— the products and services that we
sell -~ everything is a very technical sale, so it is

tremendously helpful tc be able to fall back on that
background and have an understanding when I have somebody
telling me something in the field that they have going on that
I =- I have a reasonable knowledge of the challenges that they

have and what they need to do to fix them.

[T R e i
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Page 15

Not to mention, prior to the sale I can have a
discussion with architects and engineers and contractors and
those kinds of things and talk them through what they're
buying, why they're buying it, and what we're going to have
to -- what challenges and opportunities we'll face during
installation and start—up.

Q. Okay. With respect to specifically the City Hall
project —— and that's pretty much what we're going to be

talking about today.

B

T ot e e e TN e T

AT

A. Uh—-huh.

Q. -~ do you have a general familiarity with the ]
start-up -- well, your word -- start-up, installation, ah, %
requirements for -- for what;s going on over there right now? 3

A. Yes. %

Q. Okay. And what I'm thinking of specifically are —- é
there's some codes that counsel and I are still -- =still

arguing about z little bit with the judge. But there's some

e iR b PG LT

codes that are -- as I understand, are reguired to get things

up and running over there. Do you have a familiarity with
that?

A. Generally speaking, yes. BAnd the reason I say
generally speaking is --

Q. That's fine.

A. —— each municipality has their own rules and

e e T T

regulations. And then sometimes the design engineer has input
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==

into that. And so they're not unfortunately‘universal to
every project.

Q. Ckay. Well, I guess what I'm ~- what I'm wonder;ng,
specifically with respect to this project, my understanding is
that -- that there iz some concerns or some issues with -—-
with getting this -- at this stage, like tomorrow, getting
this stuff started up and insztalled and running with these
codes today. Could you =~- could you explain to me what -- if
you know, what your concerns are with respect to that?

A. Oniy tc the extent that we (indicating) discussed it
on the phone, and there's -- there's two --

M5, ROBTNSON: I'm going to object —-

Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) I don't want to know anything -- I
don't want to know anything you discussed with Jennifer. I
don't. want to know anything that -~ any attorney/client
communication.

. MS. RORINSON: aAnd I'm going to object to the form

of your question. Maybe it's a little vague. If you can

rephrase. "Issues," I don't know.
MR. BOSCHEE: TI'm sure —-— okay. Ccncern was the
real —- was the word I was looking at.
Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) You guys have some -- you guys

have some codes that are reguired to, as I understand it, get
the stuff over at City Hall up and running, correct?

A. Typically, ves.

e P e T i ST B W e e e e e Y o T = e ! P P o E i e O SR e e e SN

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648-2595

JA 00002168

L ALk A bt

DL T 1 L LA G e L L

T L A AT

RO TR S P ERAUAT L S

CREAT MR Y CALAE Ao, o, AL

AT e it ATt

TR A TP A T Ao




11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

KEITH LOZEAU - .9/4/2012
Page 17

Q. Okay.

A. And I say typically because I have no direct
knowledge of the status of_the equipment, what's been done,
what's not been dene --

Q. Right.

i A. -— and what they're reguiring.

Q. Well, going back in time, assuming -- I don't want
to say assuming but -- you guys at some point stopped working
on this project for -- because of nonpayment, correct?

' , A, Correct.

Q. At that point before anything else had happened, you
guys had some codes that would have been used te get the stuff
started, installed, and running, correct?

A. Codes can have two diffefent definitions.

Q. Tell me what they are. You're the technical guy and
I'm not.

A. So there's — there's —- there's National BElectrical
Code and fire protection codes.

o. Sure.

A. &nd those are ~- those are code requirements that
are regulations, laws. And then there's codes that are
associated with communication protocols that we use for the
equipment to be able to talk to each cthexr. So there's -~ I'm
not sure which codes it is that they're asking about. That's
where I'm at. I'm not sure -- I'm not sure what's holding
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this them up at this point. I don't know.

Q. Okay. Well, I'm just thinking out loud here. Both
sets of those codes would probably'be -- probably pretty handy
in terms of getting everything up and running, I would think,
wouldn't they?

A, The codes -- the protocols ~- the communication
protocols for the equipment would be absolutely required. The
codes for the fire protection —- it's NFPA, National Fire
Protection Asscociation, and the National Electrical Code and
Clark County fire code or City of Las Vegas fire code,
depending upon which it is, they often vary from job to job.

Q. Okay.

A. So it's hard for me to say if that's what their hold
up is, specifically what the hold up is. And what we do —-
what would typically happen in a project like this is, once we
get to the latter stages of the job, there's meetings between
us and the contractor and the insp%ctors, and the inspectors
sort of lay out what specifically they're locoking for to meet
the codes.

And then a lot of times we have to make adjustments
to our bills of materials or specifically how —-- we may have
an image at the beginning of the job of how we're going to
address the codes. What that looks like at the end of the

project could be something very different.

Q. Okay.
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A. Does that help?

Q. It does a little bit. I want to talk about the
protocol calls specifically, because I think I know what
you're talking about with fire codaes., BAnd that's kind of a
moving target a little bit.

A, Uh-huh.

Q. But the protocel codes, if those aren’t -—- if those
aren't in, the equipment can't kind of communicate with each
other. ﬁhat igs the net effect of that? I mean what -- what
happens if those codes aren’'t used at installation?

A. A qualified person might be able to make the
equipment work to a certain extent, but they probably wouldn't
be able to make it work to its full capability.

Q. Okay. Would there be -- I mean when you say it
wouldn't be able to work to its full capability, what are some
things that might not -- might not work? Would there be

safety concerns?

A. It depends.

Q. Okay.

4. And if the -- one of the things that we talked
about -- one of the -- one of the more important functions of

this system 1s to be able to parallel the two generator sets
together. If the building load doesn't exceed the capacity of
one generator, you could theoretically lock one generator out, J

use just one generator, and you could bypass a lot of that

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648-2595

JA 00002171




B W M e

o =3 o n

KEITE LOZEAU - 9/4/2012
Page 20

protocol and communications that make the system work.
If the load does exceed the rating of one generator

set and you need both generator sets, then you're -- then

T A e T e et

those codes become absolutely necessary.

Q. Okay. I'm not —- I'm not an engineer or a k
contractor, per se, but I've been over to City Hall. It's a
pretty big project. I mean, fair to say that it's going to —-- ﬁ
it at least contemplates both generators being needed over

there, doesn't it? I mean it's.

A, It was certainly designed that way.
Q. Right.
A, It's ~- that would be something the design engineer

could tell you better than I could.
Q. Sure.
But when -- when you guys were supplying the

equipment, it was certainly contemplated it was.going to be --

that both generators were going to be used over there, wasn't
it?
A, Yes, but that could be for a different reason. In a

lot of cases they'll have two generator sets for redundancy.

Q. Sure.
A. So they won't —~- the load doesn't exceed the
capacity of both generators -- Or excuse me, of one generator.

You have the second generator in case the first generator

fails.
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Q. Kind of a backup?
A. And —- and —— and -- right. And one generator can
still carry the entire building. So -- and that's why I said

the design engineer would probabkly have to have a discussion
with you about that because I don't know 1f they had a —-— if

they had twe generators for capacity or two generators for

redundancy wouldn't be completely ocut of the question.

redundancy.
Q. Okay. i
A. Two kind of different things. 1
%
Q. That makes sense. And it's a government job so i
B
i

But assuming that -- if it wasn't -- if it wasn't a
redundancy situation, if it was actually two generators were
required, then those codes are absolutely going to be
necessary for them to communicate with each other?

A. That.is correct.

Q. We may get back to some of that. I have completely
gone afield of my outline of qﬁestions, so I'm going to try to
get back on track here.

Before the City Hall project, how many times have
you worked with Mojave Electrice?

A. Ch, boy.

Q. Estimate? I don't want you to have to count them on
your fingers.

A. Yeah. Probably a few dozen.

he—— — M .
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Q. Okay. How about Whiting-Turner?
A. Indirectly, probably a dozen times. I say indirect

because we don't usually deal directly with the general

contractor.
Q. Right. Usually deal with --
A. Mojave HElectrical.
Q. w~ with like —-
A, Yes.
Q. Do you have any idea how many accounts you've opened

for -- for Mbjave off the top of your head?

A, How many --—

Q. Shane had —- Shane had an estimate, and I was
wondering if you maybe had a little more -- yeah, I mean how
many different -- different specific accounts you've opened
with -— with Moijave?

A. Oh, you know what. I don't know.

Q. Dozens? . .

A, Well, I guess depends on how you lecok at it. Are

you talking about physical accounts, or you talking about

proiects?
Q. Projects?
A, Oh, projects. Yeah, probably -- I'm going to say

three dozen.

Q. Okay. You personally worked on a lot of those

projects?
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A. Yes.

Q. Prior to this -- and obviously this is a bit of a --
have you ever had any problems with Mojave prior to this
incident?

A. The only problem we ever had with Mojave —- and this
has been more of a recent thing in the last couple of years —
they've had somewhat of a different definition associated with
lien releases. And at times they've asked us to sign lien
releases when we still haven't received full payment. And
that's -- it seems to be related to one specific person that
they hired a couple years ago. And prior to that we never had

a problem with Mojave ever.

Q. Okay.
A, Paid like clockwork.
Q. Do you know that person's name off the top of your
head?
" A. . Her first name is Francis.
Okay.
A. I do not know her last name.
Q. You don't even need to tell me anymore.
A, Okay.
Q. I do know her last name.
You guys use conditional lien releases though, don't
you?
A. Typically.
LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) ©48-2595
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1 Q. Okay.
2 A. I mean there's -- there's conditional and there's :
3} unconditional. j
4 Q. Sure. ;
5 AL So -- but we have —- again, more recently we've had é
6 situations where she would hold a check until we signed E
7 } conditional and/or unconditional releases for unrelated %
8 projects, which is very -- well, let's just say it's not %
9 consistent -
10 § 0. Okay.
11 A. —— with industry practice. And —-- but to collect g
12 money we did what we had to do paperwork wise to satisfy what
13 she was asking for. And this —-- quite frankly, this is more !
14§ of a Shane guestion than mine. He has more direct knowledge i
15 of a lot of that that was going on. But - but I do know . E
16 1 there was some irregularities, and we were really struggling i
17 z with how to —-- how to work through;that process. é
ig l Q. When you're describing -- and I talked to Shane
19 about something related to this, &aAnd I don't -- if this is §
20 getting afield of your knowledge, please tell me. But when g
21 you're talking about, okay, there's payment due on this %
22 project and you've got a lien release for this. BAnd basically %
23 you -- what you typically do in the industry is you swap check i
24 for a lien release, as I understand; is that right? i
25 A. For the same project? g
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Q. Okay. And how often did that happen?

A. It seemed to happen on every jocb after she got
-hired.

Q. Okay. I quess the obvious question to me is -- I
" mean why -- if ~- if the payment wasn't made yet, if you guys

ooy 1z

Page 2b
Q. For the same project, correct.
A, Yes.
Q. And what I under -- as I understand what you're

saying is, okay, that's fine for this project. But then you
got a project over here, and they're holding your money on
this one as well looking for —- looking for a lien release
when you haven't been paid yet. Is that what you're telling
me?

A. It appeared from conversations that I had with Shane

that that was what they were doing.

weren't paid in full, why were you;giving unconditional lien
releasas? E

MS. ROBINSON: I'm just going to cbject. It's going
outside his notice feor his person most knowledgeable. Sc are
you asking him as the perscon mest knowledgeable of Cashman, or
did you already depay -- depose Shane as the person most
knowledges on this issue, are you asking him for his own
perscnal knowledge?

MR. BOSCHEE: TI'm asking for his own personal

knowledge because he brought it up.

T
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Mojave?

A. Never nct paid, no. ﬁ

Q. Okay.

A. Slow scometimes, but never not paid.

Q. Right. Sometimes -- the situation we're talking E

- H

about, you know, a little bit of slow pay, little bits, but
.never a non-payment issue, correct? I

Page 26
MS. ROBINSON: Right. That --
MR. BOSCHEE: I mean that's -- I mean I understand.
But Shane -— Shane painted a very different -—- I mean not a

very different, but Shane said something a little different.

I just want to make sure that I understand exactly what --
what this witness is talking abcut because I just want -- more
of a clarification than anything.

Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) To the best of your understanding
why —- vou know why -- why were doing -- why were you guys
doing that?

A. To the best of my understanding we had had a
long-term relationship with Mojave Electric. We had no
history of never not being paid. And so we felt like if
that's what we needed to do to accommodate a valuable
customer, then —- then we were willing to do that.

Q. Okay. Again, to the best of your understanding,

prior. to this situation, we'll call it, did you guys ever have

a payment problem with Mojave? Have you ever been not paid by
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removed Whiting, but had you ever had this situation with

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. And again, you're usually one or two steps

Whiting before, just not getting paid?

A. Not to my knowledge.
Q. Okay. With respect to ~- and again the -- the lien
releases and the —— and the payment kind of Francis holding

the checks, as I understand it, that resulted in a little bit
of a slow -~ a slowdown effect, but you guys always did get

paid for the work that you performed prior to this project,

right, as far as you know?

understand it, contracted directly with a company called CAM

A. As far as I know.

Q. Okay. ©Now, on this project you guys, as I

Consulting, right?

politically correct way to say this, but I mean it's the term

used in the industry I think, minority contractor, are you

A. Correct,

Q. And they were -- I mean I always look for the

familiar with that?

L
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A. Yes.

Q. That was their role here, correct --
Al Yes.

Q. —~ CAM Consulting?

A Yes.
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e,

Q. Are you familiar generally with the requirements for

minority contracts? I mean why did they end up being used in

this pro -- in projects like this?
A, That's a broad questicn, but fto -
Q. In your experience?
A, To make it sort of simple, a lot of government

projects require a certain amecunt of equipment and services to
be purchased by -- from, excuse me, minority entities. And --
and I-don't recall what the percentage was, but I can remember
being told early on by -- by -- Peter Fergen is the vice
president of Mojave that does a lot of their purchasing and
those kinds of things. He told me very early on that we were
~— that there was a percentage of the project that had to be
purchased by -- from minority entities and their intention was

to purchase this equipment through a minority entity.

Q. Okay.
a. Se¢ T =— so we —— does that answer your guestion? .
Q. I think so.

You've dealt with minority contractors on other
projects, correct?
A. Yes. Not a lot, but vyes.
Q. Was this -- was this scenario or was this experience

considerably different than your experiences on other projects

with minority contractors, obviously other than not getting
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Page 29
A, The obvious exception?
Q. Other than that how did you like the play,
Mrs. Lincoln, but -- yeah, up to that point?
A, You got me with the Mrs. Lincoln.
Q. Sorry.
A. It's okay.
.Um, no, I -- I would say in the few instances that

we had to do -- I think the only thing that was different is
in most cases we dealt with a larger company, as opposed to a

very small entity such that CAM was.

£
;
!
4
i
é
£
i
H
:
H
é
Q. Okay. Now, I talked to Shane a lot about the —-- the E
—— kind of credit process and things like that. We'll talk i
about that very briefly in a few minutes. But as I g
understand, you worked with -- you were kind of on the ground
and worked with CAM kind of directly in terms of the equipment
transfer, is that fair, or not really?

;

A. .No, not really. T —-- no. %

]

Q. Tell me what was youxr experience. What did you deo
with CAM?

A, The only time I actually met Angelo was when we met
over at Mojave's office to discuss transacting this deal
through them.

Q. Okay.

A. And -- and actually I'm not even sure —— I don't

even recall talking to him on the phone after that. It was a
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pretty straightforward discussion. We discussed the finances,
the percentage, and came to an agreement, shock hands, and

that was pretty much it.

Q That was that?

A. Yeah.

o} Okay.

A. In terms of eguipment getting to the site, what I

would call logistics of the project, everything was traﬁsacted

directly with the Mojave folks.

Q. - Okay. That makes sense.
Did you participate -- when I say "you" I mean you
or anybody else at Cashman -- participate in the selection of

CAM as the minority contractor here?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. What -- how so? Walk me through the kind of
picking them process, if you will. That was a terrible
question but.

A, No, that's okay. I'll do the best I can here.

We had -~ originally &ll of our equipment was going
to be purchased through a company called NEDCO, which we had
done this with before. And WNEDCC's a large company and
there's -— you know, there's generally no problems there. But
they wanted —- this was a very tight competitive bid job.
There. was hot a lot of monmey in there to be spiffing (sic)

companies for pushing paper through their books. And what
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NEDCO wanted for a percentage was not going to be acceptable,

So we were talking to another group that was just in
the process of getting their disadvantaged business license,
and they were —-- they were experiencing delays getting that
decne. And Pete contacted me a couple of times and said, you
know, what are we doing? Are —- is that group going to work?
And you know it didn't seem like it was going to.

And then he called me and said, listen, we had this
guy come in. We're using him on a couple other things. Would
you like to meet him? Maybe you could work something out with
him. So -~ and I'm not sure how the meeting was actually
arranged. I don't know 1f he was already there. And -- but I
went over there very shortly after the phone call and met
Angelo at their office. BAnd Pete introduced us in their
conference room, and we sat down and had a discussion.

Q. Okay. And after that discussion you were
comfortable using, I guess CAM, but I mean Angelo? After you
met him you were comfortable using them going forward?

Aa. I'sn not sure if comfortable is the right word. His
documentation was in order. His story seemed legitimate. And
by story he talked about being in the Army Rangers, which I
guess maybe wasn't even the case. But he'd been wounded and
different things, and so he had gotten licensed by this
federal office to be a disadvantaged business. And you know

seemed like —— certainly T think 21l of us as Americans want

oyt ——
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.left the room now I can talk about you behind your back

- conversation. Did you have any conversations like that with

e T T e e R i e ey

to support people who have come back from wars and those kinds
of things. So it seemed like somebody that we want to try and
do business with. TIf we have to put money in somebody's
pocket, I would rather put money in somebody like that's
pocket, rather than you know scmebody that maybe doesn't need

it guite so much.

Q. Sure.,
A. Does that make sense?
Q. Yeah., I think I understand what you're saying.
A, Okay.
Q. And I don't disagree with ycour rationale on that.
Let me -- you had the meeting, and it's Mojave and
you and Angelo. Did you have any conversations -- I know you

didn't with Angelo, but did you have any conversations with

anybody at Mojave -- okay, Angelo leaves —— kind of, okay, you

anybody at Mojave about Angelo and CAM and any concerns you

might have using them, you perscnally?

A. No, nobt reaily.
Q. Okay.
'A‘ Not —— not —— not relative to concerns. It was

basically, okay, he's willing to do it for what we're looking f
kS

to spend. And so let's go forward, let’s get paperwork

written up. At that point the job was getting very
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compressed. We needed to get some paperwork going and do some

different things or we were geing to start missing some

milestones.
Q. Qkay.
i So it was ~— it was —- we jumped right into, let's

get things going,

Q. Time was getting tight at that point?
A, Yes, sir.
Q. Okay. Now, when I talked to Shane he -- he —- he

discussed having some concerns about the credit or in his case
lack of credit that CAM had., Did you ever have a conversation
with Mr. Norman about that?

A. Not specifically, ne. I mean understanding was that
there was going to be -- and this was something that Pete and
I had talked about it -- that there was going to be an
exchange of checks pretty -— I mean we understood the fact
that —— that Angelo didn't have three quarters of a million
dollars to lay out and then wait for payment. We understood
that he was going to take payment from Mojave and then turn
right around and cut Cashman a check for our portion. So
there was —— I don't think there was ever any confusion in ——
in that regard. And that was our understanding of what was
going to happen.

You . know, Shane in his typical process had -- had

Angelo f£fill out a credit app. He alse —- I'm pretty sure --
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understood the same, and we moved forward.

Q. I think you answered -- you indirectly answered
this, but I just want to clarify. You had never worked with
CAM or Angelc Carvalho before? Cashman hadn't before this
project, had --

A, We had not, that's correct.

Q. Qkay. And again, if you could quantify it, um,
disadvantaged businesses, minority contractors, how often do

you think you'd worked with them on other projects? I think

the word you used was handful but -- less than ten?
a. Definitely less than ten, probably less than five.
Q. Just a couple of times?
A, Tes.
Q. Have you ever encountered anything like this? And I

say the "anything like this,” a failure to pay by a minority

contractor?
A. No.
Q. Okay. Did you -— aside from what you knew or didn't

know about CAM, you talked a little bit about Angelo
personally. &And he told you he was an Army Ranger and things
like that., Did you know any —— did you ever know anything
else about Angelo Carvalho personally, aside from he's working
with this company, he's doing this? Did you do any other
background check on him or anything like that?

A. With the exception of verifying his status with

o e e R S TR T T S L B R T TR AT e 2

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648-2595

JA 00002186




L T R A

o R - a

10
11
12
}3
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

KEITH LOZEAU - 9/4/2012

LR AR S i AT o Y I 52 O SRR L st St i Uk Vs M A T=mrrere e o bt v VAR AT R T

the -~ and I'm sorry, I'm forgetting the name of the
government entity that he was -- he was sponsored by.

Q{ Sure.

A I —~ with the exception of verifying that that
letter was legit, had no other knowledge of him.

Q. So basically just to summarize, just so I've got the
lay of the land: Time's getting tight. HNEDCO wasn't going to
work out. You had someone else that was hawving a hard time
getting a disadvantaged status; is that right?

Al That's correct.

Q. Okay. And get a call from Mojave. Say, hey, we
worked with this guy on this other project. Why don't you
come in and meet him, see if you have a comfort level. You go
in, have the one meeting at Mojave's office. Everybody shakes
hands. Submit the paperwork. 2and then you just kind of go

forward from there --

A, Yes, sir.
Q. -~ gorrect?
Let's take a look at ——.now things start getting --
going south.

(Exhibit Ne. 3 marked.)

Q. {BY MR. BOSCHEE) I suspect you'll recognize this
check. Take a second to look at it.

A. I might be familiar with it.

Q. I assume you'‘ve seen this check before?

- " P ey e
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A. Yes, sir. g

Q. Okay. This is -- you recognize this as the check é
from CAM for the full 755,893.89, correct? i
A. Correct. :

Q. And that was, as I understand from documents that :

e

have been filed and other things, that was the amount that -—-
that you guys were owed on this project for the equipment

provided, correct?

A, I don't have our invoice in front cof me, but T ——
it's —— I believe it's correct. f
Q. We'll look at those later, but it's close. Okay. %

LRI

2s I understand it, Shane Norman received this

P on Ll

check; is that right?
A, Yes.

Q. Ckay. Do you have any understanding -- I talked to

e

Shane about his, and you may not know., Do you have any
understanding as to why you guys accepted a postdated check
from Mr. Carvalho?

A. 1 —-- honestly, no.

Q. Okay. Did he ever communicate anything directly to
anybody at Cashman, you or otherwise, other than Shane, any
reason why he would need to give you guys a postdated check?

A. No.

Q. Okay. Did you ever have any conversations with
Shane Norman about the fact that you guys had accepted a

z
§
]
)

E T b g A ARE L £ 51 B T e e Y e L R T e HE e T T P P S A T e e e R

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648—2595

JA 00002188




@®w oy s W NP

i0
11
i2
13
14
i5
16
17
i8
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

KETTH LOZEAU - 9/4/2012

Page 37

postdated check from -- from CAM? é
H

A. No. g

_ : i

Q. Okay. I'm guessing it’s not something you typically :

do, Cashman typically does, accepting postdated checks in
situations like this?

A. Wot to my knowledge.

Q. Okay. You testified earlier that it was your --
that everybody's understanding kind of was: Mojave's paying
CAM, CAM's paying you guys, and that's going to be a fairly,
vou know, simultaneous process, correct?

A, Correct.

Q. Okay. Did it concern you that this check was dated
a handful of days after -- well, let me ask you this: Do you
have an understanding as to whether Mojave paid CAM the
755,893? Do you have an understanding as te whether that

actually happened?

A I believe that happened, ves.
Q. Okay. And then —-
A, I haven't seen that check, so I -- but I believe

it's happened.
Q. Okay. I can get it for you as an exhibit, but I
don't think it necessarily matters.

And then CAM gives you guys a check, but it's dated

Gk ol R e AL T LT ALY TR A LA bl i B i AR LA LT U
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a few days later. Did that give —- would that be something
that would cause you -- typically in a situation like this i
;
——— - T et et st e 2 A LR £ SN T Hrr 7 s Ea R

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648-2595

JA 00002189




10
11

12 |
13 |

14
15

16 |
17 §

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

KEITH LOZEAU - 9/4/2012

Page 38

L - sy U Bk W N

cause you concern?

MS. RCBINSON: T'm golng te object to incomplete
hypothetical, and he already stated he had no knowledge.

MR. BOSCHEE: Well —— okay. I'm saying --

THE WITNESS: I ——

MRE. BOSCHEE: -- as to this perscnally but —-

THE WITNESS: I was on vacation when this

ST NG

happened -- !
Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) Oh, okay. §
A. -— 50T didn't know -- I didn't know any cf this was

even going on until I got back --

Q. Okay.
A. —-— a week later.
Q. You get back and there's a stop payment on this -

check, correct?

A. Welcome back. Yes.
Q. Exactly. Again, thank you for that vacation.
Do you guys have —- [ mean -—- I say you guys, I keep

saying that, I mean Cashman. Do you have a procedure,

standard procedure, when a creditor fails to fund like -~ as

in a situation like this?

A. You know, that's probably a guestion best asked of
Shane.

Q. Okay.

A, -I'm not realily in the -- I'm not typically invelved
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directly in the collections business.

Q. Okay. Well, let me ask you a different way, because

I did ask Shane this. Are you aware of any protections that
the company has to try to protect itself from something like

this happening?

A. Certainly the lien process.
Q. Right.
A. You know, in a lot of cases, situation like this, we

would ask for a joint check. And I believe we did. '"And
again, this was Shane's, so I'm -- this is a discussion with
Shane, sc it's secondhand.

Q. Sure.

A. But my understanding is that he did ask teo do a

joint check and was told that that was & problem. And I'm not

- gsure he was ever told why it was preblem, but they didn't want

to do it.

v
n

Q. Okay. Were you ever told by anybody why a jeoint

check was a problem?

A. The cne time I had a discussion with Pete Fergen
about it early on he -- I think he had a concern that a joint
check would create a -- what am I looking for -- a potential

inconsistency in the process of using a disadvantaged
business. He was afraid the paperwork wouldn't look
appropriate.

Q. Okay. These --
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A. That was my impression of what he answered.
Q. _ Sure.
These other jobs that you had worked cn with
disadvantaged owners, with minority contractors, on those jobs
did you receive joint checks, or did it go the process like

this where the minority contractor got paid and then paid you?

A, Minority contractor got paid and paid us. We were
usually dealing with people of -- of greater financial
strength.

Q. But the process --

A. . And quite frankly, this was easily the biggest job

we had ever done in this process as well.
Q. Right.
A, We were usually working in the 30- to $50,000 range.

It was a completely different scale.

Q. Three quarters of a millicn dollars was a little
bit ~- .
A, Correct.
Wag the outlier in that?
A. Right.
Q. But the process, the actual process, was the same in

the other jobs as it was here where the minority contracter
gets paid, then you get paid? Kind of, you know, one check,

then another check?

A. Correct.
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Q. Ckay. As I understand it, no one else from Cashman
ever accompanied Mr. Carvalho to a fimancial institution oxr
anything like that, it was just Shane that was dealing with

him directly, correct? As far as you know? .

A. As far as I know.
Q. Now, going back to the joint check question, if you E
will, you worked on a few dozen projects with Mojave, have you

ever gotten a joint check from Mojave on .any of those

projects? That you can recall?

A. No, not that I can recall.
Q. Okay. And they -- and I understand they wouldn't —-
again, Pete Fergen may have said -~ but for whatever reason

they didn't want to do a joint check on this project, and you
guys proceeded anyway, right? I mean it wasn't -~ that didn't
cause you guys pause in not -- in not finishing -~ you know,
going forward and giving the lien release, did it?

A. bid it not give us pause? It was certainly not what

we would have preferred.

Q. Okay.
A. So to say that it -- it probably did give us a
little bit of pause. But you know in -- in my discussions

with Shane after the fact, as he said, you know, we don't
usually have a problem with $750,000 checks bouncing, it's
usually the $3,000 checks that bounce. So it Jjust -- it just

really at that point hadn't entered our mind that somebody
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would do secmething like this.
Q. Okay. We'll get to this in a minute as well but --
you did supply an unconditional lien release in exchange for

-- not a joint check, but the check from CAM, correct?

A. I don't know. I wasn't there.

¢.  That wasn't you?

A. That wasn't me.

Q. Do you have an understanding as to whether that

happened? I mean I don't -- we talked to Shane about this at

length but.
A. I don't know.
Q. Okay. In the absence of a joint check, are you

aware of any other precautions that you guys undertock at that

point?

A. Bgain, as far as I know the project was liened or
preliened.

Q. Ckay .

A. Which, you know, usually is security enough on a

government project that you're going to get paid.
Q. Sure.
And a lot of these are -- these are probably going
to be pretty quick gquestions because I talked to Shane about
them a little bit, but you may have —- there were a couple

things that he wasn't able to identify. BHe said you might

know. !
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A. Okay.
Q. Are you familiar with the steps that Cashman has
taken subsequent to the two bounced checks to obtain funds

from Mr. Carvalho?

A. You know, from a very high level. I know that I .

personally went and knocked on his door one day. Shane and I
both knocked on his door one day. We tried some very direct
things to try and physically collect money. HNot to threaten
the guy, but to you know compel him to pay. And those were
obviously unsuccessful.

But other than that when it reached the point of
where it was beginning to become apparent that there was
something not right, the first thing I did when I got back
from vacation 1s I heard about this, and I sent an e-maill to
Pete and I said‘should we be considering you guys stop payment
on his check, because we're ~— and -- and he had changed his
e-mail address, he changed his phone number. All -the
information that I had on him from his business caxd that he

gave me in our initial meeting was all invalid.

Q. Just so we're clear, when you say Pete, you mean
Pete Fergen?
A. Pete Fergen. Yep-
And so I e-mailed Pete and said, you know, we're
trying to reach him. We're not able to reach him. He's not

answering his phone. He's not answering his e-mails. Now it

e
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turned out that he had changed his phone numbers and e-mails
and T didn't know that. That's why he wasn't responding. Um,
well, I think.

But I did at that point ask Pete, do you guys want
to consider stopping payment on your check? And that was -~
that was the first thing that came to my mind is if this guy
is‘going to scamper, you know, maybe we can do something real
quick to protect Meojave.

Q. Okay .

A. and so —— and I don't know —— we never verbally had
a conversation about it, and so I don't know what they talked
about internally --

Q. Okay.

A. —— with that. But that was -- I mean it was -- at

that point I was still in the mode of it's not too late, let's

see if we can do something to protect us both. Mojave had
beern a tremendous partner to us for years. I didn't want to
see them get hurt either.

So -- and at that point that's what it -— it was
starting to look like because of this -- you know, this guy
was going to skip away with our money and go lay on a beach in

Tahiti. So that was -- that was step one.

And then we had some follow-up discussions. Pete

got us some updated contact information. And that was when

Shane and I started to get sort of aggressive with -— with
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trying to chase him down and collect the money. And it really
did -- you know, he told us some stories about being deployed
in Afghanistan and coming back in the middle of the night and
211 kinds of other craziness. And we didn't -- his stories
were just plausible enough to be believable that the reason
why he was having these delays -- the reason he stopped
payment on the check was because we were sending him e-mails

concerned about the funding of the check and all kinds of

It was really —- at that point it seemed very

i

|

: :

cther things. ;
|

f

i

plausible that everything was just sort of a honest mistake
and as soon as we got him face to face and at a financial
institution he would be able to get us a check legitimately,
get us paid, and all those other things. And that's what
Shane attempted to do by going down to his bank with him with
the second check.

Q. Right.

A. And then —— and then he bailed at the last minute,
is my understanding. And that was when —- that was when the
game was really afoot.

Q. Okay. Other than the e-mail with Pete Fergen, did

about, ockay, this guy doesn't have any money in his bank
account. He's skipped off with the funds. What can we do?

1
|
i
you have any follow-up conversations with folks at Mojave g
1
|
{
A. I don't recall. ;
|
;
H
4
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1 Q. Okay . _ H
2 A, I sheuid, but T don't. §
3 Q. pid you have any meetings with anybody at Mojave i
4 about this issue? §
5 A, I did not. %
6 Q. Okay. Do you have any understanding -- other than é
7 Shane, do you have any understanding as to whether anybody é
8 else at Cashman did, had meetings with Mojave? g
9 A The only meeting we had with Mojave that I recall %
10 specifically was —-- now Shane was having discussicns and those i
11 kinds of things, and I'm sure you've got a record of those. %
iz The only other meeting that we had was when we were i
13 a good bit of the way down the road and we had told them that :
§

14 we weren't going to perform startup on the equipment and those ?
15 kinds of things and things were starting to get sort of messy, !
16 I sent an e-mall to Brian and to Trey. And I said, you know, §
1+t we've done a lot of projects'togetper over the years -~ and T §
18 can't remember the exact words in my e-mail. I'm sure we ;
19 couid find it. g

20 But the gist of it was, we've done a lot of projects
21 over the years, we've had a lot of challenges, and we've

27 always been able to overcome them, can we get a few minutes of
23 your time to sit down and discuss this and see if there's some
24 place we can find some common ground and get this thing moving

25 forward.
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And I mean Troy called me within ten minutes of me
hitting the send button on the e-mail. He said, "Absolutely.
Come on down. Let's talk about it."

And I went down there with my boss, Joel Larson, and
Mike Pack, our president. And we met with Brian Bugney
(phonetic} and with Troy Nelson, and we discussed the
situation where 1t was and what we could do to get things
moving forward again somehow. And there really wasn't a whole
lot of resolution in that meeting. I mean certainly Mojave
had their stance and we had ours, and I don't think we really
made a lot of progress there.

Q. Well, let's walk through that a little bit. Let's
-- I want to follow up on that meeting because -- I may have
heard something different about that meeting.

But when you say Mojave had their stance and we had
our stance, specifically what do you mean by that?

A. You know, they wanted us:to perform startup, and
Mike basically told them that we would be glad toc perform
startup if they would cut us a check for $755,000 we were owed
and we would perform startup.

Q. Okay. So at that point Cashman had not performed
the startup?

Al That is correct.

Q. Okay. Maybe getting back into the technician days,

what was required at that point in time to perform startup, if
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you recall?

A, You know, at that stage of the game it was still

pretty early on. Mojave would -- to kind of step through at a

real high level, Mojave would perform installation, which
involves putting the equipment in place, hooking it up,
verifying wiring, doing some different things against the
schematics that we provided them. It's a pretty.
straightforward deal from their standpoint.

And then we have —— we have two stages to startup,
basically. We have a technician that goes out and verifies
that the installation is correct and everything was done
correctly. He verifies wiring and -- basically verifies
Mojave's work and makes sure that it's done to the factory
standard.

And the second part of startup is actually
physically starting to energize equipment, make equipment
work, activate the electronics, physically start running
equipment, setting up contrels, adjusting controls, doing
different things. And it all —-- there's a checklist that we
have to do on all the pieces of equipment. And that would be
the generators, the switchgear, the transfer switches and the
Mitsubishi UPS that are —— that we have checklists from the
factories ‘that tell us the things that have to be done.

And we go through those checklists. And it's

basically just verifying that everything is operating

e e Ty A Y S E N T E o p e
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correctly and there's no -- there's no defects in materials of

workmanship at that point. And then when we're done
performing those checklists, the customer signs a document
that they've received the equipment, it's in good running
order, and it now has a viable factory warranty.

Q. And those protocol codes that we talked about
earlier, about a half hour ago, that's part of that astartup

process as well, isn't it?

Al i A HE14

A. That would have been part of that process, yes.
Q. Energizing and all that --
A. Uh-huh.
Q. -~ okay.
And that's -- and none of that, the inspection of --

of the installation or the energizing startup, any of that,

that hadn’'t been done when you had the meeting with Mojave,

correct?
A. No. %
Q. As to the egquipment?
A. No.
Q. As I understand it, and correct me if I'm wrong

about this, but the equipment was delivered, but before you
guys could go back and inspect anything or do any of the

startup, you know, the energizing or anything, this -- this

check issue happened, and that was pretty much where you guys

stopped doing anything, correct?

:
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A, That is correct.

Q. Okay. Are you familiar —-- Shane talked about this a
little bit, and I don't know if you're familiar with it or
not. But there was -~ you guys submitted this to the -- to

the bad check department, I understand?

A. Of the District Attorney's office?

Q. Yes.

Al Yes. Correct.

Q. Okay .

A I'm not sure of the timing of that, but I know Shane
was —- that was one of his first things that he, Shane did.

Q. Are you familiar with what's happening in that case?

I understand a Grand Jury was apparently called?
A I testified in front of a Grand Jury. That's the

extent of what I know.

Q. Do you know what the proceeding was that you
testified at, Qhat stage of the -- of the process that wag‘in?

A. I -~

Q If you don’'t know, you don't know.

A, I don't know.

Q Okay. That's fine.

Do you have a general understanding of what's going
-— what's happening with that case? Obviously, you testified

50.

A, With the exception of my testimony, 1 have none.
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Q. Okay. Has Mojave participated in that -- in that
case at all, toc the best of your knowledge?
A. I don't know.
Q. Okay, that's fine.
I want to just get into the project briefly. I'm g
going to show you -- you're probably not going to know a lot g
about this document, but I'm going to show it to you anyway. %
A. Sure. §
{(Exhibit No. 4 marked.}
MS. ROBINSCON: Can we take a break?
MR. BOSCHEE: Sure. When we come back, we'll talk
about Exhibit 4.
(A brief recess was taken.)

MR. BOSCHEEF: Back on the record.

Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) You understand you're still under [
cath?
A. . Yes, sir.

4
H
Q. Okay. Off the record we had a ten-second }
conversation about Pete Fergen's position with Mojawve. Could g

you tell me what that is?
A. His -- he's a vice president. He manages a lot of

their -—- he manages most of their larger projects. He does

their major product purchasing, handles a lot of logistics, %
and has several folks werk for him that handle the —- that %

handle the direct logistics for him.
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Q. Okay. And he was someone that you dealt with? He's
someone at Mojave you personally dealt with a fair amount?

A, For a lot of years, yes.

Q. Right. Okay.

Before we broke I marked CAT application for credit

for CAM Consulting as Exhibit 4. You recognize this document?

A, I do.

Q. Did you see this document prior to using CAM on this

job? Did you review this document --

A. No.
~— I know Shane did?
A. No.
Q. Okay. But you had an understanding that an

Application For Credit was filled out by CAM, correct?

A. I had an understanding, yes.

Q. Because otherwise if they didn't you wouldn't have
been able to use them on —— use them going forward, could you?

A. Right. TEven the fact that it wasn't necessarily the

understanding that it was going to be a credit tramsaction, so0
to speak, we weren't extending them 30-day terms —-- even when
we deal with somebody on a cash basis, we have them fill out
these applications so we have their pertinent information and
they sign, you know, that they're going to comply with our
terms and conditions and those kinds of things.

Q. Yeah, you anticipated my next question, which is,

- - inininboi -
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have a minority contractor in a situation like this £ill out

the credit application so that you've got the information --

A. Yes ——

Q. -- correct?

A. - sir.

Q. Okay. And in this case, they filled out -- as I

understand the process, they f£ill out the Application For
Credit and then there's the ~- the invoiecing starts taking
place from you to them, correct? I mean, there's nothing --

there's nothing in between that is there?

A. I -
Q. As far as —-
A. You know, honestly I'm not sure. Ordinarily there

in this case or not, understanding that, it was going to be
1]

think it necessarily matters for what we're talking about.
But I guess what I'm asking is: There wasn't —-- there isn't

some other document that transpires between the credit

seen, is there, between you and CAM?

A, That -- a purchase order.

even though this was a cash transaction, you're still going to

Q. Okay. And we did talk to Shane about that. I don’

application and the beginning of invoicing that I just haven't

is a process of, you know, checking trade references and those

kinds of things. And I'm honestly not sure if Shane did that

sort of a check exchange. So I don't know the answer to that,

t
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Page 54
Q. Right.
A. Right. That's it.
Q. Let's go to the first invoice or an invoice.

{Exhibit No. 5 marked.)

Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) These are -- Exhibit 5, take a
look at them -- are some invoices that I'm guessing are going
to lock familiar to you I hope.

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Followed up with -- we've got the Bill of

Lading in the back?

A. Bill of Lading.

Q I assume you are familiar with these documents?

A, Yes.

Q Now, just to be clear about something, did -- to the

best of your understanding, Cashmaﬁ ever enter any contract
directly with Mojave on this project?

A. I don't know how to answer that question. And the
reason I say that is because the purchase order was a Mojave

Electric purchase order. It was on their letterhead. 2And I

believe the line said, Care of CAM Consulting or something --
Q. Okay.
A. -- along those lines. 8¢ I guess I'm not sure how
to answer that.
Q. Well, let me agk you -- let me ask you a better §

question: There's no —- there's no signed written contract

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECENOLOGIES - (702) 648~2595
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Page b5
between Cashman and Mojave that I just haven't seen for this
project, is there?

A. With the exception of that purchase order that —-
Q. The purchase order, right.

A. No.

Q. As a part of -~ of the overall -- of the overall

agreement between CAM, Cashman, and Mojave, could you just
tell me generally what was the scope of work that Cashman was
going to perform on this project, kind of start to finish?

A. Okay. We would take the purchase order and provide
what we call submittals, which is basically a technical
description of the equipment we proposed to provide. And we
provide those submittals to Mejave Electric, and they provide
those to Whiting-Turner, whe in turn provides them to the
architects and engineers that design the building.

and basically everybody just reviews everybody's
scope of work and what they're proposing to use to make sure
it meets with their specifications and requiremeants. And T
don't know the specific details relative to this because I'm
not the person that directly reviews those anymore. But I.
believe there was a few gquestions relative to some of our
equipment that the engineers came back with, but there was
nothing —-— they were all of a very minor nature. And -- and I
believe we addressed those questions.

And we received a release from Mojave Electric to go

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648- 2595
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ahead —- the release basically signals us, go ahead and order
the equipment. So we went ahead and ordered equipment. The
equipment gets built, produced, modified in some cases, and

then delivered to the site. 2aAnd that's the Bills of

Lading --
Q. Sure.
A, —— that are on here. BAnd we delivered the

generators and the transfer switches, the paralleling gear and
the UPS to the site, coordinating with -- I believe Chris
Meyers is the project maﬁager on this job for Mojave. And

we —— our project manager handled all the logistics with

where they needed it.
Mojave unloads the equipment, installs the
equipment, as we discussed earlier.

Q. Right.

A. When the e%uipment's all installed, they call us out
to perform startup., And I kind of outlined that process as
well., And at the end of all of that when the successful
startup is completed, we complete the paperwork that we submit
to Caterpillar and Mitsubishi that states that the startup was
completed by a factory-certified technician, everything
conforms to their requirements as far as the installation
goes, and we're good to start the warranty at that time on all

both those pieces of -- or three of those pieces of equipment.
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Page 57

Q. Ckay.

A. That's pretty much it. I -~ as I said earlier, some
of the, T guess what I would call fine-tuning of the project,
how they're going to comply with the fire departiment as far as
alarms and their fire command rcom and some different things,
a lot of that stuff is scmewhat of a fluid situation. And
when we get to the end -— we have an idea at the beginning how
we're geing to address that, but sometimes what we plan on
doing at the beginning is not exactly what happens at the end.

and so we —— we, you know, typically participate in
some meetings. We discuss how we intend to address whatever
it is they're asking for. &nd then we go through the process
of doing that. Tt's usually not a tremendocusly big deal.

Q. That was very thorough. it was a good answer to my
very vague question.

We discussed earlier the scope and you just
discussed the ;cope involved the installation of the st —¥éthe
startup primarily of a lot of this equipment down the line a

iittle bit. And that never happened, correct, because of the

check?
A Right.
Q. Right.
A, We put an all stop to everything.
Q. Sure.

Now, looking at this exhibit -~ looking at the Bill

T T A R C AL D L STy e i P i =L ETEESS £ SO TR IV s o
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Page 58

of Lading first ~- Bills of Lading, vou see at the top there
it says —— the date on there is 1/17/11. ©Does that comport
generally with your recollection of when most of this

equipment was delivered? January, early February of 2011°?

A. Withcout having my calendar in front of me it seems
right.

Q. Okay. The reason I ask -- and then we'll move on to
the next -- because the figst two invoices which constitute,
you know, the majority -- it's actually the first three pages

of this exhibit, you've got the first invoice there for

598,936.267
A, Uh-huh.
Q. And then the 156,627.92. BAnd they're both dated

February of 2011, February lst of 2011. Again, does that
comport generally with your understanding of when this
equipment was delivered to the site?

"A. ! The February lst date or the January 17thﬁ

Q. Well, either one. I mean I guess —-- let me ask you

a better question.

A. Because we have twe different things here.
Q. Sure,
A. The January 17th I'm going to say 1s probably the

date that the equipment left the factory, and then the
February lst date is probably pretty clese to when the stuff

actually arrived on the site.

A 2l e i SRR B R | A ML AR iR T A R S R
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Q. Okay .
A. Does that make sense?
Q. Yeah, and that's wha£ I was going to ask you?
A. Okay .
Q. The Bill of Lading is probably when the stuff
leaves. And then sometime before February lst is when the

equipment arrives on the site, because then you send the

invoice out because the equipment's been delivered --

10
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A.

Q.

then I've
like some

delivered

That is correct.

-- correct?

Okay. So that's most of it, it looks like. And
got another one that's the fourth page in. It looks
miscellaneous lugs essentially were —- were

for $329.71, it looks like March 25, 2011. Do you

have a specific recollection of that?

A. I have

Q. Okay.
equipment, other
delivered to the

is that right?

no idea.

But per your understanding, almost all of the :

than maybe these lugs, all of that stuff was

* 3 ebebde YA g e

site a little bit before February lst, 2011;

A. Yes.
Q. Okay. Sitting here -- and if you add —— I'll
represent to you if you add the three inveices up -—- we talked

about this earlier.

this, but

I'm guess -- it comes out to 755,893.89.

eTr L Bl CEA T S b T

SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702)

I did the math, and I'm not very good at

Do you
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LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHN

have an understanding of whether Cashman delivered any
materials or did any additional work on -— on the City Hall
project after the —-- you know, after March of 201172

A. The only thing that I know of is we have a -- we
have a factory project manager for paralleling gear

specifically who visited the site sometime after this, Jjust to

.review the installation and those kinds of things. And I

don't remember the specific date.

Q. When you say after this?

A. Right.

Q. Is that after the installation or after delivery?

A. After delivery.

Q. Okay. Would it have been shortly after the
délivery?

A, Pretty shortly.

Q. I'il introduce another exhibit. This might heilp.
(Exhibit No. 6 marked.) {

Q. .{BY MR. BOSCHER) Exhibit 6, I will represent is —-
is what appear would be my client's daily log.

A, Okay.

Qo. Okay. This is the last -- if you take a look -~ and
we've got some —— we've got some dates on here. BAnd it's got,
(as read): Description of work performed. It's kind of hard
to read. And this goes into -- this is that right -~ this is

between, if you look at the dates, January 20th, Janmary 21st,
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Page 6l

after the Bill of Lading, but before the invoice.

this, after January 21st?

Cashman, he works for the factory.

Q. Okay.

I couldn't tell you what the date was.

Q. Okay.

client”?

MR. BOSCHEE: Oh, I1'm sorry.

have soc many.

MER. BOSCHEE: I understand.

out by Mojave.

MS. ROBINSON: Oh.

says, (as read): Trade, Mojave.

Q.

PP ke £ D L R T L e S P

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702)

January 2lst, this is the last record that my client

A. S0 I -— and I couldn't tell you what the date was.

MS. ROBINSON: Can you clarify who you mean by "my

You've got —-- what you've got here is a -- is a

Whiting-Turner document. I believe this was actually filled

MR. ROSCHEE: By the subcontractor. And the reason

I say that is because it's a Subcontractor's Daily Log, and it

{BY MR. BOSCHEE) So someocne from the factory came

has of Cashman actually being onsite. Do you have any

understanding or documentation that Cashman was onsite after

A. I don't because that gentleman doesn't work for

T P ST e v

rrYa— T
Y ek i

MS. ROBINSON: Who you'ré identifying, because you

s
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cut in the -- you khow, shortly after delivery of the stuff to E
inspect it, but you don't have any knowledge or documentation %
that anybody from Cashman was actually onsite or delivered any

materials after January 21st of 2011, deo you?

A. Not to my knowledge.
Q. Okay. Do you have any -~ again, there's the facteory
person that came out -- I understand the factory person is not

a Cashman employee, correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. Okay. Do you have any -- any record or knowledge of
any work that Caghman performed after January 21st of 20117

A. I don't.

Q. Kind of what I'm getting at is, we talked abou£ the
fact that there was a bunch of stuff that was going to happen,
but then the check incident happened so you guys never got to
the inspection and then the -- the startup. So after delivery
of this stuff, January 20th and 2lst, you guys were done, you
guys didn't do any other work on this project, correct?

A. Right. At that point we're in a wait mode for
Mojave to contact us and let us know they want us out to the
site.

Q. Sure.

And then the -- the check unfortunateness happens
and then that was that?

A. Right.

ST b b R A RS
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1 Q. So the scope of work that we talked about earlier g
2 that include the startup and everything, there's no -~ we're I
3 not -- we don't have any dispute between us, you guys didn't ;
4 complete the scope of work that you had originally agréed to
5 do, correct? - z
6 A. Correct. E
7 Q Because you didn't get paid? g
8 A, Right. g
9 Q Right. Okay. |§
i0 and the work that was left to be completed, just so §
il I've got this clear in my mind, was you guys were going to go %
12 out inspect the installation that Mojave and/or whoever had %
£
13 done with the equipment and then perform the startup, correct? %
H
14 A. Correct. i
15 Q. And that was going te involve those protocol codes . z
16 that we talked sbout earlier, coriect? §
‘ ;
17 A, That would]involve ~~ that would be part of it,. yes. é
18 Q. Okay. Did you guys receive -~ do you recall g
19 receiving a demand from Mojave to complete the work == to %
20 complete your scope of work? Does that ring a bell? |

A, I'm not sure about a demand. I got an e-mail

Let's start there.

A. Yeah. I got an e-mail asking and -- and I, you

¥now —— from Pete Fergen.

s e e e T
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Q. Okay.

A, And I said, you know, we're not in a positien to be
able to do that. We got to work this money thing out first
and then we'll be ocut.

Q. Sure.

Was that e-mail before or after you had the meeting
with Brian and Troy?

A. Before.

Q. Okay. So Pete sends you an e-mail saying, hey, you
know got this problem, but we really need you to come out and
get the inspection and startup done. You say, no, you know
this money issue is a big deal. And then sometime after that
you send an e-mail to Troy. Troy calils you up. You guys go

and have a meeting, but that doesn't resoclve it either,

correct?
Al Correct.
Q. .= Okaj, And just so I understand, the reason you guys

-- when I say "you guys," you being part of the
decision-making process, I'm assuming, did not do the

inspection and startup is because you didn't get paid,

correct?
A, Correct.
Q. Were there any other issues that you -- I mean --

and again, you know, other issues besides the $755,000 you --

but were there any other issues or reasons that you wouldn't

T DR T S O Y T I R S R s
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have gone ocut and done the inspection or the startup?

A. No.

Q. Did you receive any complaints from Mojave about the
quality or functioning of the materials that were provided?

A. No.

Q. Okay. Do you recall anybody at Mojave ever
requesting repair of any of the equipment that was provided?

Does that ring a bell?

A. No.

Q. You perscnally didn't -- don't have knowledge of
that?

A. Don't recall that.

Q. Then obviously the follow-up of that would be: You

don't recall ever actually going out and repairing any of the
equipment out at the job site, do you?
A, No.

Because again, January 2ist that's--- you

Q. Ckay.

guys haven't gone back out there to do any inspection,

installation, or repair any other work out there, have you?
A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. Okay. Do you have an understanding -- did anybody

at Mojave communicate to you they were going to try to hire
scme folks, other contractors, to complete your work?

A. Yes.

Q. Who communicated that to you?

- —— s
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66

A. Pete Fergen.
Q. What did Pete tell you?
3. He saild first he was going to contact some

neighboring CAT dealers to see if they could get one of them
to do it. And then -- and that was sort of the end of our
conversation in that regard because it —- because the
understanding is that only an authorized Caterpillar dealer
can start this egquipment up.

Q. Okay.

A. S0 I -—- when -- when we started hearing rumors that
maybe there was an independent company out there starting it

up, I was not aware that they we're looking at hiring an

independent.

Q. Okay. When you are talking to Pete and had the
meeting with Brian and Troy-*— I want to be -- I want to be
clear about this so I -- so I know. There was no dispute that

you guys weren't -~ that you werenFt paid,. that CAM's check
bounced. Why were they asking you -- or what were they
communicating to you that they want -- as a reason to go out
there and finish the job?

A. You know, our discussions at that point were

basically it needs to be done.

Q. Ckay.
A. They have obligations to Whiting-Turner. Whiting-
Turnher has obligations to the owner. And they —— you know, it
LRyl L T B L T S T ok AU I e e L i s HEn T L I L LA A s T e O o S0 | B T e S i o o Sy T L kL S A SR eSS S
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1 needed to be done.
2 Q. Okay. During those meetings, those communications,
3 did they articulate to you that, well, we did pay. We paid g = |
4 CAM, so the work needs to get done and you guys need to figure
5 out what to do with CAM? Was part of the rationale, if you
o will?
7 A. I'm not sure if that was specifically spoken --
8 Q. Okay.
9 A, —-- but I -~ that was certainly the implication.
10 Q. Okay. And sitting hexe right now -- again we talked
11 about this earlier -- but you don't -—- you don't have any ——
12 you don't dispute that Mojave paid CAM, do you?
13 A. T — without having direct knowledge of it, I don't
14 necessarily dispute it.
15 Q. Ckay. &aAnd we talked earlier, you didn't actually do
16 the exchange, but there was an unconditional lien release
17 provided for this work, torrect? x
18 A. I -~ it lecks like you have it there so I'm —--
19 Q. I do. I'm going to show it to you.
20 A. I've never —- I've not seen it. §
Z21 Q. You've never sSeen it? .
22 A. I have not. E
23 Q. Okay . E
24 A. I don't -- that's a Shane Norman —-- that's his %
Z5 department and their function that takes care of that. ;
|
e ————————————— e ——————————————
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Page 68
Q. Understand. 2And I'm not going to have you lock at a
document that you haven't seen.
Were you —-- did you play any part in -- in the lien

process in terms of getting the process started or anything
else, or was that all Shane?

A. Pretty much all Shane. The only thing —— the only
part of that process that our department has is we provide the
customer with a form to fill out with the prelien information
so we have all the interested parties' information and those
kinds of thing. Other than that, I -- after that, it's pretty

much Shane's department'’s —-

Q. Okay .
A. -— rodeo.
Q. Okay. The lien's dated April 26th, 2011 and sigmned

under a notary. Do you have any reason to dispute that date
as the lien date? I mean does thaf comport with your
understanding of when you guys liened the project -- or I
mean --
MS. ROBINSON: I'm going to —
Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) -- gave the lease ~- gave the

release? Because we're going to lock at the Right to Lien in

a second.
A. I guess I have no comment.
Q. Qkay .
A. I don't know.
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You just don't know?
A. Right.
Q. Okay. Well, let's take a look. Maybke you don't -~

maybe you don't know this, I've got a Notice of Right to Lien.
Have you ever seen that document before?
FL I have not.
Q. Did you provide any equipment -- any equipment? You
did provide equipment.
Did you provide the information with respect to

getting that process started, the Right to Lien?

A. Again —-
M3. ROBINSON: I object, he —— asked and answered.
MR. BOSCHEE: Well, he said he -~ ;
o. (BY MR. ROSCHEE) He ({sic) said that your company 3
provided some information with respect to the release and --
and the lien itself. The prelien information -- ;
A. Right. %
Q. -~ like what did you -~ what did you provide in é
terms of the prelien? g
a. The prelien is essentially -- I haven't seen the i
form in a while, to tell you the truth. But the last time I ;
saw 1t, it's basically a list of the interested contractors on I

the job, the owner, names, addresses, contacts. There's

really not much else to it. g

Q. And you didn't -- you've never actually seen the --

TP e
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the Notice of Right to Lien for -- with respect to this
project, have you?
A. I have not.
Q. Well, then I'm not going to ask you about it.
Have you ever seen the lien, the actual Notice of
Lien for this project?
A. I have not.

Q. Did you participate in any way, shape, or form with

putting that document together?

A. Again, with the exception of the prelien process,
no.

0. Okay. This document ~— this Notice of Lien is dated
June 21st, 2011, signed by Shane Norman. Do you have any
reason to -- and it looks like it was recorded on -- the next
day, June 22nd, 201 by Ms. Robinson. Do you have any reason .
to doubt that that's the date the lien was recorded? Any
reason to dispute tth?

AL No.

C. Okay. Follow-up gquestion, I'm going back again off

my own line: Do you have an understanding as to why you guys
didn't give a conditional lien release with respect to the
755,000, as opposed to an unconditional lien release?
A. I don't.
MS. ROBINSON: Objection, asked and answered.

{(BY MR. BOSCHEE) Or was that a —— was that a -- was

T Dbt e (4 L X et
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that a decision you were part of?

{

A, Again, I was on vacation. %
:

Okay. i

3

A. So that was a Shane decision. k
|

Q Okay. You were completely out of the loop on that?

A. That is correct.

Q On the other projects you had worked on or that you
were a part of with the disadvantaged business owners or

minority contractors where the check was cut and then the next

.

check was cut to you guys, did you provide unconditional lien

releases on those projects, if you know?

A. if we liened the project, at some point we would
have had to provide an unconditional release to close out the
job.

Q. Okay .

A. So logic says yes, we have.  I'm not —— I don't see

il
b

them very‘oftén. . N

Q. Right,
Let me -- let me ask you another way. On those
other projects -- we talked about the process, right. There's

~- the minority contractor gets a check, and then they cut.a
check to you guys, correct?

A. {Witness nodding.}

Q. Do you have an understanding as to whether a

conditional release was given upon the first check being cut
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and then an unconditional release being given once the
minority contractor's check cleared your financial
institution, or was it just, it got paid, hefe's the
unconditional release, if you know?
A. I don't know. That's a Shane guestion. Sorry.
Q. Okay, veah. And I think we did ask Shane that
question, but anyway.
MS. BRISCOE: He said you would know.
MR. BOSCHEE: He did say you would know.
MS. ROBINSON: I don't recall that actually.
MR, BOSCHEE: He did. Well, I've got his transcript
here.
{BY MR. BOSCHEE) But he said you might know that.
A. - That's —— that's typically his.
I —— i can tell you, if you take the minority

contractor out of it ——

Q. Yeah.
A. -—- if we're dealing directly with a contractor,
ordinarily the conditional release is provided upon -- we

usually get paid in stages on a job like this, and they'll
hold what's called a retention. And we'll get -- we'll sign a
conditional release on the payment —- the majority payment,
and we won't provide the unconditional until the retention is

paid.

Q. Until the thing's paid in full?
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AB. Right.

Q. But in this case, the 755 was —-- was the entirety of
-~ was essentially the entirety of the payment --

Aa. It's -— yeah —--

Q. ~~ per the invoice?

A. I'm frusting your math.

Q. Right. Don't make that mistake the second time
but -- but it is, that's the correct number,

Is that -- and that would —- given that there's no
necessary retention at that point going forward, would that
be -- that would be a typical reason -- you don't know
specifically as to this project, but that would typically be a
reason toc give the unconditional instead of the cenditional,

because there's no retention to hold back?

A, Cerrect.
A. That would make sense.
Q. Do you have any knowledge of a claim made to

Whiting-Turner with respect to this amount owed?

H
:
i
i
|
i
i
:
;
Q. Okay. ‘ i
i
§
i

A. I don't.

Q. You don't. That was again -- that was a Shane issue
completely?

A, Yeah. Yep.

Q. So sitting here right now you're not —- you're not g

familiar with the 90-day -- what's typically termed the %0-day
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notice to the general contractor, with respect to this?

a. That was something that Shane was working with Mike
on, and I —— frankly I'm not -- I wasn't involved.

Q. Okay. That would be something -~ if -~ if there was
something that Shane didn't know in his deposition about that,
that would be something I would need teo talk to Mike about?

A. Mike Pack.

Q. The president?  }

A. The president of our company.

o Okay.

A. I guess so, yes.

Q Okay. Sitting here right now are -- and this is the
only -- I'll represent this is -- this is a document disclosed
because I -- I don't have any other ones.

Are you aware of any -- of any other notices that

were sent to Whiting-Turner, other than perhaps this 90-day
notice? I mean did you personally}communicate anything to
Whiting-Turner, i.e., we didn't get paid., You know, we're
going to make a claim on your bond. Anything like that?

A. I did not.

Q. Okay. That again would have been Shane and Mike,

thecretically, or Mike?

A Yes, I —— for want ¢f a —— I'm not sure.

Q. Okay. The 90-day notice that was provided to

Whiting-Turner is again -- it's at that same -- this one is
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June 24th, 2011. Do you have -- sitting here right now, do
you have any knowledge or information as to -- as to any
notices that were provided to Whiting-Turner prior td that?
Al No, I don't.
Q. Okay. Do you sitting here right now have any
knowledge of any notices that were provided to any surety

companies, Whiting or Mojave's, at any point during this

process?
A. No direct knowledge.
Q. Okay. BAnd who -- if anybody had that direct

knowledge would it be Shane or Mike?

A, Yes.

Q. I want toc go back to the initial meeting and -— the
meeting with Angelo and you and Mojave.  Specifically to the
best you can recall, what did -- and was that -- was that with
Pete or was it with Troy or Brian?

A, It was with Peter.

Q. Okay. Specifically, what did Pete tell you about

their relationship or their working relationship on the other

projects with CAM Ceonsulting?

A. Almost nothing.

Q. Okay.

A, He basically just introduced us and said that we've
been —- we've had -- he -- I think he saild scmething to the

effect of, we're working with him on some other things. Seems

R e
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like a really straight up guy. Can probably get us where we

need to go on this project.

0. Okéy.
A, I'm paraphrasing, but I —- pretty close.
Q. I understand. And it's been awhile, so remember

specific words in a conversation is difficult. I get that.
But during that conversation that kind of led you to

the meeting with them, did be articulate that they had any
kind of a special working relationship or that they had a
personal relationship with Angele Carvalho, other than just
working on some projects with him?

A. No.

Q. Now, Cashman —-- you guys -- Cashman has alsc brought
a claim in this case for fraudulent transfer against Mojave.

Are you familiar with that?

A. I'm not.

Q. You're not?

A, No.

Q. Okay. So asking you about the factual basis for

that is probably —-- prcobably something you're not going to

know about.

Let me ask you this: To the extent that any
investigation was performed after the fact, after the check
didn't clear, as to other business dealings between Mojave and

CAM Consulting, would you have been involved in that?
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A. The only knowledge I had of any sort of prior
relationship between Mojave and CAM was when we got —— when we
subpoenaed CAM's financial records and bank statements and
there were payments made tc Mojave that appeared to be for
transactions prior to this one. But that's the extént cf what
I know.

O. Okay. Did you —-=- after you got those bank
statements, did you perform any follow-up investigation beyond
that as to the other jobs or what the source of those payments
would be?

A. No. And when we sat in that meeting with Brian and
Troy, you know Mike mentioned those transactions specifically.
I think sort of —- he didn't want te -— I'm not sure why he
didn't want to ask directly. But he didn't want teo ask
directly about them. But he did menticn these transactiens. .
And Brian and Troy pretty much just didn't acknowledge one way
or the cther their k%owledge of those transactions.

Q. I got to follow up on that because I don't ~-- when
you say they didn't acknowledge ome way or another, I mean --
let me -- let me see if I understand this. What
specifically did,Mike-ask them about those other payments?

A, I believe Mike said something to the effect of that
-- you know, the transactions we see on here, we sée a couple
of payments to Mojave for -~ and they were large dollar

amounts.
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Q. Uh-~huh,
A. And Brian and Troy basically just didn't say
anything.
Q. They didn't deny them? They didn't tell -- say they

were for another job? They didn't say anything?
A. They didn't acknowledge.
Q. Did they just sit there silently and not say

anything about that question? It's a pretty loaded gquestion.

I mean I -- they didn't say a word?
A. They did not say a word.
Q. Did either of them say, well, we're just not going

to talk about that or we're just not going to address that,

that's apples and oranges, or I mean they literally didn't say

anything?
A. They did not acknowledge it.
Q. I'm just imagining Troy Nelson sitting in a room not

saying anything upon a guestion like that. I'm having a hard

time reconciling that but.

a. He's not the kind of guy to hold back on something.
And that was why it was sort of noteworthy. That's why T !
remember it specifically is -~ you know, Troy's not -- well, n
you know him. He's -~ he's not a —- he's not somebody who's é
not a forthcoming person. BAnd that was —— that's why it U

sticks in my mind, because it was so out of character.

Q. Well, did you or Mike follow up with any questions
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topic, Mojave wants you to go forward because it needs to get
done. You guys aren't going to go forward do the ins -- oxr do
the checklist and then do the startup, provide the codes,

because you weren't paid, correct?

Page 79
about those checks after the non-response? ;
A. No. We moved on to talking about other things i
i
relative specifically to this preject. g
i
Q. Like what? .
A. How do we go forward? %
T
Q. and at that peoint you reached an impasse because g
there was no way to ge forward? g
‘ 5
A. That is correct. 2
Q. You guys, as I understand it -- as I understand the §
%
i
T
|
i
i
d
i
:
A. Correct. %
Q. Okay. You're a tech guy, so I'm going.to ask you a
1
little bit of a technical question. 3And we're still arguing i
about this with the judge a little bit but. . .- . E
If Cashman has to go in and provide those protocol
codes at this stage in the game, does that -- what concerns
would you have about doing that today? i
A. Concerns? None from a technical standpoint.
Q. Okay.
A. I mean there's no physical reason why we wouldn't be 3

able to do that. 1It's just -- it's proprietary information. i

It's privileged and --
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I

Q. You haven't been paid? %

A. Correct. E
Q. Okay. But from an actual just going in there and

putting the codes in and getting the stuff communicating, like

physically there's no real issue there, you Just don't want to

AT b oGP W s St 2 A

do it because you haven't gotten paid, right?
A. That is correct,.
MR. BRISCOE: Let me take two minutes, review my
notes, and we might be able to get you out of here pretty
quick.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

e —

(A brief recess was taken.)

MR. BOSCHEE: Back on the record. We'll be quick.

THE WITNESS: No problem. I appreciate it.

ikt bl ol G

Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) You understand you're still under
oath?

A, Yes, sir.

Q.. Factory guy came out and inspected the site at some
point. You don't know -- we don't have dates, that's fine,
Did he ever provide you a report that you xrecall?

A. Not us. !
Q. Okay. Who did he provide it to? z
A. Back to the factory. i
Q. Okay. Did you ever have a conversation with the E
|
i

factory guy about what he saw out there or anything like that?
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A. Had a conversation with him, it was -~ you know, it

was basically, the equipment is installed. It looks like it's

being installed correctly. But that was -- it was still very
early --—

Q. Right.

A. -- stages, so there wasn't anything really done yet.
It was more —-- honestly, I think he wanted a weekend in Vegas.
So —— 1 hate to say it but. .

Q. I can't hate him for ﬁhat.

But it was early on in the process. He just went
out, locked at it, said things are going smoothly, chow?

A, Right.

Q. When you talked to Pete initially about CAM and he
gsaid they were working on other jobs with CAM, did he tell you
what other jobs they were working on with him?

A, He did not.

Q. Okay. But you knew thatrthey were working -- you
knew that Pete was working on at least a couple other jobs

with CaM before that meeting, right?

A. Yes.

Q. The meeting -- the one meeting with all three of
tham?

A. Right. Yes.

.Q. Ckay. And did he articulate any problems that they

had had with CAM on any other projects?
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A. No, he did not.
Q. Did he talk about any -—- any money that was due and

owing on those other jobs during that meeting?

A. We did not even -— didn't have that in depth of a
discussion.
Q. Didn*t get to that. Okay.

We talked about the fact that you haven't seen the
prelien notice and you haven't even seen the lien, per se, but
one thing that Shane did identify you as knowing is, who's
going to figure out the amount of the mechanic's lien. Would
that be you or would that be someone else at Cashman that
would determine the amount that Cashman’'s going to lien for?

A. It would be probably somewhat of a joint discussion,

Q. Okay .

A. Certainly myself and the account manager on the job
have the most direct knowledge of what work -— what costs go
into the total makeup of the job, if that's -- T think that's
what you're asking.

Q. Well, I am, and that's why —— I guess what I'm
getting at it is, okay, we've got a $755,893.89 lien on this
project. Did you participate in coming to that numbexr?

A Yes.

Q Who else participated in coming to that number?

A. My account manager.
Q

And so who did you provide that number to? I mean

648-2595
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1 obviously you didn't see the lien, you didn't see the prelien,
2 but the information was provided to somebeody. Who did you
3 provide that to?
4 A. Within Cashman?
5 Q. Yeah. Right.
6 A, In other words, for them to be able to generate that
7 paper?
8 Q. Right.
9 A. Shane.
10 Q. Ch.
11 A. and I'm going to guess that he just did it off the
12 invoice -~
13 Q. Ckay .
14 A. -— or invoices.
15 Q. Sure.
16 ' But you were involved in coming up with the number?
17 A. Yes, sir. ﬁ
18 0.  Okay. Let's say a 755,893.89 bowl of gold coins I
19 fell in your lap today and you were able to go out and
20 complete the project, get the inspection and the startup dene.
21 How much time would that take? %
22 A. Difficult to say without having a knowledge of the !
23 condition of the site., WNow, I'm assuming that it's pretty

late ir the construction stages. So assuming that everything

AN Pt ek LR A LS 2ol 2

is —— the table is set, so to speak --
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1 Q. Uh-huh. g

2 A. -— and everything is ready and everything that é

3 Mojave did was done correctly and all those other things, you %

4 know, a typical time frame for a project like this would be k

5 two weeks.

3] Q. Okay.

7 A. Maybe three.

8 Q. Two to three weeks.

9 Would that be the same as had -- I mean, let's say i
10 caM's doesn't -~ let's say he's got sufficient funds back in §
11 the day and you guys had gone out and done the inspection when |
12 -- when Mojave called, and the startup. Would that time frame
13 I be the same at that point as it is now, or would it take a
14 little longer or shorter?

15 A, Hard to say. ILikely longer, only because —-- if
16 you've ever been on a construction site, it's kind of a mad

17 | house. And there's @eople running all over the place and

18 doing different things and everything gets sort of fragmented.
19 And there's probably -- there probably would have been days in
20 there where we would not be able to get our work done.

21 So we would say, you know something, where you are

with your situation, we can't get any work done today so we're

not going to have a technician out there. So if the —- the

time —- the total time frame should be the same. Well, I

shouldn't say that. The net time frame would be the sane.
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l think I can answer that accurately.

The total would prokably ke scmething longer, maybe four
weeks.

o. Sure.

We're kind of talking about the same thing. If it

would take you 14 days, and right now you could de it 14
consecutive days, back a -- you know, a year ago it would have
maybe taken you 14 days with breaks?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. How much expense would -- would -- ballpark
would Cashman incur on that process?

A. You know, it depends a let on how much is done
correctly at the site,

Q. Right.

A. It can vary pretty widely. I -~ man, I den't recall 1
how much we had in there for startup.

o. Okay . %

A. - 1 mean we can take a literal sense of it and a—{two

guys for 14 days and do the math at $110 an hour --

Q. Sure.

A. -- and come up with a number. But that's just the
—-— that's just the man hours. It doesn't count if we had to

purchase any materials or anything. So I don't -- I don't

Q. So you don't know what the hard cost would be

because it would depend on whether everything was installed
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‘correctly?
A. 2And ~- right.
Q. And then rest of it would be man hours. And then

it's just a question of two people, 14 days, X amount per
hour, figuring that math out?

A. Right. And then -- and then as we discussed
earlier, the last part of that is working out the final
details. How are —— how is the communicaticn with the
building going to work, how is the communication with fire
command going to work, those kinds of things that get hammered
out in the latter stages of the process. So there could be a
variance there in cost as well.

Q. Okay. Well, how -- when you say a variance in cost,

I mean how much variance are we talking about there? I mean

ballpark? It doesn't seem like a lot, but I —-- you know.
A. Well, you know, it depends ——
Q. | Yeah.
A. —— if -- if they want some high-level communications

at a digital level, I mean that's a 5-, 56,000 process.

Q. Okay. HNot a high cost relative to what we're
talking about in this case?

A. Relative to three guarters of a million dollars not
high.

0. Well, 5-, $6,000,

not insignificant either?

A. Right.
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Q. So I mean you would have to come out-of-pocket
for -— okay.

Just specifically talking about the installation of
the protocol codes, how much time is that going to take? If
it has to happen? If it.

A. You know I really can't answer. BAnd the reason I
can't answer 1is when I was a technician, we didn't have all
these digital communications. So I can tell you that we have
to go all the way back to the beginning. It's not something
you can pick up in the middle and do just that. We have to go
back to the'very beginning and start from ground zero and work
through the checklist process that Caterpillar gives us to get
to that point where we start getting things communicating with
each other.

Q. Ckay. And to go back from the beginning and go
through the checklist, how —- I mean, approximately how long

is that going to take?

a. That's 14 days.

Q. That's 14 days?

A. Yep.

Q. Well, so what you're saying is you can't -- as I

understand this, you can't install the protocol codes without

|
z
|
:
o
|
|

doing the whole startup?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay.
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A. Whatever has been done cut there, and I doen't know i
what has or has not been done, is —-—- is -— how do T say
this —— is inconsequential. It doesn't make any difference

. what they did or didn't do. From Caterpillar and Mitsubishi's

on the UPS side's standpoint,'ncne of that work was done by a
factory-authorized rep. Sc all of that has to be done by a
factory-authorized rep. So -- and because our folks don't
know what was done or what was nct done you can't —- you can't
try and pick up somebody else's work in the middle. They're
going to have to start from the beginning and go all the way
through the process.

Q. Ckay.

A. And if that doesn't happen —— well, two things could
happen. Number one, it could be done incorrectly. A step
could be missed, and that could be expensive. The second part
is there won't be a viable warranty con any of the products
until that is done. !

Q. Ckay. Sitting here right now though, you don't know

whether a factory-authorized representative has been out there

and done any of that work, do you?

A. I'm relatively sure that that has not happened.
Q. Based on?
A. Based on discussions we had with Mitsubishi as far

as them dispatching somebody. They were not going to dispatch

anybody without our knowledge. AaAnd they say that they

Ei
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Page 89
haven’'t.
Q. Okay .
A. And as far as Caterpillar goes our ~- we've had —-

we have very specific what we call sales and service
agreements with Caterpillar. And if ancther dealer is going
to come in and work in our territery, perform any sort of work
whatsocever, they need to netify us that they're going to be in
our territory working. And we've had no CAT dealer notify us
that they were going to be working cn the jeb.

So could somebody have snuck in and done it?

Sure.
A. Yes. It's not very likely.
c. Okay. Have you had communications with anybedy at

Caterpillar about not wanting anyone else to come in and do
that, primary because you guys haven't -- or are owed a lot of

money on this project?

A, I don't recall.
Q. How about Mitsubishi, communications with;them‘along |
those same lines? E
A I --
Q. I.E., don't let -- don't let someone else come in
and do this because we're owed a lot of money and -- and we k

want to get paid?
A. Yeah, I den't recall -- yeah, no, I don't recaltl F

having that conversation.
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1 Q. But nobody from Caterpillar or Mitsubishi could do

2 anything with the protocol codes? That's something that you

3 guys would have to do, because like you said earlier, I think

4 it's proprietary? E

5 A. Correct. |

6 Q. All right. And the other kind of question I had --

7 it'gs kind of random -- when you say the factory guy, which 2

g factory?

9 A, We have several involved. What -- carry a couple of %
10 different terms. Their official name at this point is
11 Caterpillar Switchgear. It use to be known as Intelligent
12 Switchgear Organization. And then it was known as CAT ISO
13 {phonetic) for awhile during a transition period. But their.
14 official title now is Caterpillar Switchgear. :
15 Q. Okay. 1 %
16 I A. And it's a division of Caterpillar. And they %
17 have ~- they have their own people that go out and do site g
18 inspections and project management and those kinds of things. f
19 It's a very —— very technical business that most dealers don't %
20 have the real ability to support, so they have factory folks %
21 that help out. é
22 Q. Okay. That was -- that was where I wés going. I i
23 wasn't sure where -- which of the factories he came from,

specific things. Is there anything else about your

L
i
We talked about a lot of subjects today and a lot of ;
3
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invelvement with the City Hall project and specifically
relating to your dealings with Mojave Electric that I did not
ask you about today, but that you feel are important to my
understanding of what -- what the dynamic here is, issues
going forward?
A. No.

.MS. ROBINSON: Object, form of the question.

THE WITNESS: No.

MR. BOSCHEE: Okay, I don't have any further
questions.

I'm assuming Jernnifer doesn't have any questions?

MS. ROBINSON: No.
{Signature requested.)

{The proceedings concluded at 11:36 a.m.)
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I, Tammy M. Breed, CSR No. 305, Certified
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Reporter, certify:
That the foregoing proceedings were taken before me
at the time and place therein set forth, at which time the

witness was put under oath by me;

That the testimony of the witness, the
guestions propounded, and all objections and statements made
at the time of the examination were recorded stenographically

by me and were thereafter transcribed;

i
%
That the foregoing is a true and correct transcript '
of my shorthand notes so taken.
I further certify that I am not a relative or
employee of any attorney of the parties, nor financially g
i
interested in-the action. §
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of

Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct.
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
_ ok ok ok ok
CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, a
Nevada corporatioen,

Plaintiff,
CASE NO. A642583

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
CAM CONSULTING, INC., a Nevada }
corporation; ANGELO CARVALHO, an )
individual; JANEL RENNIE aka JANEL )
CARVALHO, an individual; WEST EDN2 )
ASSOCIATES, LTD., dba MOJAVE )
ELECTRIC, a Nevada corporation; )
WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, a Surety; )
THE WHITING TURNER CONTRACTING )
COMPANY, a Maryland corporaticn; )
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF )
MARYIAND, a surety; DOES 1 through )
10, inclusive; and ROE CORPORATIONS)
1 through 10, inclusive, )

o £ ] AL

Defendants.

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.
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DEPOSITION OF DAVID PHILLIPS
" Taken on Thursday, January 10, 2013
At 3:00 p.m.
At 6725 Via Austi Parkway, Suite 290
| Las Vegas, Nevada

REPORTED BY: CHRISTY LYN DeJONKER, CCR NO. 691
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APPEARANCES:

For the Plaintiff:
JENNIFER R. LLOYD, ESOQ.
Pezzillec ILioyd
6725 Via Austl Parkway
Suite 290
Las Vegas, Nevada BS8119

For the Defendants:

BRIAN W. BOSCHEE, ESQ.
Cotton, Driggs, Walch,
Helley, Woloson & Thompson
400 South Fourth Street
Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

INDEZX
WITNESS: DAVID PHILLIPS
' Examination Further Examination
By Ms. Lloyd: 3 37
By Mr. Boschee: 33

EXHTIBITS
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Preliminary Notice of Right to Lien 11

Application and Certification for Payment 26
Notice of Lien 32
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1 {(Prior to the commencement of the deposition, all of

2 the parties present agreed to waive statements by the

3 court reporter, pursuant to Rule 30(b) {4) of NRCP.)

4 Thereupon --

5 DAVID PHILLIPS,

6 was called as a witness, and having been first duly

7 sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

g EXAMINATION

9 BY MS. LLOYD:
10 Q. Ei, I am Jennifer Lloyd. I am attorney for
11 Cashmén Equipment Company in this matter. We are here
12 for your deposition today. You can go ahead and state
13 your name for the record.
14 A, It's David Reoss Phillips, P~H-I-L-~L-I-P-S.
15 Q. You have done this before.
16 A. Yes, I have.
17 Q. Have you had your deposition taken before?
18 A, Yes, I have.
19 Q. How many times? A number of times?
20 A, Probably a dozen maybe.
21 0. When was the most recent?
22 A It's probably been 16, 17 years.
23 Q. Okay. 8o let's briefly go over the rules.
24 It's question and answer. We need verbal responses to
25 all of the questiéns. The cour£ reporter is going to
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take down everything that we say, so we need to not
speakX at the same time. You can take a break at any
time you need, just ask. Except for when a question is
pending, I would ask that ycu answer the question prior
to taking the break.

If any of my gquestions are unclear or you
donft understand what I am asking, just ask me to
rephrase it and I will be happy to do that. Your
testimeny is under ocath today. It's the same oath you
take in a court of law.

Ts there any reason why you cannot give your
complete and truthful testimony here today?

A, No.

Q. What did you do to prepare for your
depositicn today?

A. I met with Shimali (phonetic) on Tuesday.

Q. Not going into the substance of those
communications, did you do anything else to prepare for
your deposition today?

A, No.

Q. What is the highest level of education you
have obtained? |

A I have a degree in architectﬁfe from Texas
AsM University.

Q. 2And when did you graduate there?

Page 4
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Al 1974.
Q. And do you hold any professional licenses?
A, ‘"I am a member of the Construction

Specifications Institute.

Q. And how long have you been a member there?
AL I believe since '88.
Q. And have you been convicted of any crimes

within the last ten years?
A. No.
Q. I am required to ask that. I hate to ask

that guestion..

A I know.

0. S0 tell me aboﬁt where you are currently
employed.

A. I am currently employed with ForestCity

Construction Services, LLC, which is a business unit of
ForestCity Enterprises, Ina. based in Cleveland, Ohio.
0. And what's your positicn with ForestCity

Construction Services?

A. Vice president.

Q. 0f a particular division or just vice
president?

A. Vicé)president.

Q. Okay. What do your job duties entail?

A. I manage our development in construction

Page 5 |
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projects in the west.
Q. The whole western region?

A West of the Mississippi.

0. Are you based here in Las Vegas?
B, Yes, I am.
Q. And-how long have you been in that position

with ForestCity?

AL Fifteen years.

Q. And prier to that, where were you employed?

A. I was employed with Domingo Camaro
Architects.

Q. What was your positicn with —-

A, I was the director of construction services.

Q. And have you been based here in Las Vegas fox

15 years with ForestCity?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. So this litigation concerns the
new Las Vegas City Hall, as I am sure you are aware., I
am geing to use the word "project." If T use the word
"project," I am going'to be referring to that
particulér project. So can you describe to me
ForestCity Construction Services' rcle on that project.

A. We were employed by —— we were employed as
the owner's representative on-site by QH Las Vegas,

LLC, which was the entity that owned the property and

Page 6
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1 developed the property. i
2 . Okay. . And then is there also a PQ Las Vegas? %
3 A. There is a PQ Las Vegas, LLC. %
4 Q. What is that? %
5 A. That was the entity established for -- there
& is a land swap within the development agreement.
7 QH Las Vegas is the property in Symphony Park. And :
8 it's the two parcels, Q and H. And so, you know, QH is
9  Queen of Hearts, because that is the property. The
10 Queen of Hearts sat on that property. 8o that is how
11 they determined the two LLCs.
12 o, Just coming up with a name?
13 A, Coming up with a name. 8o PQ was tied to the
14 develqpment agéeement with the City. And when we %
15 closed we swapped land. §
16 Q. Okay. 8o then what is ForestCity %
17 Enterprises' role? Are they like the parent z
i8 corporation? i
19 A, That is the parent corporation.
20 Q. For all the different individual --
21 AL Entities. :
22 Q. And is there a ForestCity Commercial
23 Construction Entify?
24 A. In the first guarter of 2012 we merged our é
25 two construction divisions together. We had a i

Depo International, LL.C
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commercial construction division as well as a
residential construction. And in the reorganization of
the company, as everybedy is doing, we merged. And now
we are just Construction Services to deal with
everything.

Q. So at the time was it ForestCity Commercial
Construction that was the owner's rep on this project?

A. It was ForestCity Commercial Construction CO,

Inc.

L e e = T & B S B % B

Q. Were there any other owner affiliated

11 companies that were involved in the projécts, or did we
12 cover them? .

13 A The project was developed under ForestCity
14 Commercial Development California.

15 Q. Can you think of any others?

16 A. That is all the entities I believe that was

i7 involved.

18 Q. S0 what was your role on the project?
13 A I was designated by the City as well as our
20 company as the owner's rep. I assisted in the

21 development of the construction documents with the

22 architects. ijas involved in the RP for the

23 construction manager at risk. I wés involved in the
24 final selections of contractors, subcohtractors, with

25 Whiting Turner. And then I was on site to make sure

Page 8
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that the construction was pursuant to construction

documents.
G. Did-you have an office on site?
A, T had a trailer.
0. and were you there on a daily basis or a

weekly basis?

A, Every day.

Q- So when you are there at the project, are you ]
just observing the construction activities, or did you
have a particular role you took on at different times?

A. NMo. I was there to just observe and make
sure that the project was moving smoothly; it was
within schedule, within budget; if there was any
questions that oecurred that I could answer, or I would

take to the engineers to get answered. So I was more

T Y LY

of an assistant to make sure that the project ran
smoothly.

Q. and then did you hold meetings at the project
with thejgeneral contracitor?

A We had one once a month, OAC meetings, what

we called OAC, which i=s the owner, architect,

e

contractor meetings. At that time that would include
City staff repreéeutatives. A lot of my corporate from
Cleveland would come down; the developexr from LA would

come over. And we would just do an overview of the

P
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DI A T

project, how the schedule was going, how the costs were
going. They would walk the project just to see how
everything was going. j

Q. Okay. Then did you participate in any
meetings with the subcontractors?

A. No.

T U o

Q. Did you keep any records on site, concerning
preliminary notices or other things that the owner
might receive as part of construction?

A, I only recéived things that corporate would
somehow zend to me. They all went to our corporate
office, which they kept, you know, lien notices and
things. But they weren't mailed directly to the

trailer.

Q. Because the récord addréss was the address —--

A. Public Square and Queen.

Q. So who in Cleveland would be responsible for
tracking that information?

A. I am not gquite sure who in our corporate
office did that. It went to legal, I belieﬁe.

. How big is ForestCity Enterprises?

A, We are a multi-billion-dellar corperation

with about 2800 employees across the country.
Q. That is pretty big.

A. It used to be a lot larger.

T £ e o LT Py =ry =" =T
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0. Oh, yeah? g
(Eghibit 1 marked.) ;
BY MS. LLOYD:
0. So have you seen this document?
A, I don't recall seeing this one. ;
Q. So it would have been served obviously on the

Cleveland address for QH Las Vegas, and then you didn't
necessarily gel copies of everything.

A. No, I didn't.

FAe i

0. Okay. But do vou think that there are
records in Cleveland concerning the preliminary notices

that were received?

T TN Y e R

A. Well, if it went to Suite 1005, that is
ForestCity Construction Services or ForestCity
Commercial Construction suite numbers.

0. 30 they would likely kept records there
somewhgre coﬁcérning all of these preliminary notices
or other notices that they might have received? i

A. Yes. . j

0.  Let's talk a little bit about JMA's role on
the project. Can you tell me what JMA was hired to do.

A. ForestCity Commercial Development hired JMA

T R A L

as the executive architect, which under the executive

architect they were to do all the construction

documents. The design architect, which is Helkis

S R ]
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Manfredi cut.of'Bostoﬁ, worked under JMA. And his
contract, IMA's contract, included all subtiers of
structural engineers, mechanical, electrical engineers.
It was all under their contrel.

0. Sc did they act as part of their rcle to be

the owner's rep concerning. certain items on the

project?
A No.
0. What was their role, then, in, I guess,

dealing with those subtiers? Like JBA was one of their

subtiers?
A. Right.
Q. So what was their role if they weren't acting

as owner's rep'for certain approvals, or how did that
work?

A. 1 am not sure what you are asking.

Q. I.ike, for instance, if they asked for
submittals on certain items to make sure that what was
going to be provided by a contractor or subcentractorxr
was to contract, were they the one that would have the
ultimate approval or would it go all the way up to,
say, you as the owner's rep for approval?

A, How didlthat process work?

0. Yeah{_how did that process work?

A. Well, the process is that in the construction

325 =
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documents there is specifications that clearly indicate
what submittals are required in the projecﬁ. The
subgontractor‘wculd prepare those specifications; you
know, product data, drawings, whatever was required
within the spec. It would first go to Whiting Turner.
They are required by our contract to review those
documents to make sure that they meet and fall within
the range of the contract documents. If they did, they
transmitted directly to JMA.

JMA would then distribute to whatever party
was regquired, either JBA or the structural engineer.
They would review them for the specification, to meet
all the specifications. If they did, they would stamp
them reviewed. Sometimes they stamped them reviewed as
noted, just because there might be some minor errors.
It would go back to JMA; JMA would review them. Then
if they weré approved and stamped by them, then it
would go back to Whiting Turner. Then Whiting Turner
would in turn .give copies back to the subcontractor.

0. And down the line?

A, Down.the line. The only time I ever got
invelved on anything would be if the submittal was
totally ount of range of the specifications.

0. 2And do you zrecall any instances like that on

this project?

EEE P P o e T R
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T T

A, No;

0. S0 im.the submittal process, then, JMA had
the final approval cof.-the submittals that were for the
contract werk?

A Well, it's a combination: I require that the
contractor approve them because he bid the job, and I

am holding him responsible for, you know ——- I am

e B T S L R S B

holding Whiting Turner responsible to build it within

AT E AT A £

o

the specifications. So from my point of view, Whiting

=
[

Turner's approval is just as important as the

11 engineer's approval. They are all equal in the realm

12 of responsibility.

T A

13 Q. JMA, Whiting Turner?

=

14 A, JBA. Everyone is -- from the owner's point

15 of view, they-are all held --

16 0. Equally responsible?
17 A, -- equally responsible.
18 0. What was your inveolvement with the selection !

18 of subcontractors on the procject?

20 A, What the process is that we go through is

21 that we do an RFP. Whiting Turner did an RFP to at

AL T PR

22 least three and mostly five subcontractors for each
23 trade. We would review who they were bidding to in
24 case we had people that we wanted to add; or if we had

25 experiences with contractors we don't want to deal with

T T
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1 anymore, then they would bid the project. We would as
Z a team -- and that would include myself and our
3 corporate -- we have an estimating group and we have :
4 other people in Cleveland that would review the scope é
5 of work, make sure that the scope was complete. We %
6 would evaluate the cost. §
7 As a public company we do not have to select g
8 the lowest bidder, but we do select the lowest g
9 qualified bidder on the project. We would normally :
10 narrow that down to three. We had -~ I mean, we had g
11 five to six on gach trade because of the timing, and
12 everybody wanted to work on the City Hall project. Seo
i3 we narrow it down to three.
14 We would bring them in and have an interview.
15 We require -- ForestCity requires interviews, which
i6 means you bring your project managers, you bring your i
17 foremen. You bring anyone in upper level that would be %
18 on that site in. 2And we would have resumes. And we g
19 truly -- you know, it's a team effort. So we do a é
20 conplete review. %
21 At that time, we would go back and reconvene; :
22 We would say, okay, we like, you know, this person or
23 that person. There was always qualifications of the i
24 initial bid, because someone would miss this or we E
25 would have questions. Then we would bring them back in %
E
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for their final cost proposal.

At that point Whiting Turner would also have
a major input and provide their selection to ForestCity
for approval. And at that time we would review the

final packages and make, you know, and say that is the

contractor.
0. That is a very owner-involved process.
A. ForestCity is a general contractor. We got

away from it years ago because development goes up and
aown. But we are a very hands—-on group and we do
understand construction. And we have done it
curselves. 8o, you know, we pride ourselves on, you
know, producing quality projects on time and on budget,
or that are under budget, which this project was under
budget.

. Oh, really? I wasn't aware of that.

So you were involved in obviously with the

selection of Mojave —-

A. Yes.
Q. -— as a subcontractor?

A. Along with other ForestCity entities -- ar
personnel. N

Q. Okay, And do you go any further down the —-

A, No.

Q. -—~ subtier?

Page
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work?

Page 17
1 And when it comes to, I guess, management of
2 payments, are you -- is the owner involved in managing
3 payments to subcontractors?
4 A. No.
5 Q. So would you only then be approving payments
6
7
8

A. The payment process was also prebbty detailed.
9 It was detailed in development agreement of how it

10 would be done. Once a month all the subcontractors

11 would provide ﬁhiting Turner with their billing

12 information. I would review all the detail of Mojave's

13 billing per se. Because it's billed on a percentage of

14 completion, I would say yes or no, or this area is not

15 what he is billing for or whatever; we would make

16 corrections.

17 At that point, when that was corrected, we

18 would sit down with the City staff and walk the

19 project. They would also review the completion

20 percentages, as well as the architect at the same time.
21 When that was -- when everybody agreed to that package,
22 then we would -- it would be signed by the architect.
23 I would send that package to Cleveland, where the

24 executive vice‘president was required to imitial off to

25 make sure, which he understood that I went through it

T
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1 pretty thoroughly.
2 And then the invoice would at that point be
3 put together -- that billing would be put together with
4 our invoice, for our fees and architectural fees or any
5 other fees we would have a combined invoice of
6 everyone's. That would be submitted to the City. ' The 3
7 City had a five-person signoff of that invoice. %
8 At that time it would be sent to the trustee i
8 for the project, which is I believe Bank of America,. %
10 They would at that time wire transfer funds to Whiting
11 Turner for their billing. They would wire transfer
12 ForestCity, which in turn we would wire transfer to our
13 third-party consultants.
14 Q. And that happened every month?
15 A, Every month.
16 0. Wow. So how long would that process take for ;
17 the approval of a billing? é
18 A, We were required to do that within ten days g
18 in the development égreement. The City had -- as soon g
20 as we cémpleted our process, the City had ten days to %
21 do it. ﬁe ware following under the State statute of I é
22 believe 45 days,Awhich we always met. i
23 Q. Wow. So I guess just to backtrack a tiny
24 bit, how exactlf did the whole development -- because
25 it was privately owned property, but there was

Depo International, LL.C
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obviously a public component, I guess, in some way.

Can you describe to me how that sort of worked?

e I IO

A. . It was a private public partnership. The
funding came from Build American Bonds, and we were

able to construct and develop it for the City. And we

R T

negotiated for land costs to do the trade of the two

parcels for the rest of it.

S e e 1 e U

T T e ety

Q. Okay. So did you have a requirement for

9 Whiting Turner concerning the Disadvantaged Business
1¢ Entities percentage that was to be met or to try to be
11 met on the project?
12 A. That was -- during our negotiations with the

13 City, it was at a time when they were laying off

e

14 pedple. It was a tough time to sell a new City Hall.
15 The City had a lot of pressure on them from the

16 minority groups to say, If you are going te do this,

17 Please get participation. The City does not have a

18 = diversity program that they can enforce in the city.

19 So tﬁey-came to us and said, We weould like
20 you to try and get the participation. ' And we agreed as
21 a goal to try to get 15 percent. We included that goal

22 toe Whiting Turner's contracts. And from there they

23 managed how that was obtained.
24 0. S0 it was a city requirement essentialiy?

25 A. Well, it was a request, a strong request.
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Which we ended up getting over 20 percent at the end of
the day.

Q. So did you leave it te Whiting Turner, then,
to enférce it or encourage subcontractors to meet
certain goals?

A, During that first interview process before,
you know, we awarded contractorxrs, we told them that it
was an importaﬁt‘factor in selection, as well as for
selection purposes. They needed to come to the table
with some diversity.

Q. So were they required to identify like which
areas they would be, you know, meeting diversity with?

A. Early on, no. They basically came back and
said, We feel for this contract we can get 8 percent or
we can get 10 percent, you know. And we monitored
them. And most of the contractors met their goals.

And the ones that didn't actually we had them

contribute.
0. How do you mean?
A, There was one contractor that poorly missed

his goal. And we had him -- well, he volunteered to ——
in the minorifj publications take out ads for his
company, which was a benefit to the minority magazines
and to the minority groups. So we convinced them to do

things of that nature.
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Q. Okay. Was there —- I guess speaking of if
they didn't meet their goal, was there any consequence?

A. No. We would only ask that they do

something,
Q.  Okay.
A. | It was monitored on a monthly basis during

the pay application process.

Q. . Because they were required to submit like the
certificates of DBE with their pay aps?

A. Yeah .

0. So did you check that with Whiting Turner on
a monthly basis?

A. No. They provided ForestCity with a report.
It was based off costs of the project, costs of each
subcontractor. . They provided us a breakdown and we
never audited.

Q. Then I guess in conjunction with payments,
did you require a certain waiver or releases from subs
and suppliers for Whiting Turner to get those, or did
you rely on Whiting Turner to make sure that they were
obtaining the proper releases?

A, We did get all releases.

0. How did you monitor, I guess, what releases
you would need?

A. They had a -- Whiting Turner had a breakdown

Page 21
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1 within the pay application for the previous month's
2 payments. We would get unconditionals, you know, for
3 that breakdown after the payment and they would provide
4 us conditional waivers with the initial payment. And
5 Whiting‘Turnei had to do unconditicnals and
6 conditionals to us for the project too.
7 Q. So did you‘have anyone in your offices
8 tracking, say, preliminary notices with releases, or
9 how did you —-—
10 A. Yeé,'that went to our corporate.
11 Q. So someone in Cleveland was handling that?
12 A. Yes. Michelle did -~ Michelle Lagina did
13 that. She bugged me all the time. When am I getting
14 my releases? .
15 0. So did you rely on a combination of Whiting
16 Turner keeping track of which suppliers were supplying
17 to the projects under subcontracters, or did you have
18 your own tracking system?
18 A. We did not get conditionals or unconditionals
20 from sﬁppliers. It was from the first tier. So we
21 would get -- like, Mojave would provide us conditionals
22 and unconditionals for --
23 Q. Ité&bayments?
24 a. Yeah.
25 Q. Then you weren't tracking downstream subs and
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1 suppliers to Mojave?
2 A. No.
3 Q. Is there a reason why vou weren't tracking :
4 downstream?
5 A, Because that is not part of our standard
6 process. é
7 0. pid you rely on Whiting Turner to be tracking 3
8 downstream?
g A, No, not in our contract it's not reguired.
10 Q. Were you concerned about liien claims from
11 people who might be unpaid under the subcontractor's
12 second, third tier suppliers or subs?
i3 A. Concerned about it? It happens all the time.
14 Q. But, I mean, not concerned enough to require é
i5 that, I guess, releases be proviaed? |
16 A, It hasn't been in our past history a major !
17 concern for us on subtiers and suppliers. :
18 Q. Okay. Can you tell me what the status of the
19 project 1s now?
20 A. Well, on February 1l4th of this year it's
21 going to be one year opened, We had substantial
22 completion on February 14th of 2012.
23 Q. Is the project totally closed out at this
24 point? | i
25 A. No.
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1 Q. And what is, I guess, left o?en? §
2 A. The contract with Whiting Turner is still
3 open.
4 Q.. Why is it open?
5 A We were still negotiating some requests from
6 them specifically. We still have the Mojave contract
7 open because there is payments still within that —- %
8 their line items or schedule of values for the %
9 generator, which I held after -- it was pretty much é
10 paid out, but it was the completion portion that's %
11 there. é
12 Q. So you are holding money for the generator g
13 from Whiting Turner?
14 CA. From Mojave.
15 0. From Mojave. Do you recall offhand how much
16 you are holding? Is it the full cost of the generator
17 line item?
i8 A. No. I would be surprised if it's $30,000.
19 it's somewhere in there, I thiﬁk.
20 Q. So the project has a permanent C of 02 '
21 A. Correct. i
22 Q. Do you recall when you got that?
23 A On February 14th.
24 0. And then —— I mean, I am sure you generally

25 know that we are here because Cashman didn't get paid
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for the generator and the UPS equipment that it

supplied to the project.

A, I have been told that.

Q. Sc when -we talk about the generator and UPS
equipment, it's kind of a package deal. You know what
I am referring to?

A. Yes.

Q. Sc what is the status of the generator, UPS
equipment on the project now?

A.  Well, it's installed. I am being told that
it would operate in case of an emergency. I have not
witnessed that. Due to a lack of some programming on
the systém itself, it does not give my client, the
City, the opportunity to go into a laptop on site or
off site and monitor the étatus of the generator
systems, which is critical. Most buildings are fully
automated and have a building management system. And
they sit up in an office when they need to check to
verify that the fuel is correct, the batteries are
operating, hoﬁ-thét system is operating after it starts
up for RPMs and the technical things that need to be
monitored on these systems in case of an emergency, and
that is not available.

Q. And s0 as a result of that, were you taking

any action against Whiting Turner or Mojave or --

P
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A. Weihave been, you know, pushing to get
reasclution of that.
Q. Of that issue?
A, Of that issue.
0. So deces that leave any pending issues between

you, your company, or ForestCity and the City of Las
Vegas?

A, The City is aware of the situation. Being
aware of it, they can manually go check things, which
they are doing, but they are not very pleased about it.

Because there is a fault on the generator panel.

0. What do you mean?  What does that mean?
A It's a big red light that flashes.

0. Like scmething is wrong?

A

Yeah.
" (Exhibit 2 marked.)

BY MS. LLOYD:

G. Can you take a lock at this document? This
was produced in. conjunction with a subpoena that I
issued te Ferestlity. Do you recegnize this document?

A, Yes. It's the one I provided. It's the last
executed pay apélication to Whiting Turner.

Q. Okay. And then if ycu go tec page Bates stamp
5, can you tell me what -- under the electrical, that

first line item, it looks like there is a withholding.

e
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Am- I reading that correctly?

AL Yeah, there was a retainage still held. ?

Q. It looks like -- is that 792 or —- é

A.  Yeah, it's -- i

0. In that range? %

A, Yeah, I believe. %

Q. Is that still being withheld? §

A, Yas, ;

0. From-Whiting Turner? é

A, From_Mojave. §

Q. Through Whiting Turner, I guess. . So why is !
that belng withheld?

A, We weré elosing out with Mojave. There were |
several change orders that they had asked for that did §
not get approved beforé this was done. .

Q. So that line item is not related to the :
generator equipment? ‘ | ;

A, No.

o. Do you have a breakdown of what it is related

to somewhere else?

A, Whiting Turner would. Whiting Turner held
all the files fof this project. I did not keep -~ they
are to provide me on disk the entire file system, which
I have not redeived because we haven't closed out yet.

So this is all I had available.
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Q. What type of file, like, recordkeeping
software do they use?

A. I don't know.

Q. There wasn't a reguirement for a specific
- program?
A, (Shakes head.)
Q. S0 that withholding on there is not related

to the generator?
A, No,
Q. In speaking with Nancy from Whiting Turner,

she seemed to indicate that it was related to the

generator. Unless I misunderstood -—- I guess I am

trying to understand. Do you recall -—- you are still
holding it, or have you paid it out?

A No.

Q. You are still holding it?

A. Until a project is completely closed out with
a contractor, I do not release. I release 5 percent.
That is b percent, I believe. And then column, I think
it says 5 percent. I released under percentage
retainage; it's 5 percent. Until a project is closed
out, ForestCity's policy is we do not release all the
retainage. And it's not specifically to any certain
item.

Q. Well, that particular item shows both a

Page 28
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balance to finish and a retainage amount. Those are
two separate -—- are those two separate -- because most

of the items show basically no balance Lo finish,

because they are all locking like they are complete and
have been paid.out, except for some show retention. So
that's why I was trying to understand exactly what the

status of the payment to Whiting Turner was on that

W < s W

particular item, because it looks like there 1is a

G balance to finish and then & retainadge amount.
10 A. The balance to finish was listed of the

il contract change.orders that we were still negotiating.

12 Q. Do you recall what those were about?
13 - A. No.

. ‘ £
14 Q. So did the owner withhold any funds from %

15 Whiting Turner and Mojave related to the generator
16 beyond -- I think you identified 30,000°?

17 A, That's all we did because it was a specific
18 line item. Mojave's contract would have ~~ or pay

19 application would have this cover sheet. And then they

ST T Y

20 were required to give us schedule of values for every
21 item of their scope of work, which entailed the d
22 electrical, audio, wvisual, I mean, the whole breakdown.
23 It was a specific line item for the generator.

24 Q. So fhe generator line item was somewhere in r

25 the range of 800,000. But if it was, would you have
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withheld 800,000 or would you withheld an amount you
determinea separately, or did you have a way of coming
up with what yeu were going to withhold?

A. The generator was already paid out before
this was brought to our attention. 8o I just refused
to pay any more on that line item..

Q. Okay. . I guess what's the status of the
negotiations with Whiting Turner to close everything
out?

A We are hoping to have it all closed out
within the next two weeks.

Q. Then what is your plan, I guess, in reference
to the operation of the generator equipment as far as,
you know, T guess sort of how that is going to work
with the City?

A. We have aéked Whiting Turner to give us a
proposal on how they want to handle it. They have to
deal with their contractor. |

Q. Have -Lhey come to you with any proposal yet?

A, No. They are in the -- they are just
following this process. That is all they can give us
the information.

Q. S0 is that item just going to remain open
until the'litigation is complete?

a, Well, the lien has been bonded around. As
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f#r as the City, the lien has heen bonded. But
cperaticnalwise I am not sure. Welhave been trying to
get resolution of this, so that I can go down and talk
to the City to aetermine exactly what their position is
on this.

0. Okay. Did you have any involvement in
choosing the generator system reguirements?

4, . Neo, I am not an electrical engineer,.

0. S0 was that a JMA role as part of their
design services?

A, Yes. JMA, JBA.

Q. Did you have any involvement in approving the
system that was proposed by Mojave to be used?

A. . No.

Q. Would that just have been JMA and Whiting

Turnexr?

4. It's a combination of JMA, Whiting Turner and
. _

Q. S0 would you have seen any of the submittals

concerning any type of the_equiﬁment that was being
supplied to the project?

A No, nét.on that specific item, no. The
specifications are performance.specifications. It
requires -- it will provide at least three different

manufacturers of equipment, three to five, which is our
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requirement. We cannot single-source a product for
ForestCity. We are a public cempany. Any of those
nanufacturers would have to meet the performance
specifications that the engineers design to. If
those -- that selection process, they are all equal in
the enéineer's eyes as well as the owner's eyes, then
they can —-- they are responsible for making sure that
system is complete.
{(Exhibhit 3 marked.)

BY M5. LLOYD: =

0. Take a look at this document. Have you seen
it before?

A. Yes.

And when did you first see the lien?

- I don't recall exactly when I.saw the lien.
0. Was it shortly after it was recorded?
A,

At some point. Like I said, I can't give an
exact time. .

0. Did you -- it was forwarded to you from
Cleveland, your Cleveland offices?

A Yes.

Q. And fhen what action did you take once you
were aware of the lien?

A, I took a copy over to Whiting Turner and

said, Address this issue.

Page 32
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Q._ And what did they say?
A. That is when it was bonded around.
0. And sc did you take any other acticn in
relation to the lien or the lien claim?
A, No.
Q. Did ycu have any discussions with Whiting
Turner  about what happened or why there was a lien?
A. I asked what was going on and they said they

were trying to contact Mojave to Ffind out.

Q. Did you de any inquiry beyond that
afterwards?
A, No.

M5. LLOYD: I den't think I have any other
questions.
MR. BOSCHEE: I think I have a couple.
EXAMINATION
BY MR. BOSCHEE:

Q. Looking at FExhibit 3, I understand that you
don't recall exactly Qhat date that you saw that; Was
that the first time that you learned or ascertained of
the issue that has caused us to sit here today?

A Well, this was not specific to the issues we
are sitting here today. It was a lien from Cashman for
equipment. That didn't explain why we are sitting here

today.
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Q. Well, what is your understanding of why we
are here today?

A. - It's all hearsay.

0. Ckay.

MS. LLOYD: Depos are okay for hearsay.

THE WITNESS: When we started to commission
this building, we have a third-party commissioner on
the project. When they started to come ocut and test
equipment and do things, there was this fiag that was
put on the generator system by our third-party
consultant cdncerning, you know, PCL or whatever. And
at that point it sat there and I kept asking, Is this
resolved? 1Is this resolved? And they said, Wo, not
yet, not vyet. And finally it came out that —— how it
was told that there was an issue with Cashman and CAM.
BRY MR. BOSCHEE:

0. Yeah.

A. And they explained to me the situation. At
that point they didn't have all the detailed facts.
They just -- you know, they reassured ForestCity. It
was at an owner's meeting. We would have a meeting
prior to -- before the City éame in. So in our meeting
they explained of the situation. BAnd that they assured
us that we h;d final releases and things of that

nature. That put people somewhat to comfort and it was
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bonded arcund. And we didn't know how -- we knew we
needed to get the program so that we could complete ocur
commissioning and move forward with the City.

Q. Prior te seeing this lien and getting this
from your corporate office, did you have any actual
knowledge that Cashman Egquipment Company was involved
in what we will call the project? Have yvou ever heard
of them before?

A. I have been here for 24 years. I have heard
of Cashman. But no, generators show up, equipment
shows up. Who supplies it, who is installing it, I am
Just relying on Whiting Turner to make sure it's done.

. Ckay. And I mean, sitting here right now, do
you have any actual knowledge of when or whether

Cashman Equipment Company actually supplied the

‘"generators to the project?

A. No, I don't.

Q. And following up on that, do yocu have any
specific recollection of when the generators were
delivered to the project?

A, Not specifically, no.

Q. Is it fair to say you just know that they got
there and it got put in and the construction kept
flowing? -

A Correct.
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Q. Now, I ‘had another question from my notes in
talking to you. Do you recall - I believe there was a
pending log that you reviewed from time to time; is
that correct?

A. Every day.

Q. I didn't want to hold your feet to the fire
on the everyday thing, but I knew it was pretty much
every day. Do you recall seeing anything in the
pending log about change orders with respect to the -
generators?

A. There was none.

Q. Okay. And again, just to clarify, your
company and you personally had played no part in the --
T quess we will call it the screening process for the
disadvantaged business entities that were used on this
project, did you?

A, No.

Q. And with respect to -- with respect to JMA's
involvement, you Falked to Ms. Lloyd about this a
little bit earlier. Is it fair to say that their
primary Jjob was to deal with the design and the design
changes once the project got going; is that faix?

A, Yes.

MR. BOSCHEE: I don't think I have anything

Turther.
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MS. LLOYD: I have a follow-up.

FURTEER EXAMINATION
BY MS. LLOYD:

c. What is a pending log?

A. ForestCity requires all of our contractors to
keep track of any possible change or foreseeable change
and project a cost that could impact the project. We
don't like surprises. If you know you have a
problem -- if we know we have a problem out there with
some steel, werwauld indicate that on this pending log
and we would project a cost. So every month we knew
what ourlexposure was to the project in any changes.

It might end up being zero.

The City might come and say, Dave, I want you
to redo these floox plans, whicﬁ they did. We would
put that on there and we would project a cost involwved
in that. 8o that at the end of the day, every month we
knew what our true cost exposure was on a monthly basis
for finance purposes.

0. Would.you see, like, a pending cost if
Whiting Turner determined that, say, a sub missed
something and didn't bid it properly so they were.going
to essentially put the cost back onto the sub? Would
they have notified you of something like that?

A. No.
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Q. Or only if it was going to be an
owner—impacted change or potential cost?

A, It tracked -— if Whiting Turner missed
something in the contract itself, that item would be
put —— it would be tracked to Whiting Turner. If
ForestCity asked for a change, it would be listed as
ForastCity. And if the City made a change, it would be
City. Beyond that, nothing else went on that log.

Q. So it was only if, say, Whiting Turner was
going to ask for more money --

A, Right.

Q. -~ related to a certain item.

So if they made a determination that, say,
Mojave missed something and it was in the drawings and
they should have included it aﬁd it wasn't going to be
a. change to thé.owner, you wouldn't be notified —-

A, No, I wasn't.

Q. -— an issue like that.

Talking about the generator, I guess,

delivery. Do you recall seeing the generators be

delivered?
A, T just saw them sitting there one day.
Q. Before they were in the hox or however they

are housed in the equipment room, or after they were

already in the eguipment room?
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‘A, After they were already in the ~- it's a wall
enclosure.

Q. Okay. Do you recall meeting Shane Norman of
Cashman Equipment Company?

A. His name doesn't sound familiar.

Q. It would have been around the time of the
lien, sort of the dispvte concerning the payment
issues. He recalled, I. quess visiting the site and
meeting you, but I don't know if you had recalled.

A. I met so many people.

Q. No, I am sure. Especially every day.

A. The‘;ame doesn't sound familiar, but I am not

saying I didn't meet him. I am just saying I don't
recall meeting him.

0. But you don't recall.having a conversation
concerning this bounced check and the issue with the
nonpayment of the generator?

A. I don't recall that.

MS5. LLOYD: Okay. That is all I have.
(Thereupon, the deposition

concluded at 4:00 p.m.)
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15 I, David Phillips, deponent herein, do heresby

certify and declare the within and foregoing
16 transcription to be my deposition in said action; that :

I have read, corrected and do hereby affix my signature

17 to said deposition under penalty of perjury.
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~ CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
2 STATE OF NEVADA )
) 'ss:
3 COUNTY OF CLARK )
4 I, Christy L. DeJonker, a duly commissioned
' Notary Public, Clark County, State of Newvada, do hereby
5 certify: That I reported the deposition of David
Phillips, commencing on Thursday, January 10, 2012, at
6 3:00 p.m.
7 That prior to being deposed, the witness was
duly sworn by me to testify to the truth. That I
8 thereafter transcribed my said shorthand notes into
typewriting and that the typewritten transcript is a
9 complete, true and accurate transcription of my said
shorthand notes. That review of the transcript was
10 requested.
11 I further certify that I am not a relative,
employee or independent contractor of counsel of any of
12 the parties; nor a relative, employee or independent
contractor of the parties involved in said action; nor
13 a person financially interested in the action; nor do I
have any other relationship with any of the parties or
14 with counsel of any of the parties involved in the
action that may reasonably cause my impartiality to be
15 questioned.
16 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand in my
office in the County of Clark, State of Nevada, this
17 1l4th day of January, 2013.
18 '
18
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CHRISTY LYN DeJONKER, CCR NO. 691
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DECLARATION OF ERIC J., LOUTTIT
I, Eric J. Louttit, hereby declare the following:

1. That 1 am the Vice President of Artus Inc., Managing Member of Rolling Acres
Properties Co. Limited Partnership, Managing Member of FC Vegas 20, LLC, Managing
Member of FC/LW VEGAS; LLC (“FC/LW"). In my capacity as such, I am responsible for
identifying and gathering documents responsive to the subpoena served on FC/LW.

2. That on the 21% day of November, 2012, FC/LW was served with a subpoena
calling for the production of documents, records and/or things outlined in the subpoena and
pertaining to the civil action entitled Cashman Equipment Company v. CAM Consulting, Inc., et
al., District Court Clark County, Nevada, Case No. A-11-642583-C,

3. That I have caused a thorough search to be made of FC/LW’s records for any
documents requested pertaining fo the civil action; FC/LW’s business dealings with Cashman
Equipment Company. o

4, That based upon the information provided, I have not identified any responsive
records.

[ declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the

foregoing is true and correct.
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DECLARATION OF WILLIAM T. ROSS
1, William T. Ross, hereby declare the following:

L. That I am the Executive Vice President of Asset Management of Forest City
Commercial Group, Inc.,, Managing Member of QH LAS VEGAS LLC (“QH™). In my capacity
as such, I am responsible for identifying and gathering documents responsive to the subpoena
served on QH.

2. That on the 21% day of November, 2012, QH was served with a subpoena calling
for the production of doguments, records and/or things outlined in the subpoena and pertaining to
the civil action entitled Cashman Equipment Company v. CAM Consulting, Inc,, et al., District
Court Clark County, Nevada, Case No, A-11-642583-C,

3. That I have caused a thorough search to be made of QH's records for any
documents requested pertaining to the civil action, QH’s business dealings with Cashman
Equipiment Company.

4, That based upon the information p‘rovided, I have not identified any responsive
records.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the
foregoing is true and correct,

Pt ("

William T, Ross
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Jennifer R, Lloyd, Esq.
Neovada State Bar No, 9617
Marisa L., Maskas, Esq.
Nevada State Bar No. 10928
PEZZILLO LLOYD

6725 Via Austi Patkway, Suite 290
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

Tel: 702 233-4225

Fax: 702 233-4252
lloyd@pezzitiolloyd.com
mmaskas@pezzillolloyd.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff,
Cashman Eguipment Company

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, a
Nevada corporation,

Plaintiff,
Vs,

CAM CONSULTING INC., a Nevada
corporation; ANGELO.CARVALHO, an
individual; JANEL RENNIE aka JANEL
CARVALHQ, an individual, WEST EDNA
ASSOCIATES, L.TD,, dba MOJAVE
ELECTRIC, a Nevada corporation,
WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, a
surety; THE WHITING TURNER
CONTRACTING COMPANY, a Maryland
corporation; FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT
COMPANY OF MARYLAND, a surety;
TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND SURETY
COMPANY OF AMERICA, a surety; QH
LAS VEGAS LLC, a foreign limited
liabitity company; PQ LAS VEGAS, LLC, a
foreign limited liability company, LW T [C
SUCCESSOR LLC, an uoknown limited
liability company, FC/LW VEGAS, a

Electronically Filed
04/05/2013 04:29:08 PM

A s

CLERK OF THE COURT

Case No.: A642583
Dept. No.: 32

Consolidated with Case No,: A653029

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY’S
REPLY IN SUPPORT OF ITS MOTION
FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT
AGAINST WEST EDNA ASSOCIATES,
LTD, dba MOJAVE ELECTRIC and
WESTERN SURETY COMPANY ON
THE PAYMENT BOND CLAIM

Date: April 11, 2013
Time: 2:00 a.m,
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foreign limited Hability-company; DOES | -
10, inclusive; and ROE CORPORATIONS 1
- 10, inclusive;

Defendants,

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY’S REPLY IN SUPPORT OF ITS MOTION
FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT AGAINST WEST EDNA ASSOCIATES, LTD. dba
MOJAVE ELECTRIC and WESTERN SURETY COMPANY ON THE PAYMENT BOND
CLAIM

Plaintiff, CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY (“Cashman’), by and through its

undersigned counscl of rccord and pursuant to NRCP 56, respectfully submits the following
Reply in Support of its Motion for Summary Judgment Against WEST EDNA
ASSOQCIATES, LTD. dba MOJAVE ELECTRIC (“MOJave”) and ‘WESTERN SURETY
COMPANY (“Weste1 ) on its claim against the Payment Bond, This Reply is supported by
the following Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the exhibits attached hereto, the

Court’s file, and any evidence adduced at a hearing, should one be held.

MEMORANDUM OF FPOINTS AND AUTHORITIES
I.
INTRODUCTION

Smﬁmat‘y Judgment should be grante& in favor of Cashman and against Defendants,
Mojave and Western on Cashman’s claim against the payment bond issued to Mojave by
Western (hereinafter the “Payment Bond”) for the benefit of “all persons supplying labor,
material, rental equipment, supplics, or services in the performance” of Mojave’s contract on
the New Las Vegas City Hall project (“the Project” should Mojave fail to ensuse thal
payment is made to thosie persons, See Supplement to Cashman’s Motion, filed March 5,
2013: Exhibit “2,” to the Deposition Transcript of Brian Bugni, Cashman has established that

no genuine issues of material fact exist and Mojave’s Opposition does nothing mors than
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present alleged factual issues that lat‘e not relevant to the Péyment Bond claim before the
Coutt, _ ,

Cashman’s Motion is the first time this Court has had the ‘opportunity to consider
Cashman’s claim on this Payment Bond, contrary to Mojave’s representations. Caslunan's
ability to prove its claim on the Payment Bond obtained by Whiting Turner and separate
mechanic’s lien clahn_assm*ted against the Project have no bearing on this c}aim. Mojave’s
argument that the Court must decide Cashman’s lien claim prior to, or in order to, evaluate the
validity of the claim at issuc here is without basis in the law. In order for the Court to
determine whether Mojave is Hable to Cashman on this Payment Bond claim, the Court must
evaluate the legal requirements for this claim and the undisputed facts relevant to this claim,
all of which establish Cashman’s entitlement to judgment against the Payment Bond in the
amount of $755,893.89 for tiie materials it supplied to this Project,

In its Opposition, _Mojave fails to raise a single genuine issue of material fact {o
preclude the eniry of judgment on this claim in favor of Cashman, Understanding that
Cash{man has established it is enfitled to payment of its claim from the Payment Bond,
Mojave seeks to have the Court apply NRS Chapter 339, the chapter governing contractors’
bonds on public works, even where the undisputed facts of this matier establish that the
Project was not public works, but was privately constructed. The Payment Bond at issue is
not subject to those statutes, but is a contract between private parties governed only by its
express terms. Mojave attempts fo create an issue concerning whether Cashman is owed the
full amount claimed, howéver, it is undisputed that Mojave has been paid in full on its
contract to supply the materials provided by Cashman and that Mojave issucd payment to
Cam for the full amount billed by Cashman for the materials. Had some amount not been
owed at the time payment was issued, Mojave should have withheld part of the payment.
Mojave did not do so and this fact establishes the validity of the amount claimed by Cashman.,

Further, and as has been Cashiman’s position from the beginning of this dispute, Cashiman
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remained willing to complete the few items remaining upon receipt of payment. Mojave
created the situation of which it now complains by failing to make any payment to Cashman,
had Mojave simply ensu‘reed payment to Cashman, as was its responsibility under the Payment
Bond, all work would be complete.

Despite Mojave’s argument, it is impossible for the Cowt to decide whether Mojave
owes Cashman for the materials supplied to the Project without evaluating and deciding the
individual claims brought by Cashman against Mojave. FEach is subject fo its own
requirements and elements of proof. The claim at issue in this Motion is the claim Cashman
brought against the Paymen( Bond obtained by Mojave from Western as required by Mojave’s
contraét with Whiting Turner. The requirements of that claim are unambiguous and governed
by the language of the Payment Bond and the undisputed facts of this matter establish that
Cashman is a claimant on the Payment Bond, that Cashiman supplied materials to the Project,
that Cashman remains unpaid for those materials while Mojave has been paid in full on its
contract, and that Mojévé failed to ensure that payment was made to Cashman for the
matetials giving risc to its liability on the Payment Bond; liability that is separate and distinet
from Cashman’s other claims in this matter.

11,
STATEMENT OF FACTS

The undisputed facts establishing that Cashman is entitled to judgment on ifs claim

against the Payment Bond are set forth in Cashiman’s Motion and will not be repeated here.
Mojave includes in its Oﬁpositioﬁ, alleged facts that are not relevant to the claim at issue, The
circumstances surtounding Cam’s failure fo pay Cashiman are disputed and have no bearing
on whether Cashman should prevail on this Payment Bond claim, except that Mojave admits
that Cashman was not paid for the matetials it supplied to the Project, See Opposition at p. 4.
Mojave’s claim that it could not pay Cashman divectly is simply not supported by the law or

the evidence presented in this matter.
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Mojave admits that it obtained the Payment Bond against which Cashman seeks
judgment and does not d1spute the validity of the Payment Bond. See Opposition at p, 4, By
obtaining the Payment Bond, Mojave created a separate and distinet liability to “all persons
supplying labor, matetial, rental equipment, supplies, or services in the performance” of
Mojave’s contract the Project should Mojave fail to ensure‘that payment is made to those
persons, just as a mechanic’s lien creates a separate and distinet liability between the owner of
a project and those that are providing labor and materials to improve the project, where one
may not exist otherwise. This liability to Casluman is not disdharged by Mojave's paymeﬁt to
Cam; Mojave was 1'equired to ensure that payment was made to Cashman for the materials
Cashman provided by the terms of the Payment Bond, and it did not. See Supplement to
Casliman’s Motlon, ﬁle{l Maich 5 2013: Exhibit “2,” to the Deposition Transcript of Brian
Bugni (WTURQ001154). The Payment Bond does not require that a claimant have a contract
with Mojave in order for Mojave to be liable to that claimant. Jd. The Payment Bond
contains no notice requirem.ents. Id. Mojave obtained the Payment Bond, which is a contraet,
was able to set the requirements for a claim and cannot claim to be usaware of its
requirements or the liability it imposes. Mojave is not an innocent party being subjected to an
unforeseeable claim of an unpaid supplier, This is likely why Mojave did not disclose the
Payinent Bond, and why it was only discovered in the more than 20,000 pages disclosed by
Whiting Turner in this matter,

The undisputed facts mandate judgment in favor of Cashiman on its Payment Bond
claim. Cashman provided materials to be used in the performance of Moajave’s contract on
the Project and was to be paid $755,893.89 for those materials. See Cashman’s Motion at
Exhibit “1,” Affidavit of Shane Norman and Exhibit “2,” Invoices, Mojave selected Cashman
to provide these materials, See Cashman’s Motion at Exhibit *“7,” Deposition of Peter Rodney
Fergen at p 9, Ins, 11 — 16, Mojave admits that the materials were delivered and

incorporated into the Project. See Cashman’s Motion at Exlhibit “6,” Deposition Transcript of
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Christopher Meiers at p. 21, In. 21 — P, 22, In, 7. Mojave admifs that Cashman remains
unpaid for tﬁe materials supplied. See Opposition at p. 4. The principal balance of
$755,893.89 currently remains due and owing to Cashman, See Cashman’s Motion at
Exhibits “1”.and “2.” Mojave was paid in full for the materials Cashman provided io the
Project, See Cashman’s Motion at Exhibit “5,” p, 19, Ins. 7 - 9. Mojave admits it obtained
the Payment Bond and does not contest its validity. See Opposition al p. 4. Mojave admits
that it did not ensure payment was made to Cashman and did not issue payment to Cashman
directly. Id.
o i
ARGUMENTS AND AUTHORI'I_‘IES

A, Summary Judsment should be Granted in Favor of Cashiman on its Claim against
the Payment Bond.

Summary judgment should be awarded in favor of Cashman on its claim against the
Payment Bond, as Mojave has failed set forth specific facts refevant to this ¢laim to show that
genuine material factual issues exist. Cashinan established in its Motion that Cashman is
within the class of claimants for which the Payment Bond was obtained, Cashman remains
unpaid for the materials it supplied and Mojave failed to ensure payment was made to
Cashman, as it was required to do by the terms of the Payment Bond. Cashman supplied
matetials to the Project that were incorporated into the Project by Mojave, were included in
Mojave’s scope of work, and for which Mojave has received payment, and Cashian is owed
the principal amount of $755,893.89 for the mateyials if supplied. As such, no question of fact
exists that precludes judgment in favor of Cashman on its claim against the Payment Bond.

Summary judgment is appropriate where no genuine issue of material fact exists and the
moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law, Wood v. Safeway, Inc., 121 Nev. 724,

731, 121 P.3d 1026 (2005). As was explained by the Nevada Supreme Court:

The substantive law confrols which factnal disputes are material
and will preclude summary judgment; other factual disputes are
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irrelevant, A factual dispute is genuine when the evidence is such
that a rational trier of fact could return a verdict for the
nonmoving party. '

Id. The nonmoving party *“is not entitled to build a case on the gossamer threads of whimsy,
speculation, and conjecture.” [d. at 732 (citations omittéd). Further, the nonmoving party
“may not rest upon general allegations and conclusions, but must, by affidavit or otherwise,
set forth specific facts demonstrating the existence of a genuine factual issue.” Ia',r at 731
{citations omitted).

When evaluated in light of the substantive law governing the Payment Bond Claim at
issue, Mojave does not establish the existence of a genuine factual issue to preclude the entry
of judgment in favor of.Cashman. Mojave fails to set forth specific facts that dispute the
evidence submitted by Cashman on this claim and instead secks to confuse the separate
claims brought by Cashman and argues the Court should apply NRS Chapter 339 even where
it does not govern this claim. Cashman’s claiin is subject only to the requirements of the
Payment Bond. Mojave’s liability to Cashman under the Payment Bond is not extinguished
by its payment to Cam and the Payment Bond does not requite that Cashman have a contract
with. Mojave in order to make a claim. Cashinan supplied the materials at issue, is owed

$755,893.89 and Mojave has been paid in fisll for those materials,

B. Cashman’s  Claim__Against the Payment Bond is Subject Only to the
Reguirements of the Bond,

‘The Payment Bond at issue is governed only by its terms, “A surety bond is a contract
and should be construed as such.” John McShain, Inc. v. Eagle Indem. Co., 180 Md, 202, 205
(Md. 1942). Mojave negotiated for and obtained this Payment Bond. Mojave could have
included any number of requiremenis for a claimant to make a claim, just as were included by
Whiting Turner in its payjr:nent bond, but simply chose not fo do so. Mojave wants this Court
fo ignore the express terms of the Payment Bond.

i
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The Payment Bond states:

The said Principal and the said Sutety agree that this Bond shall inure to the
benefit of all persons supplying labor, material, rental equipment, supplies, or
services in the performance of the said Confract, as well as to the Obligee, and
that such persons may maintain independent actions upon this Bond, in their
oW names. ‘

See Supplement to Cashman’s Motion, filed March 5, 2013: Bxhibit “2,” to the Deposition
Transcript of Brian Bugni (WTUR0001154), Mojave is the principal on the bond and
Western is the surety.. Id. The Payment Bond goes on to state that Mejave’s ﬁabﬂity on the
Payment Bond is only extinguished where Mojave “promptly make[s] payments to all persons
supplying labor, material, rental equipment, supplies, or services in the performance of the
said Contract...” Id.

There are only two requitements a claimant on this Payment Bond must prove io
prevail on a claim: (1) that it supplied labor, material, rental equipment, supplies, or setvices
in the performance of Mojave’s contract on this Project, and (2) that Mojave failed to ensure
payment to the claimant for the work or materials provided. Cashman has established that it
fulfills both of these requirements, Mojave acknowledges that Cashman supplied the
materials at issue and that the materials were incorporated into the Project and the evidence
submitted with Cashman’s Motion establishes that these materials were supplied in the
performance of Mojave’s contract on this Project, fulfilling the first requirement. As io the
second requirement, Mojave acknowledges that Cashman has not received payment for these
matetials. Mojave also admits thaf it did not pay Cashman for these materials, nor did
Mojave ensure that Cashman received payment, as was its obligation under the Payment
Bond.

i
i
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1. Mojave’s Liability to Cashiman under the Payment Bond is not Extinguished by its
Payment to Cam,

Mojave argues that its payment to Cam extinguishes Cashman’s claim on the Payment
Bond in spite of the plain language of the Payment Bond, Mojave failed to ensure payment
was made to Cashman for the materials Cashman supplied, a fact that Mojave admifs in ifs
Opposition. Mojave could have easily ensured payment was made to Cashman and simply
chose not to do so. Brian Bugni, Mojave’s Vice President of Finaxlce, testified that Cashinan
requested a joint check and that Mojave refosed fo issue a joint check payable to both Cam
and Cashman, even though it was not prohibited from doing so by Whiting Turner, See
Exhibit “5” to Cashman’s Motion at pgs. 67 — 68, Mojave controlled payment for these
materials and Mojave. chose not to ensure that Cashman, who it knew was supplying those
materials and who bore the ‘risk by delivering the materials without payment, received
payment by either issuing the payment directly to Cashman or issuing a joint check as
Cashman requested. By failing to ensure payment to Cashman, Mojave remains liable to

Cashman under the plain language of the Payment Bond.

2. The Payment Bond does not Limit Claims to Subcontractors and Suppliers that

Contracted Directly with Mojave.

Mojave also seems to argue that the bond is not for the benefit of Cashman because
Cashman has not alleged it has a contract with Mojave to supply the materials for which it is
claiming payment. The plain language of the Payment Bond renders those arguments without
merit. The Payment Bond requires that Mojave must ensure that payment is made to all
pexrsons supplying labor, matetial, rental equipment, supplies or services in the performance
of its Contract on the Projoct, not just those with which it contracted. See Supplement to
Cashman’s Motion, filed March 5, 2013: Exhibit #2,” to the Deposition Transcript of Brian
Bugni (WTURO001154).. In failing to cnsuro Cashman was paid for the materials it supplied,

Mojave remains liable under the plain language of the Payment Bond.,
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3. Cashman is Owed $755.893.89 for the Materials it Sunplied to this Project,

Mojave admits that it has been paid in full on its coniract on the Project that included
the materials provided by Cashman. Mojave chose to issue payment to Cam for the full
amount billed by Cam for the materials. Mojave now wants 10 argue that the full amount
billed by Cashman is not owed, however, given that Mojave has been paid in full and chose fo
pay for the materials in full, that argument is without merit. By paying in fu]l, Mojave was
accepting the materials Vés complete. Further, and as has been Cashman’s position from the
beginning of this dispute, Cashman remained willing to complete the few items remaining
upon receipt of payment for the materials. Cashman is not in breach of its agreement with
Cam, Cam breached the agreement by failing to pay for tlhé materials and Cashiman was
excused fiom furthe;" performance. Cashman delivered the materials that comprise. the
majority of the purchase order, and it was not until Mojave failed to ensure that payment was
made to Cashman, that Cashman stopped work due to nonpayment,

The total amount of Cashman’s claim is recoverable under Nevada law. A partytoa
contract who is not in default should recover the total price promised less the cost of
completing performance of the work, where there has been partial performance. Fuller v,
United Electric Co., 70 Nev. 448, 451-52, 273 P.2d 136, 137 (1954); see also Bradley v.
Nevada-California-Oregon Ry., 42 Nev. 411, 178 P. 906, 910 (1919) (the measure of
damages to be awarded a non-breaching party is the amount which would have been received
if the contract had been had not been broken). The purpose of money damages is to put the
injured party in as good a position as that which full performance of the contract would have
put him, Fuller, 70 Nev. at 452, quoting 1 Restatement of the Law, Contracts, 574, § 346,

Comment b, As further delineated by the Nevada Supreme Court:

If the breach consists in preventing the performance of the contract without fault of the
other party, who is willing and able to perform, the damage of the latier consists in two
distinet items, namely: First, what he has already expended toward performance (less
materials in hand); and second, the profits that he would realize by performing the whole
contract. Fuller, 70 Nev at 451 quoting Bradley, 42 Nev. at 420.

-10-
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Cashman suppﬁéd the materials at issue. The unﬁl_ﬁshed work .of which Mojave
complains is comprised of the installation of codes that enable certain specialized functions.
These codes do hot have value independent of the matetials supplied by Cashman, mean“mg
Cashman cannot sell these codes fo a third party, these codes ate for the materials supplied to
the Project. Th.e cost of installation is included in the cost of the materials, and is not
separated on the purchase ordet, so it does not have a separate value apart fiom the sale of the
materials. As such, Cashman is entitled to recover the full amount owed, as the item
remaining to be performed cannot be deducted as it does not have a separate value apart from
the materials supplied. - .

As Mojave does 110tl have a contract with Casliman, its counterclaims have no bearing
on the amount claimed by Cashman, BEven if the counterclaims somehow did affect
Cashman’s claim, that would not prevent the Court from issuing judgment on this claim in
fa\;or of Cashman in the full amount claimed and separately deciding whether Mojave is
entitled to any of the damages if seeks from Cat or some other party.

Finally, should the Court decide that the amount owed to Cashman requires additional
evidence before it can be dotermined, judgment should be entered in favor of Cashman on
Mojave and Western’s liability on the Payment Bond, as there exist no genuine issues of fact
concerning whether Cashman is entitled to recovery from these parties based upon its
Payment Bond claiim, Aun evidentiary hearing could then be held to determine the amount of

the recovery against the Payment Bond.

4, NRS Chapter 339 is Not Applicable io Cashman’s Claim Apainst this Payment
Bond, as it Applies Only to Public Works of Improvement.

It a desperate effort to aveid Summary Judgment, Mojave argues incotrectly that NRS
Chapter 339 should somehow be made applicable to the claim Cashman has made against the
Payment Bond at issue in this Motion. Mojave bases this argument on nothing more than
conjecture and conclusory statements, and as the Nevada Supreme Count stated in #ood v.

Safeway, that is not sufficient to avoid summary judgment.

-11-
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The evidence submitted by Cashman establishing that this Project was private at the
time of construction is undisputed. See Cashman’s Motion at Bxhibit “8.” A private
company, PQ Las Vegas LLC, owned and developed the Property at the time of construction.
Id. See also Exhibit “13,” at p. 7, Deposition Transcript of David Phillips, attached hereto.
QH Las Vegas, LLC, an affiliate of PQ Las Vegas LLC, contracted with Whiting Turner for
the construction of the Project, and the Project remained private until it was complete. See
Cashman’s Motion at Exhibit “4,” p. 16, Ins. 5-15. Mr. Phillips’ employer, Foi‘est City
Commoecrcial Construciié@ Co., Inc. was employed by the owner of the Project, QII Las
Vegas, LLC, to be the owners’ repreéentative on-site. See Exhibit “13,” at p. 6 Ins. 23-25.
Mojave confirmed the private ownership of the Project when it provided Project information
fo Cashman. See Exhibit “14”. Mojave’s attempt to make requireraents that are only
applicable to public works projects, applicable fo this private Project would be extremely
prejudicial to Cashman, as Cashman would not be on notice that it needed to comply with
NRS Chapter 339, as it only applies to public works and the record ownership, which was
confirmed by Mojave to Cashman, provides this was a private Project at the time of
construction,

NRS Chapter 339’s inapplicability to the Payment Bond at issue as is also established

by a review of its plain language. “When the language of a statute is plain and unambiguous,

{a court should give that language its ordinary meaning and not go beyond it.” Coast Hotels &

Casinos v, Nev. State Labor Comm'n, 117 Nev. 835, 840 (2001). The title of Chapter 339 is
“Contractors’ Bonds on Public Works.” NRS 339.025(1) states:

Before any contract ... exceeding $100,000 for any project for the
new construction, repair or reconstruction of any public building or
other public work or public improvement of any contracting body
is awarded to any coniractor, the contractor shall furnish to the
contracting body the following bonds which become binding upon
the award of the contract to the contractor. ..

(Emphasis added).
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NRS 339.015(2) defines “Contracting Body™ as “the State, county, city, town, school
district, or any public agency of the State or its political subdivisions which has authority fo
contract for the construction, alteration ot repair of any public building or other public work
ot public improvement.’; Therefore in order for the requirements of NRS Chapter 339 to
apply to a construction project, the project must be for the construction of a public butlding,
work or improvement and the contracting body must be the State, or ad county, éity, towi,
school district, 61‘ othér public agency. |

Here, the Project was owned by P Q Las Vegas, LLC-at the time of construction, not a
state agency, See Cashman’s Motion at Exhibit “8.” Whiting Turner did not contract with the
State, county, city, town, ‘sohooi district or any public agency of the State to construet the
Project. Whiting Turner contracted with QH Las Vegas, LLC, See Cashman’s Motion at
Exhibit “4,” p. 16, Ins. 5-15. Mojave’s reliance on the City of Las Vegas® involvement in the
Project or the fact that the Project eventually belonged to the City of Las Vegas to somehow
make the requirements of NRS Chapter 339 attach to this p1'i;vate Payment Bond is in error.
Mojave was required to gbtain this Paymeni Bond by Whiting Turner, not by a “contracting
body” as would be the case on a public work of improvement, See Supplement to Cashman’s
Motion, filed March 5, 2013: Exhibit “2,” to the Deposition Transcript of Brian Bugni
(WTURD001154). The Payment Bond makes no reference to NRS Chapter 339 and was not
issued solely for the protection of claimants supplying labor and materials to the contractor,
but was obtained for the benefit of “all persons supplying labor, material, rental equipment,
supplies, or services in the performance of the said Contract, as well ag fo the Obligee,”
Whiting Turner, Mojave is attempiing to create issues of fact where none exist. In light of
the evidence submitted by Cashman, it cannot be disputed that this was a privately owned
Project at the time of construction. Mojave relies only upon speculation and conjecture in its
attempt to make NRS Chapter 339 applicable to this Payment Bond, As the Project was

constructed on privately owned property and was not contracted for by a “contracting body”

13-
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as that term is déﬁned in NRS 339,015, NRS Cﬁapter 339 and its requirements do not apply
to Cashmain’s claim on the Payment Bond at issue. Therefore, all arguments made by Mojave
in reliance upon NRS Chapter 339 must be disregarded.

As NRS Chapter 339 and ifs requirements do not apply to Cashman’s claim on this
Payment Bond, the Court need look only to the terms of the Payment Bond to determine
whether Cashman hag a valid claim, As is set forth in Cashman’s Motion and above, the
Payment Bond does not require notice of any type prior to making a claim, rendering
Mojave's argument that Cashman did not give proper notice without merit. Cashman has
established that no genuine issues of fact material to Cashman’s claim on this Payment Bond

exist, and that judgment is watranted in favor of Cashman on this claim.

1V.
CONCLUSION _
Based on the foregoing, Cashman is entitled to judgment against Mojave and Western

o its Payment Bond claim in the amouat of $755,893.89.

DATED: April 5, 2013 PEZZILLO 1LLOYD

By: A
Jennifer R, A.Joyd, Esq.
Nevada Sfagé Bar No. 9617
Marisa L. Maskas, Esq,
Nevada State Bar No. 16928
6725 Via Austi Parkway, Suite 290
I.as Vegas, Nevada 89119
Attorneys for Plaintiff;
Cashman Equipment Company
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. CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
The undersigned, an employee of the law firm of PEZZILLO LLOYD, hereby

certifies that on the 5™ day of April, 2013, a true and correct copy of the foregoing document,

|| CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY’S REPLY IN SUPPORT OF ITS MOTION

FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT AGAINST WEST EDNA ASSOCIATES, LTD. dba
MOJAVE ELECTRIC and WESTERN SURETY COMPANY ON THE PAYMENT
BOND CLAIM, was served by placing said copy in an envelope, postage fully prepaid, in the
U.S. Mail at Las Vegas, Nevada, said envelope(s) addressed to;

Brian Boschee, Esq,

COTTON, DRIGGS, ET AL.

400 8. 4" St., 3 Fl,

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Attorneys for Whiting Turner Contracting, Mojave Electric LV, LLC, Western Surety
Company and Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland

Edwatd S, Coleman, Esq.

COLEMAN LAW ASSOCIATES

8275 8. Eastern Avenue, Suite 200

Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Attorneys for Janel Rennie aka Janel Carvalho and Linda Dugan

Keen L. Ellsworth, Esq.

ELLSWORTH, BENNION & ERICSSON, CHTD.
777 N. Rainbow Blvd. Ste. 270

LAS VEGAS, NV 89107

Attorneys for Element Iron and Design

(A

An employee o ILLO LLOYD
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DISTRTGET COURT -

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
% ok kR

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, a
Nevada corporation,

Piaintif¥f,

V8,

CAM CONSULTING, ENC., a Nevada

corporation;
individual;

JANEL RENNIE aka JANEL

CBRVALHO, an individual; WEST EDNA

ASSOCTIATES,
ELECIRIC, a

rD., dba MOJAVE
Nevada corporation;

WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, a surely;

FHE WHITING

TURNER CONTRACTING

COMPANY, a Maryland corporation;
PIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF

MARYLAND, a

)
)
)
)
)
)
}
)
ANGELO CARVALHQ, an )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

surety; DOES 1 through )

10, ineliusive; and ROE CORPORATIONS)
L through 10, inclusive, 3

Defendants.

AND ALI RELATED MATTERS,

R R N . T

DEPOSTYION OF DAVID PHILLIPS

Taken on Thursday, January 10, 2013

At

REPORTED BY:

At 3:00 p.m,
6725 Via Austi Parkway, Sulte 290
Las Vegas, Nevada

CHRISTY LYN DeJONKER, CGCR NO., 6281

Casluan Equipment Company, et al, vs, CAM Consuliing, Ine,, ef al,

CASE NO. A542583

Page 1
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Cashman Equipment Company, et al. vs, CAM Consulting, Ine., of al,
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11 Cashiman Equipiment Compary In this matier, Wearehera] 11 thal question.
12 for your depositlon foday. You can go ahead and sigie 12 Ay Linow,
13 your name for the vecord, 13 Q. So tell me abowt whors you ave ourrenily h
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25 LLC, which was {ho entity that owned thepropeviy asd § 25 Whlting Tuvner, And then Twas aut site ta make sure

Page 7 Page ©
1 develaped the properiy, 1 {hat the constructlon swas pursunit to coustruetton
2 Q. Okay, Auod then Is Hiers also a PO Leas Vegas? 2 doounenis,
3 A, Thevels a PQ Las Yegas, LLC, 3 Q. Did you have an oltfes on site?
4 Q. What {s that? 4 Ao Thed « tealler.
5 A, Thatwas the entity established for - theve 5 Q. And wera you there onndally basis or g i
& fs a Fand swap wlildat the development agreement, 6 woekly basls?
? GH Las Yegas fs (ha property In Symiphony Park, And 7 Ay Bvery day.
0 it's he dwo paveels, Q and H, And so, you know, QH fs 8 Q. Bo when yeare there ot the profect, ano you
9 Queen of Hearls, beeause that s the property. The 9 Just observiug Mg constrnetion aellyliies, or did yon
10 Queen of Heoels sat on Hhnt property, So fhnt s how 10 lnvo a pacticular role you took on at diffecent tines?
11 tley delovmbted the fwa LL s, 11 As Mo, Dwas there (o Just obiserve and imale
1z Q. Just coming wp with a nome? 12 sure that (he profeet was o ng smonthiy) 1€ was
13 A Coming wp with & nnne. 86 PO was tled do e 13 whiii sehedute, wiflin budget; if Qeere wos auy
14 davelapntent agreemeont with the City, And when we 14 quesiions tlad ovenrred that X could sosswer, or T woukl
15 closed weswapped Iand, 16 talke fo the englncers {o get answered, SoF was nime
16 Q. Okay, So then whal [s ForestCily 16 ol nit asslstaist toonako sure Hiad the projeet van
17 Eulerprises' role? Are they 1lke the parent 17 smoothly.
18 corporatlon? 18 Q. And then did you frofd weetings ot the projest
14 A That fs the parent corporation, 19 whlt the general contenctor?
29 Q. Forgll the dlferent Indlvldual - 20 Ay WeTind ong onee g wmondy, OAC weetlnps, what
2% A Endlties, 21 we ealled QAC, wlileh is the ownery avehilteet,
22 Q. Awnd s there a ForestCily Commerelal 22 canfrnelor mectfngs. Af that toie thnt wonld jrelude
23 Constructlon Batity? 23 CliystafTeepresentatives, A Jotof my corporafe from
24 Ao In the fivat quavter of 2012 we wevged our 24 Cleveland ywould cove downy the develeper frant LA wonld
25 two constyeeeifon divislons logethers Wo hnd a 25 eome over. Atid we would Just do an overview of the
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Page 10 : Page 12
1 prafect, how the sehedule was going, how e cosls wer's i Manfredi anf af Boslon, warked undey JMA, And his
2 golog, They woul® wallc {Tie project Just to see how 2 eonlvact, IMA's contered, ineluded al) subtiers of
3 everything was gofng 3 struciural engineers, mechanlenl, electrieal snghicers.
4 Q. Okay. Tieen did you participate I any 4 It was all imder thelr condiol,
5 weelings with the subcantractors? 5 Q. So did thoy uct as parl of their 1ole o be
8 A, Ne, 13 the ower's vep concarning cerlaln Hems on the
? Q. Did youkeep any records on site, concernbig 7 piojest?
8 proHimiwany notices or ether thkngs that the owner g A No.
g wipht recelve as patl of construction? b Q. What was their vole, thew, in, T guess,
10 A Tonly vecelved dlings fleat carporate would 10 dealing will: thoso subllers? Like IBA was one of ilelr
11 sontehosy send fe me. They el went [0 arr covpornie 1L subsfers?
12 offlee, which they kept, you Jenow, lien notiees and 12 A Right, - .
13 things. Dut they worait mafled direedly to the 13 Q. So whit wos thelt role [€{hey weren't neting
14 traller, 14 a5 ovener's rep for certulu approvals, or how did (hat
i5 Q. Beeauso tho record address was the address - i5 work?
16 A, Pablle Squave aed Queet, 16 A Xam notsuro what you ave asking,
17 Q. So who fn Cleveland would be sespousible for 17 Q. Like, for Instauce, I they asked for
18 {vacklug that Information? 18 submittals on certab ftatis (0 make surs hnt witat was
19 A. Tan not guite sure wh in our covporate 19 golug to be provided by 2 contractor or subcontmglor
20 offfee did thad, Xtwent do Tegal, T Ioliove, 20 \Was 1o coltinet, were they the one that would have the
21 .Q. How big Is ForesiClty Erterprises? 21 uliimate approval or would it go all the way up to, i
2z A, Werre amuitl-bilon-dollxy eorpovnlion 22 say, you as e owner's r2p for appraval? 1
23 with nbout 2800 amployees neross o cauntiy, 23 Ay How did that proeess waork?
24 Q. That is pretly blg. 24 Q. Yenh, how id that process work?
25 Ay Toased do be n fot lavgoe 25 A, Well, the process is (haf n e constrnetion
Page 11 Paga 13
L Q. Oh, yesh? 1 documents theve s speelficalions that clearly fudteate
2 (Bxhiblt 1 marked) 2 whal sulsnlitals are requived in the profect, The
3 DY M8, LLOYD: 3 subeaniractor wontd prepave those specl fleatfons) yau
4 Q. 8o have you seen this docwment? 4 know, product data, drawings, whatever was requlred
5 A, Tdautt reenll sechig titls one, 5 wlthhe the spee, Tiwould st go to Whithig Turnes
G Q. So it would have been served obviousky onthe 6 They ave required by oxr contraet o review (hose
7 Clevelond address for QH Las Vegas, and then your didn't i docuntents to minko sure thal thoy weet and fall within
§ necessmiiy gel coples of svarything, 8 thesange of tho contract documends, I they did, they
& A Mo, Y dlintt, S ieansuitted vectly to JMA,
10 Q. Okay. Bul do you think that there are 1o JMA would then distrtimie to whatever parly
11 records In Cleveland concenting the preliminary nelices 11 wasvequived, elther JBA or the steuctural englneer,
12 that ware recclved? 12 They wordd review thon far the speelfiention, fo meet
13 Ao Well ir8 went (o Suilte 1005, thal [s 13 atEthe specifications, Tf ey 93, they would st
14 TavestCity Construction Services or ForeslCliy 14 eem reviowved, Somelimes they stamped them vaviewed as
15 Costuugeretz! Construetion sulte munlbess, i5 tioted, just because theve nifght o someniner ervors,
16 Q. So they would likely kept records there 16 It woukd go baek to JdIA; IMA would veview them, Then
i) somewhere concernlug alt of theso profimbunry notices 17 IC they were approved and stamped by (rem, then )t
18 | orotheruollees that thay might have recelved? 14 wauld go back to Widthg Furters Then Whillng Turnor
18 A Yes, 18 would fu bt give coptes Dack (o the subeandrae boy,
20 Q. Lel'safk o Hitle bit about IMA'S role o 20 Q. And dovea tho Hac?
21 the profect, Con you tell se what IMA was hired 1o do. 21 A, Dawn the Hine. The oaly (hnel ever got
a2 A, TarestCity Commercin Develapment hived JMA | 22 iavolved on anything wauld he IF the submiltal was
23 n$ the exeendlve archifect, witdel under te excontlys 23 fotally out of range of {lie speclfications.
24 areldicet (hay wera to do all (he constenetlon 24 Q. Aud do you recall any instances like that on
25 docvatents, The destgn avehibteet, whleh s Helkis 25 this profect?
T T N N e T ey E IR 51T o4 TP I M L D e o L Y e D b D e ey T T S e
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A, Ne.

Q. 8o in the submitial process, then, IMA hnd
the fuat approval of the submittels that were for {he
cotract work?

A, Well, it's a combluation. I requive {hal {he
contractor approve theni beeanse lie bid the Job, and I
sy liolding hink vesponisible for, you kuaw T am
holding Widting Turner vespanstle to balld fe wihin
the spectfieattons, So from my noint of view, Whiting
Turner's appivoval fs Justas fmpoxinnt as the
englueer’s appraval, ey ave all equal i the realnt
of vesponslhitley,

Q. TMA, Wiiting Turaer?

A, JdBA, Eveyyone i - fran tie owner's ol
of vlew, they are nif keld -«

Q. Equally responsible?

Ae == cquntly responsible

Q. What veas your fnvolyement with the solection
of subcontractors on the project?

A, ¥What the proeess Is that we go thyongh Is
that we do sn REP, Whlthng Toiner dld nn RED do at
lens{ tTiree and mostly five subconlractors for ench
trade. We would reviow who fhey were lidding to in
case we ad jreoplo that we wanted to add; or if we fiad
experienees with confraciors we don't want to deal with

-t
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for {Tteft: nsl cost proposal,
Al that polnt Whitheg Twmer would slse have

- sainjor fnpt anid provido thelr sefection to ForestCity

for approval. Aud af that thie we would revlow the
flual pactages and make, you kuow, mud say fhat §s flhe
colitraelor,

Q. 'That Is a very owner-hivolved process.

Ay Fores(City Is a genernl condractor. We got

awny fvon K years ago Beeauss dovelopinent goes up and
-down, But we pre a very hands-on growp and we do

timderstand consiruction, Andwe have dewre iF
ourselves. So, you lnow, we prtde ouvselves an, you
kenowy, produslng quality projects on thne and on bindpet,
or that nve urtider hudget, X\'Illclt'll:ls Hrejectywas yler
bualgel,

Q. Ol really? Twasn't aware of tiat,

So yon wore Invelved In obvionsty wiilt the

selection of Mofave --

A Yos,

Q. ~~as asubeotleactor?

A Along with oliter ForestCley ealitles — o
petsoiiel,

Q. Qkay, And do yon go any futher dovail e

A, No.

Q. -=sublier?

Ao 00 S0 o Lo L RS
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anyntove, then thoy would b the profect, We would as
a team - and g would Auclude myself and onr
corfarate —~ we Trave an esthaating graup and we have
otker people fn Clevetand that would review fie seope
of work, malte swep that the scope was contplete, We
would evaluate fie cosi,

Az a pubille company we do not have o seleet
the jowvest Bldder, but we doselecl tho lowest
qualliied Didder ou (he project, Wevould normalty
nnerow (hat down da Qreee. We Iind -« I ynean, we had
five {0 51X on each leade betause of ke thulng, aud
everylaldy waaled fowork on the Clfy Hall praject, So
we nareow It down to thyee.

We would bring thene by and have an Infervies,
Wao require - FoyestCly vequlves intervlows, which
weans yoa hring your profect managers, vou bring your
foremen. You bring anyonefn upper fevel that would he
on tend st il And wewould kave resusmes, And we
truly - you linoy, 1% & e cffeirh, Sowadan
conipliete yeview.,

At (gt (e wo yanld go back aud veconvene.
We wounld say; obiay, we Mie, you liosy this pevees or
(hal person. There was atways quali Teations of the
iitfitat bl because sonconio would aulss {his or we
waild have qutestions, Tlhen we would helug them baelcdn

o € w3 2 D1 S L0 B =
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And when it comes Lo, T guoss, mangpement of
payinents, ace you -« Is the owater involved in imanaging
payiments to subcatiraclozs?

A Mo

Q. Sowonld youanly then e apuroving paynies
le Whiting Temer, or ow did Use wiiale payment process
warl?

A, The payment proeess was also pratly defailed,
T4 was detalled fn dovelopreni agreensent of how It
would be done, Qe o ntonth all thesubconliactors
would provida Whitlog Faesser witle thelr billlng
hifaratation. Yweuld vevlew all (he delall of Majave's
blitiatg et se. Weeauso It's billed o ¢ peresutage of
compledlon, Dwould say yes oi 1o, or s nven §s not
whathe s biillng fov o1 whatever] we would make
carrections,

Al that paint, when that was carvecfed, we
would sit down with the Clly slaff and watk the
prajeet. They wauld also revien (he eompletion
perceitiages, as well as the avclidee! at tite spme thne,
When {hint was - when everybody spresd to Ol preltage,
thert wo would -+ {{ woukd he slgned by the avehltest,
Ewould send {hat package [o Clovelnnd, where the
sxecuttve vieo presldent wwas reqalved fo Initlal off to
amlee sure; which e understood iad ¥ avent tivough 3t
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Page 18 Page 20
1 pretéy thoyoughly, 1 Wihdelt wo ended vp gotfing over 20 percent al tho end of
2 And flien tho nvaleo would al fhat peint b 2 the day,
3 put together — that bifling would e put together wiih 3 Q. Sodid vou leave il io Whlling Turner, then,
4 o fyoiee, for gur fees und areliftechural fess or miy 4 i etsforce it or enconrage subcontractors to meet
3 offter fees we would Have a conliined Involee of 5 corlahi gorls?
6 everyone's, That wouldd be subnnfited to the City. The 6 A, Duzlng that fivst inferviery process before,

-7 City Iad a flve-person signoil of that involee, 7 you know; we awarded conivaciors, we (ofd then thaf [t
g At dhat Qe B would he sent o (he trasice & was an Impoviand factar n scleet{an, as well as for Ei
g for the profeet, which Js I hetove Banl of Ameries. 9 seleetion purposes, They nerded fo vonte fo the {able

190 They woufd at thad thue wire leansier funds to Whititg | 10 wih some dlversily.

11 Turner for thelr biHag. They wowld wive teansfer 1 Q. 8o were they required to idenlify ike whicl

12 Towes{Clty, wifel I oo we would wire tvansfer fo our | 12 areas they would be, you know, meeting diversity will?

13 thiva-party consultants, | 13 A Early o, v, They basleally eante baelt and

14 . Andthat happened every month? 14 sald, We feel for flils conlrnet wo cnn got 8 percent or
i5 A, Exery mondh, 15 wo ean ged 10 peveend, you kmow, And we monkiored
i6 Q. Wow, Sohow Long would that process take for is {hem, And most of the conlraciors ntef tiel goals.

17 {te approval of a bilitng? 11 And e oues that Ald't actually we had Tenr

18 A, Wewere vequived B do that within {en days 18 condrihute,

19 n the developmend agreement, The Cliy had -~ asseen | 19 Q. THow do youniean?

20 pswo complefed oup process, the City had ton days to 20 A, 'There was onc contractor that poorly wlssed

21 de it Wo were followlng wnder the State stalide of I 21 Ids goal, Aud e had fhn == well, he volunieored o -

22 beliere 45 days, which we always et, 22 in e mbiortly publications tale out ads For his

23 Q. Wow, Soiguessjust fobackleackatiny 23 company, whieh was a henofit to the indaorlly magazlies

24 bit, haw oxacily did the whole developiment - beenuse 24 and to the ntinevtly groups, So we cemln-.ed trent fo do

25 I was privately owned property, it there was 25 things of that matvre,

Page 19 Page 21

1 obviousty a publle compone, I guess, in some way, 1 Q. Okny. Was thers « | guess spenking of if

b Can you describe to nie Iww thal sort of warked? 2 [hey didn't meet tielr goal, was there airy consequenca?

3 A, IEwas a pelvate public parkiership, The 3 A, No. We would only ask that they do

4 Tunding ¢came from Build Amerlean Honds, and we woro 4 sonething,

5 able fo construct aud dovelap It for the Cily, Aud we 5 Q. Okay,

3 negetiated forr Intd costs to do the frade of the furo 6 A. Xt was imonitered on a wontiily basts Juting

) paveels for the vest of N, 7 the pay apjilieation process,

] Q. Okay. So dldyauhave nrequtremcm for 8 Q. Beeause they ward required fo submit fike the

$  Whiling Tuener concemiing the Disndvanteged Business 9 cortificates of DR welth their puy aps? H
1a Entities patcetage thiat was to ha mel or {odry fo be 10 A, Yeal.
11 et on fhe prafect? 11 Q. 5o did you cheek that with Whiting Tarner on

i2 A, That was - daring our negaifations with the 12 amonthly basls?

i3 Cify, Hwns nt o dme when they were Iaytng off 13 A, No. They provided ForestCliy whil a vepoct,

14 peonle, 1€ svas a tough tlike to seli n new Clily Hall, 14 ¢ was brsed off costs of tio profest, costs of enely

i5 ‘he Clty find a ot of pressure o1 thees from the 15 stbeontractor, They provided ns a brenkdowsn and we

16 minority greups to say, If you aveé golng to do {his, 16 tever nudited,

17 piease get pavilelpation, The Clty does wof have n 17 Q. ThenT guess it conjunction with payinents,

14 dtverslty propram thai fhey can enfores in the clty. 18 did you requlte a ceriain waiver or releases fron subs

19 So they entue fo us and sald, Wo would ke 19 aatd supphiors for Whiling Turner fo get {hoso, or did

20 you fo tvy and get the prrtielpatton, And we agreed ns 20 you rely on Whitlng Turner to taake sura that they were

21 a gonlfo fey 1o gel 15 pereont. We Included that gont 23 alitabing the proper roleases?

22 {o Whittng Turne's conlraels. And fram there they 22 Ay We did ged nlt velenses,

23 managed how thaf was obialied, 23 Q. How did you menitor, I guess, what releases

24 Q. So itwas a ¢ty requlrement essentially? 24 you would need?

28 As Well, bt wits a veduesh  sfrong reguest 25 Ad They had 5 -- Whitlng Turner had a Drenledosis
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Page 22 Page 24
1 within Be pay applleation for the provlons month's i Q. Andwhatis, T puess, 1efl apen?
2 payments, We wauld got ancandilonnds, you ko, far 2 A Tho conteact with Whithig Turner is still
3 thal hreakdown after the payinent and {loy would provide 3 P,
4 ws condional walvers with the indtial payment, And 4 Q. Wiy s It apen?
5 Whithng Tumer had do do unconditlonals and 5 Ac Wawera sifll negottating some requests from
G condtitonnls do us for the profect tos, é thom specilleally, Wo still liave tho Mojave condract
¥l Q. So4id yon have puyone inyour offices 7 opeit beeauso {heve bs payments still within fhat -
8 tencking, say, prolininary fielhees with releases, o 8 thelr line items or seliednle of values for the
¢ howdid you . 5} goneratory whicht T field after - 1t was prelty much
10 A, Yes, that went (o gur corporafe, 10 praid outt, but i was tho campletion portion that's
i1 Q. 8o semeona in Clevelnitd was handiing that? 13 thare,
12 A Yos, Michelle did -- Michelte Laglua dil iz Q. 8o youare holding money for he generalor
13 ihal, She bugged e all the thite, When amu T getting 13 frons Whiting Toeer?
14wy veleases? o 14 A, Trom Mofave,
15 Q. 8o did yanrely an a combinotion of Whiting 15 Q. Trom Mojave, Do you reeall offhaud how nach
16 Tumerkeeplug track of which suppilers wors sappiyiig 16 you are holding? Is it the full cost of the generator
17 totheprofects under subeoniractors, or did you heve 17 line fem?
18 youe owat tmacking system? 18 A. No, Iwould bo surprlsed 1 3% £30,600,
15 A Wodkd not get conditionals oy wacanditionals 18 Tits smuewhere n there, I think,
29 o suppllers, I was from €he feat ther, 8o we 20 Q, Sothe project hos a permanent G of O?
21 would gef -~ lke, Mojave would proside us eondittonnls 2 A, Coyrect,
22 and uncoxndittonals fors- 22 Q. Do you recall when you got that?
23 Q. Ts pnyitenis? 23 A, On Februgry 14th,
24 A, Yeogit. 24 Q. And then v« X ntean, Ean swo yon generaily
25 Q. Then you werei'§ lracking downstream subz and 25 kaow thal we are here becayise Cashman didi't get paid
Page 23 Page 25
t suppliers to Mojave? i3 for the generator and {ie UPS equipment fhat it
2 A, No, ' 2 suppHed o the profect,
3 Q. Isfhere a reason why you weren'L tacking 3 A, Thave heen (old that.
4 downstremn? 4 Q. So when wo latk about the generalor and UPS
& A, Tecause thatis ot part of owr standad 5 cquipment, I's kind of a prekage deal. You know what
G process, 6 Tamreferring to?
7 Q. Did you roly on Whitlug Tumner to be tracklng 7 A, Yes,
8 downsheam¥ a Q, Sowhal s ihe slalus of the generator, UPS
9 A, Mo, nothe our contvact i's nof regaired, g cquipntent on tho project now?
10 Qo Were you conearmed abouf [fen elnhiis from 10 A, Well, 1t's lustatled, ¥ mn belng (old €imi
11 people who might be unpaid vider the subcontvacior's 11 diwould gpevale fn ease of an emergency, 1Tave nol
12 second, (hivd tier suppliers or subs? 12 whnessed flint, Tue to 1 1ack of some programning on
13 A, Concerned about it? I hoppens all the fhne, | 13 (he systent 1iself, it does 1ol givo my etlent, the
14 Q. Bul, Twean, tof conecerned snotgh to reguire 14 Clty, {he oppoviunity to go Tnto a Taptop ok shie or
15 thal, T guess, releases be provided? 15 offsteand mout{or fhe strius of the peaterator
16 A. HDase't heen n our past histoxy a ajor 16 systems, which bs ordtieal. Most hutlitings are fully
17 concern for us on subliers and supphoets, 17 automafed and have n bullding managerent systen, And
18 €, Okay, Canyou tell me what the slatus of the 19 fheysitup hean offtea when (hey need to cheelt fo
i9 praject Is now? 14 verlfy that the fuelis covreed, the Batteries ave
29 Av Well, on Februnvy 14th of this year t's 20 operafing, how Lhai spstem is operating nftor it stprds
21 golng fo be one year opened, We hind substantial 21 upfov RPAs and the techufeal (hings {hat need do be
22 compledlon on Februavy 14th of 2012 22 monblored an these systems b ease of a emergency, and
23 Q. Is the project totally closed out at this 23 {hit Is mat avallable,
24 poine? 24 . Andscas & result of that, were you taking
25 A. No. 25 ity actipn agaiust Whiting Tuener or Majave or =
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Page 26 Paga 28
1 A, Weo have been, you losow, pushing fo got 1 Q. What type of fiie, Hie, recordkegping
2 resobudion of that, 2 soflware do fhey use?
3 Q. Of that issue? 3 A, I don't huow,
4 Ay Ofthaf lssue dq Q. There wasn't arequlrement for a specifio
5 Q. 8o does ihat leave auy pending issues between 5 pragram? :
G you, your company, or ForestCity and the City of Las 6 A, {Shalces head.}
7 Vegas? 7 Q. So that withholding on these fs nok related
8 A, Tho City is nwvare of the sltuatton, Belng B to (e gonerator?
4 awave of i, tlhey enn mauoaly go cheele things, which q A. No. _
10 sy oo dofig, bue fhay ave not very pleased ghoufdl, | 10 Q. T speaking with Natwy from Whitlng Tuner,
11 Beeanso thers Is & fankt on the generator panel, 11 she seented (o Iudicate that 3t was related to the
12 Q. What do yon mean? - Whal does thal meanf 12 generator, Unlesa [ misundersiond - 1 guessLam
13 A, It's abig red light that Nashes. 13 {rying to understand, Do you seeall - yor azs stil
14 Q. Like something Is wrong? 14 hofding It or have you pald It ou?
15 A, Yeah, . 15 A, No,
16 {IExNihie 2 mmdeed ) 16 Q. Youare silil holding it?
11 BY M3, LLOYE: ‘ 17 A, Untila profect is contpletely closed out wlth
18 Q. Can you take g look at this docusitent? This 18 a coulraclely I do not velease. I release 5 pereon(,
i9 was produced fu conjunetlon whth a subpoena that I 19 That bs 5 percent, I believe, And then colwmy, T think
29 Issued to ForesiClly. Do you recognize this docwnent? 20 [t snys 8 poveonits I refensed under pereariiagn
21 Ao Yes, It's the one} provided, It's {he Jast 21 retafonge; it's 5 pereent, Unell n project is closed
22 execitted pay applieation fo Whithg Turnes, 22 ol Fores{Cliy's polioy is we tlo not vetease all the
23 Q. Obay. And then 1Tyou go (o page Bales stamp 23 retahisge. And [E's nof speeifienlly fo any cortain
24 5, can1 you tell me what - undee the cleclrical, that 24 itont.
25 st livs terw, &t [ooks fike thers s a withholding, 25 G Well, that partictlar itemn shows bath a
Page 27 Page 29
1 Awmlreading fiat correctly? 1 balenca to falsh aud a refaiegs amonnt. Thoss aro
2 A Fend, there was a refalnage st held, 2 twa separale - are those two separate - because most
3 Q. Illooks ltke -- is that 792 ar -- 3 of the items show basically no balance le finish,
4 A, Yol it's 4 beennse sy are al! JookMng fike fhey ave complete and
5 Q. Inthef range? 5 have been pald out, excepl for sontg show ratention, So
) A Yeab, 1 heliove, 6 ihat's why I was trying to understaid exaclly what (le
7 Q. Isthatstill belng withbeld? 7 status of the paymestt to Whitiing Turnar was on that
8 A. Yes, g parieular ftem, because It tooks ke eralaa
9 Q. Froni Whiting Tumer? 5 balsree to finish and thon a vetatnage swzoit,
io A, From Mojave, 10 A, Thebalanee € fnislivvas lsted of the
i1 Q. Through Whiting Tuarner, I ghess, So why s 11 contraet elnnge orders thal we were still negotiatlng
12 that befng witbheld? 12 Q. Do you reeatl whal those ware about?
13 Av Wowere closhig out with Mojave, Therswere | 23 A, No.
14 severnl change orders that they had ashed for that did | 14 Q. So did the evwner wiikhold eny fands From
15 not get approved hefore this was done. 14 Whitlug Tuwer and Molave related to the genestor
1s Q. 8o thal Hng Ttem §s not related fo the 16 beyond -- T think you idemliied 30,0007
17  genertor equipnent? 17 A, Tital's allwo dld recanse it was o speeitie
18 A, No, 14 Hue tlem, Maojnve's contraet would have-- or pay
19 Q. Do yon have a breakdown of what it Is rolaled 19 applieation weuld Iave fhis cover sheet, And el they
20 o somewhere else? 20 weve regiived o glve us sehedule slvalues for every
21 A Whithig Turner would, Whithg Turner hald 21 item of tieely seope of word, which entailed the
22 all the files for s preject,’ TAlE not keep - ey 22 electrlenl, audEo, viswal, X wean, (e wholo Ivealidown,
23 ave lo provide e on sk the entive file systent, which | 23 Téwas a specilic line item for (o genorator.
24 T anve nod pecelved heenuse we have't closed out yet, | 24 . 5o the geucenlor line lern was somawhera i
25 8o this is afl 1 had avaliable, 25 {he rango of 800,000, But it it wag, would you have
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Page 30 Page 32
1 withheld 800,000 or woild you withliold an amound you 1 reguivemient, We cannol single-source a produet for
2 determbned sepacatedy, or did you have a way of comlug 2 ForestCliy, Weare a public company, Any of those
3 1ep with what you were golig to wilhhold? 3 anufacturers would hiave fo meet (hie performatice
4 A. The generaior wis sivendy pald gui hofore 4 speeifientions that (ke engingors deslgn to, If
5 this was hrought fo our attentton, So X Just vefused 5 those - that seleefioh process, they ave all equal in
& to pay sny more on that Hoe ltem, & the engineer's oyes as well as (ke oywner's cyes, then
7 (., Okay. Igoess what's the sfalus of the 7 they enn -« thay nre responstile for ninling suve that
8 negolialions with Whitag Turner {o closs ovoryiblng B aystew is compleie,
2] ot? ] (Exhlbie 3 marvked)
10 A, Weare hoping to have it ali closed out 16 BY MS. LLOYD:
11 withitn tho next tyva weelis, 11 Q. Take s look at lils document. Have you seen
iz Q. Thew what is vour plan, ¥ guess, in reference 1z it before? ’
13 to e operation of the generator equiptment as far as, 13 As Yes,
14 yau kanow, I guess sort of how i is going lo work 14 Q. And when did you fiest see the Hen?
15 wiih the Cily? 15 Av T don'trecatl exsetly when Tsaw the len.
16 A, “Wo have asked Whiting Twnner foghve us a 16 Q. Was it shortly alter it was recorded?
17 projiosal o Rew thoy want fo handle i, They havoto | 17 A Atsotaeyolnd, LHw Lsald, I eantf glve an
i8 deatwith tholr canfractor, 18 oxtiet time,
19 Q, Hava they comne to yots with any proposal yet? 19 Q. Dld you «- It was forwarded to you from
20 A Noo Fhey aroin the - they ave just 20 Cleveland, your Cloveland offices? h
21 followlng this process, Flat is alf they ean glvsus 21 A, Yes
22 lie inforanation, 22 Q. And then what getfon ¢l you tske once yau
23 Q. Soisthat item just going 1o rentain open 23 were awars of the len?
24 unttl the [lgation is complete? 24 A. Yook acopy over fo Whiting Tarner and
25 A. Wl ihie lien hias been bonded nvownd. As 25 sald, Address thfs Issue
. Paga 31 Page 33
i oy ag the City, the Jen has been bonded, Duf 1 Q. And what did they say?
2 oneradtoralwise Tam not sure. We have Deon tryfng (o 2 A ThatJswhen it was bonded avound.
3 gef resolutlon of Lhis, so that I can go dovwn mul tallc 3 Q. Andso did you {ake any other action iu
4 fo the City te determine exnetly what thely posltion Is 4 relation o the Hen or the llen clalm?
A on: {his, & A, Nao
6 Q, Okay. Did you linve ny involveitrent in 6 Q. Did yon fiave any diseussiong with Whithng
7 choostug e generator system requireuenis? ? Tuener about what lappened ot why there was o lien?
i A, Noy [ om itof an elecirieal engineer, ¢ Ao T asked what was goittg on and (hoy satd ey
4 Q. Sowas thal s IMA rale as pan of thelr 9 were frying to contaed Yojave to Ind out,
10 destan sorviees? 10 Q. Didyou da any fnquity beyond (hat
11 A Yes, IMA, JBA. 11 aNervards?
12 Q. Did you have sy lnvalvement Inapproving the i2 A No.
13 systein that was proposed by Mojave to be used? 13 M8, LLOYD: 1don't think I have any other
14 A: Nuo, 14 questions,
15 0, Would that Just have been IMA and Whiting 15 MR, BOSCHER: I thlnk I hive & couple,
16 Turner? ' 1% BXAMINATION
17 A, It a comblmation of JMA, Whitheg ‘Furner and 19 BY MR. BOSCHER;
18 JBA, 14 Q. Looking el BRxhibit 3, Funderstand that you
19 Q. 8o would you Jimve seen any ol the submitials 1% don't recalf oxactly whal dote that yor savw that, Was
20 concersing any type of the cqnlpmend hat was being 20 that o Tirst tne (hat yout learned or ascetfaiined of
21 supplied o {he project? 21 the {ssie that hns eaused ws to sil here today?
22 A. Na, not on that speeifte fteny no, 1o 22 A Well, this was not speelfic (0 the fssues wo
23 specilications ave porformance specifientions. T .23 ave slithng hera today, Xveas a llen fram Coshuman for
24 veandres = i€ witl provide at Jeast thyeo dlffevent 24 equipmont, Thal didntf explabs why we are sitting liere
25 npnufacturess of equipmentd, three to five, widehi ds our | 25 today,
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_ Page 234 Paga 36
1 Q. Well, whnt s yaur undesstanding of why we 1 Q. Now, I had another questlon from my notes In
2 arehere todey? Z tatking to you. Do you recall -~ 1 holiova there was g
3 A, Tt's atl hieavsay, 3 pending log thal you reviewed from thie to ling; is
4 Q. Oy, . 4 that coirest?
] M8 LLOYD: Jepnsare okay for hearsay, 5 A, Byery day, ‘
8 THEWITNESS: When wo starled to commlssion 3 Q. Tdldn't want to hold yeur feet to the fire
T this building, we ave o thicd-party commissioner on 7 of the everyday Ching, bul T knew it was prefly nuch
8 theproject. When thoey started to cmite oul and test 8 overy day, Do you recall secing anything in the
9 equipment and do Whiigs, there was this fag that was ] petidlng lag about change orders with respeet ta the
10 puton the generator systen by vur thicd-parly 10 gonerators?
i1 consltant concorning, you know, PCL or whatever, Angd 11 A, Thersowas none,
1z of that poinl it sal there aud I kept asking, Is this 12 Q. Okay. Audageh, Just to clasdfy, vour
13 resolved? Is thig resolved? And they said, No, not 13 company and you peesonally had played no part iy the o
14 yetnotyel, Aad fually It come out that - how It 14 T guess we will call 3t the sereenhig pracess for the
15 wes fold that there was an isste wlth Cashiman and CAM, 15 disadvantaged busiuess enlities thatwere nsed on this
15 BY MR. BOSCHEE; 16 profeet, did you?
17 Q. Yeah. 17 A, Mo,
1a A And ihiey explainad fo e the sltuation, At 18 Q. Andwith respeel to -- with respeet to IMA's
19 fhink point they didn't have nit the delalted faets, 19 Involvernen, yau talied to Ms. Lloyd nbout lids 2
2Q They [nst -- you know, they reassured FovestCily, H 20 Iiédtle bit eautier. Is it falr fo sny that heir
21 wasatan owner's mectlig. We would bave a meetlug 21 printary job was to denl with the destgn and tee design [}
22 priov te -« before {he City epme In, So in ol meetlng 22 cheniges onice fhe pwreject pot going; is that fah?
23 fhiey explained of the sltnationn. And thaf they assured 23 A, Yes,
24 s thatweDad fnad veleases aud Hibugs of that 24 MR, BOSCHEE: | don't itk 1 have auything
25 nture, That it peaple sontewhnt to camfort and i was | 25 further.
Page 35 Page 37
1 honded ardund. And wo ddn't knosw how « we Lnaw we 1 MS.LLOYD: Thave o follow-ug,
2 eeded fo gel (ke program so {hwtwo corld complete our 2 FUR'THIR BXAMINATION
3 cammissloping anet move forveard whil: the Cley, 3 BY M8, LLOYD:
4 Q. Priorlo seelng this flew and getting this 4 Q, Whatis & pending log? i
) frow your sorporate ofilee, did you have sy sofual 5 A, DerestClly requfies st of our conlencions to
6 kuowledge that Cashimo Fquiptent Corgany was fivolved & feep tenck of any possible chiange or farescenble change
T dnwhatwe wlil enfl the project? Have you ever heard 7 andproject n cost that could hnpact the project. We
8 of (e before? 8 dontt Hice smeprises, If you Jmow you have q %L
g A, Thave een here for 24 wears, 1 hava henrd k] problen -~ iwe Bnow we hnve n problent owt there with
10 of Cashan, But no, gewerators sliow up, equljpmend 10 some stecl, wo would Indleate Gind on s pendfng log
11 shtews up. Wio supplies it whe Is tnstalfing 1, T ang it and we woull rojeet i cost, So gvery monthwe kpw
12 Just retybug on Whiting Tovaes to miako suve iUs done, 12 what our exposure was fo e profect it any ehianges, i
13 Q. Okay. And Inean, shilng hero right now, do . 13 Témight end up Befng 2ero.
14 you lave any aotual fmowledge of when or whether 14 The Cliy might camle and sny, Dave, I wanit yoo
15 Coshuwian Hquipmont Company: ackrally suypied the 15 torveds these floor ptans, whicl fhey did, We would
16 generators to {he project? ‘ 16 part that on there aud we wounld praject n cost involved
17 A Mo, Ldow't, 17 I that. So that at fle end of the day, evers motl we
it Q. A followlng up on that; de you hiave any ia finew what our tine cost exjiostve was otk a ionthly basts
19 speciffo recolfection oF whien the generalors wers 1% forfloanuco purposes,
2Q detivered 1o the projort? 20 Q. Would you see, Hkv, a pending cost I i
21 Ay Notspeelfieally, 1o, 21 Whiling Turner deteembned that, say, a sub missed
22 Q. T it frle 1o ay you Just kmow (hat they got 22 sometblag and didivt bid It propetty so ey were golng
23 there and [t gol pul Jn aned Lo construstion kept 23 to essentially ut fhe cost back onta Hie sub? Would
24 flowing? 24 they have notified you of something Mo that)
25 A, Conieet, 25 A Ko,
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Page 38 Page 40
1 Q. Oronly {l'it was goiig to D an i CHERTIFICATE OF DEPONBNT
2 ownerdiinpacted ohiango or potertinf cosl? 2 PAGE LINE CHANGE REASON
3 A U tracked - I Whltng Turney missed 3
4 something in the contract Jtseli, that liem would he f
5 P e« it would be {raoked to \Withg Turner, TF ‘;
G FovestCity asled for n clitnge, Tt wontd be fsied gs g
i YovestCliy, And If the City made a change, it would he n
8 Cliy. Boyoud that, nathleg else went on (hat log, q
9 Qv Soilwas only if; say, Whithe Turter wos 10
10 gofng to ask for more ansy -- 11 -
11 Ao Right, 12 .
i2 Q. -~ wlgled to 4 cerlaln Hem. 13
13 S0 1f they mads a detérmbiation thal 14 Saet e
) . . .
” Mojm‘: st somelhie o 1t e dinesand | 28 1, D Plillps, deponeat bescia, do heceby
NBVE 1Y e LB e Bas Tl 116 Crawiings ar certify and declars the within ond foregolng
15 they should Im\'a_included itend it wasn'l golng to ba 16 eanscrpion fo be my depasitiont in said uetian; ihat
16 a change to lhe ewier, you wonldn't be notlfed .. T hiave read, comecied oid do lereby affi sy sTaitatire
i7 A, No, 1wasn'l A7 o sald deposiddon wider penalty of perjury,
18 Q. ot dssue ke that, 18
18 Talking about the generaton, I guess, DAMID PHILLIPS, Deponent g
20 delivers, Do youreenl! seelng the geacralors be ;3
21 dellvered?
22 A T Justsaw them stitleg theve one day, gé
23 Q. Before they were in the box or however they 93
24 are hosed i the equipment room, or afler ey were 24
25 alveady In the couipment roain? 25
Page 30 Page 41
1 Ao After they were alvond the - it's 1l 1 CRRTIFCATE OF REPORTER
: y Irendy it the - 1i's 5 vwa ? STATROFNIVAGA )
2 onclosure pot
3 Q. Okay. Do you recall meating Shane Norman of 5;- COUT‘PE E{JFLCE%L!? 31 odol commlsshoned
: , Chidsly L. Dafonker, ¢ COnIEissinne
4 Cashmen Equipment Company? Notary Publ!o,’(:lalk(:ounty S(ole}ol‘Ncmdn da ferely
5 A, Hls name doesn™t sound fambllar, 5 ceditfe Thal I reponted dhe d'eposilfanot‘[)avfd
6 Q. Wtwould have been araund the (le of e 6 g e canmmenelug on Thussday, Jawsey 10,2012, 4
7 lten, sort of the dispute concerning the payment 7 a Thal n'o:'l log bctfn,ﬁ ge?uﬁcd,[ ue;“i}.}zlcsrs]\ms
M OF Al 30 {essily [CRETEECHN
8 Issues. Ho recalled, 1 puess visitlng tho stie and 8 E#ef;:ﬁ:' tmascﬁbcd ny sail? sho:l?smd no:cs inlo
9 meeting you, but f don't know I you had recalled, 5 gpel\?itthtignnd uéat the L&tfpct\\'rllttlll 1|rians':?'pt Is a'd
" mpiele, las and eceurate innserlylion ofpy %41
16 A. Lmetse many p cople, shorikand nates. T imlrev!ew|nfme’]lmnstrim’;\'as
11 Q. No, Iatnsove, Bspecially every duy, :ng réquvs]terﬁh b ety that areln
¢ . . {14 y 40t B e 0o nrelal ‘,'c,
12 A Flio ramo doosw't sound Rumitiary but I am ot eniplayes a7 indepoident contstor of connsel of any of
i3 saying X didw't meef b, Tam Just saying I don't 12 the Farlcles;a}c;f‘me[r:lifh‘ef,eln ait)ﬁa orlilnde. ndenl
y conttacior alflle €8 Bivolved 11 sald action; 1ior
1? recall meeting him, . 13 apacson finanelaly inlerested in the selion; nor do I
15 Q. But you don't recall having a conversntion " I;q'ﬁe Ty on}ne;frelatlopﬁhtp wilt_h any af;hﬁm{lltes or
: + Lo F o . "alys
16 concorning this houneed check mud the fasne with e o 1;,?ffn:y ?;‘;mb'f,‘ﬁ{ﬁ: ,'S}C{'n‘a;madﬁ; tobe
17 nonpayment of the ganesraior? isﬁ; "“"‘“‘1’%}’3{:; B it
) § v sel my Jand Inmy
18 A, Tdon't recall that, offiee dn the Comnty of Clark, State of Nevada, fhis ’
ty
i9 MS, LLOYD: Okay, Tid is ol Thave. 19 [thdayof Innuary, 2013,
20 (Thereupon, (e deposition i‘g
21 conchded at 4:0q pan.) 20
29 ” CIIISTY LYN IeJONED, CCH ND. 91
23 22
24
25 25
T n Tt ey T R R L X P T T o S e T L e e T T TSy T 7,,,;;,7_£k.”,."~_u?_j
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Nov 27 10 Odta  Mojave Buyout Pept 27085010 Cpe

JOB INFQRMATION SHEET
PROJECT INFORMATION : ' ,

G oF Law Ve Nedgr ot Hall-—~
4468 Wl Siraet .
Las Vetas Novida 816{

HEECTRICAL: CONTRAGTOR:

MOJAVE BLECTRIG

8785 W. Hpolends Avenus
Lus Yeyus, Novads 89418
PHONE:  (702) 7082070
BASG (702) fo0-8740

PRIVE CONTRACTOR

Whiting « Turnee
. &r20 Vs Austi Patlovay, Sulle 300
Las Vagas Novada 80119
- PHONE:  650-0700 i
FAs ai0-2880

CWNER '

OH Laa Vegas LLG ,
80 Publls Stliare, Sulle 1008

Qleveland Olo 44914

PHOWNE:

A

CASH1737

JA 00002094




PEZZILLO LLOYD
8725 g Aush Parkway, Suiie 290
Las Veges, Nevada 59119

Tel. 702 233-4205
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supp

Tennifer R. Lloyd, Esg.

Nevada State Bar No. 9617
Marisa L. Maskas, Esq,

Nevada State Bar No. 10928
PEZZILLO LI.OYD

6725 Via Austi Patkway, Suite 290
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

Tel: 702233-4225

|| Fax: 702 233-4252

illoyd@pezziflollovd.com
mmaskaspezzillollovd.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff,
Cashman Equipment Company

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, a
Nevada corporation,

Plainfiff,
V. .

CAM CONSULTING INC.,, a Nevada
corporation; ANGELO CARVALHO, an
individual; JANET RENNIE aka JANEL,
CARVALHO, an individual; WEST EDNA
ASSOCIATES, LTD., dba MOJAVE
BLECTRIC, a Nevada corporation;
WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, a
surety; THE WHITING TURNER
CONTRACTING COMPANY, a Maryland
corporation; FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT
COMPANY OF MARYLAND, a surety;
TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND SURETY
COMPANY OF AMERICA, a surety; QH
LAS VEGAS LLC, a foreign [imited
Liability company; PQ LAS VEGAS, LLC, a
foreign limited liability company; L W TIC
SUCCESSOR LLC, an unknown limited
liability company;, FC/LW VEGAS, a

Electronically Filed
04/05/2013 04:31:38 PM

R

CLERK OF THE COURT

Case No.: A642583
Dept. No.; 32

Consolidated with Case No.: A653029

SUPPLEMENT TO CASHMAN
EQUIPMENT COMPANY’S
SUPPLEMENT TO ITS
COUNTERMOTION FOR SUMMARY
JUDGMENT ON ITS PAYMENT BOND
AND MECHANIC’S LIEN CLAIMS

Date: April 16, 2013
Time: 9:00 a.m.
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PEZZILLO LLOYD
8725 Vi Austi Parkwary, Suite 290
Las Vegas, Kevada 89119

Tel. 702 23534225
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foreign limited liability company; DOES 1 -
10, inclusive; and ROE CORPORATIONS 1
- 10, inclusive;

Defendants,

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.

SUPPLEMENT TGO CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY’S SUPPLEMENT TO ITS

COUNTERMOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON ITS PAYMENT BOND AND
MECHANIC’S LIEN CLAIMS

TO: ALL PARTIES AND THEIR ATTORNEYS OF RECORD:

Plaintiff, CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, by and through ifs counsel of
record, PEZZILLO LLOYD, hereby supplements its SUPPLEMENT TO ITS
COUNTERMOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON ITS PAYMENT BOND AND

MECHANIC’S LIEN CLAIMS, filed on March 18, 2013, with ihe aftached Exhibit “1,” a

signed copy of Shane Norman’s Affidavit,

DATED: Apil 5,2013 PEZZILLO LLOYD

By: /fs/ Jennifer R. Llovd
Jennifer R, Lloyd, Hsq.
Nevada State Bar No, 9617
Marisa L. Maskas, Esq.
Nevada State Bar No. 10928
6725 Via Austi Parkway, Suite 290
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Attorneys for Plaintiff;
Cashman Equipment Company
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PEZZILLO LLOYD
Los Veges, Nevado 8911%

6725 Vig Austi Parkwery, Suite 250

Tel. 702 233-4225
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CILRTIFICATE OF MAILING
The vndersigned, an employee of the law firm of PEZZILLO LLOYD, hereby

certifies that on the i’" day of Apuil, 2013, a true and correct copy of the foregoing
document, SUPPLEMENT TO CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY’S
SUPPLEMENT TO ITS COUNTERMOTION FOR‘ SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON ITS
PAYMENT BOND AND MECHANIC’S LIEN CLAIMS, was setved by placing said copy in
an envelope, postage fully prepaid, in the U.S. Mail at Las Vegas, Nevada, said envelope(s)

addiessed to!

Brian Boschee, Esq.

COTTON, DRIGGS, ET AL.

400 8. 4™ St.,, 3" B,

Las Vegas, NV 85101

Aitorneys for Whiting Turner Contracting, Mojave Electric LV, LLC, Western Surety
Company and Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland

Edward S, Coleman, Esq,

COLEMAN LAW ASSOCIATES

8275 8. Eastern Avenue, Suite 200

Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Attorneys for Janel Rennie aka Janel Carvalhe and Linda Dugan

Keen L. Ellsworth, Esqg.
ELLSWORTH, BENNION & ERICSSON, CHTD,
777 N. Rainbow Blvd, Ste. 270

LAS VEGAS, NV 89107

Attorneys for Element Iron and Design

/_W Py
An emplW‘g%Lo LLOYD
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Pezafis toyd
6725 Via ATST] PICWY, SR 290

Lass Vegns, NEVADRA BRI 19
TEL. 70223534225

b I = B I .

oS < S % Y e A e I e o T O e S T S Y S o e T Y
e - o O it - . T = T~ T - . IR T R & S - TR YU S S

| AEFIDAVIT OF SHANE NORMAN IN SUPT'ORT OF SUPPLEMENT TO OPPOSITION TO
MOTION TOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT OF SURETY PAYMENT AND LICENSE BOND

CLAIVIS, AND CASHMAN’S COUNTER-MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

STATE OF NEVADA )

) 88,
COUNTY OF CLARK )

I, Shane Notman, having heen duly sworn and vnder the penalty of perfury do hereby state:

L T am personally knowledgeable about the facts contained herein and am competent to
testify.

2, Tem the Credit Manager at CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY (“Cashman™ and am
authorized to make-this Affidavit. _

3. Cashman submitted a revised Quote to Mojave on or about January 11, 2010 for the
matetialg at issue and according to ownet requirements with & total price of $855,467.00. A true and
cortect copy of the Revised Quoto is attached to this Supplement as Exhibit «2.»

4. The Quote from Cashman to Mojave details the materials to be supplied ns two Caterpillas
dlesel generators, Caterpillar switchgear and Mitsubishi battery backup. As patt of supplying fhd
materinls for this price, Cashman also agreed to ship the materials 1o tﬁe Project, perform statt upk
functions, commission ‘the equipment, perform load bank testing and provide training to users
Cashman was also to provide a patts and labor warranty from startup and two years of service and
maintenance, I,

3. Mojave issued two purchase orders on April 23, 2010 to purchase these materials for 4
total price of $757,611.00. The purchase orders were issued to “CAM Consulting ofo Cashman
Eeuiptment.” See Bxhibit “3,” true and correct copies of the Purchase Orders (CASH1752-54),

G, Cashman provided submittals for the materialy it was to supply to Mojave for the Project
on fanuary 25, 2010, March 9, 2010 and Apil 12, 2010,

7. Cashman teceived correspondence forwarded by Mojave requesting revisions to certaln)
items inoluded in the submittals and provided its response on May 24, 2010, See Rshibit “4,” a trug
and cotrect copy of the Letter flom Cashman fo Mojave (CASH1762),

-
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8. Cashman recoived notico of approval for certain materials fiom Mojave dircetly on Jung
16, 2010.  See Exhibit “5,” 4 true and correct copy of the Mojave Transmittal showlng Approved
Status (CASH1763).

9. Cashinan received the Materials Release Order fiom Mojave ditecting it fo bogin
procuting the matorials for delivery to the Project on Augost 11, 2010. A frue and cortect copy i
attached hereto s Exhibit “18” (CASHI766 — 67).

10. Cashman began procuring the materials shortly thereafier,

11, Cashman received notice of approval for certain matetials from Mojave directly on
September 21, 2010, A true and cotrect copy is attached heteto as Exhibit “20,” (CASH1168),

12, The Mitsubishi uninterrapted power supply was delivered to Mojave on November 18,
2010, See Exhibit “6,” a true and correct copy of the Signed Packing Slip (CASH1769).

13, The Caterpillar switchgear was delivered to Mojave on December 27, 2010, See Exhibi
“7.” a true and correct copy of the Signed Bill of Lading (CASH1770).

14, The three automatic transfer switches and fthe two batteries for the switchpear were

provided to Mofave on January 5, 2011, See Hxhibit “8,” a tive'and correct copy of the signed regeipl]

(CASH 1771),

15. Cashman coordinated delivery of the two Caterpillar diesel gonerators with Mojave
directly to the Project,

16, The two Caterpillar diesel genérators were delivered to the Project on January 19, 2011,

See Exhibit “19,” true and cotrect copios of the Delivery Receipts,

17, Cagbman personnel weoro last al the Project performing work requived for the materials on
May 23, 2011. B

18, Cashman sci*ved a Notice of Right to Lien on April 29, 2010 addressed to Mojave and
Forest City BEnterpriscs at Terminal Tower #1410, 50 Public 8, » Cleveland, OH 44113-2202., This
Notice ﬁas served by cestified mail and the record kept in the ordinaty course of business. See Bxhibid
“9,” a true and cotrect copy of the Preliminary Notice of Right to Lien dated 4/29/2010 (CASH 1734).

19. The assessor’s page record ownetship information at the time the firet Notice of Right tof

Lien was served Tisted the owner of the Project as PQ Lag Vegas, LLC, o/o Forest City Entrprs, Tnc,
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Tetiminal Tower #1410, 50 Public Square, Cleveland,' OH, 44113-2202, See Exhibit “10,” a truo and
cotiect copy of the ownet information obtai.ned (CASH 1735).

20. Cashman setved a Notice of Right fo Lien on December 7, 2010 addressed to Mojave)
Whiting "I‘arner, and OH Las Vegas, LLC at 50 Public Square, Ste 10035, Cleveland, OH, 44113, Thig
Notice was served by certified mail and the record kept in the ordinary consse of business. A truo and
correct copy is attached as Exhibit “11,” (CASH 1736).

21. Cashman received a job Information sheet from Mojave for this Project, which lsted the
owner of the Project as OH Las Vegas, LLC, 50 Public Squate, Suite 1005, Cleveland, CH, 44113
See Exhibit “12,” a true and corvect copy of the job information sheet (CASH1737),

22. Cashman served a Notice of Right to Lien on Aptil 20, 2011 addressed to Majave and PQ
Las Vegas, LLC at 50 Public Sq¢-TT #1410, Cleveland, OH, 44113-2202, A true and correct copy id
attached as Exhibit “13,” (CASHO013).

FURTHER YOUR AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGIIT,
YOS AL a,‘r // //%//
k

ﬁfﬁne 01man / Date
County of Olark
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4 2013,
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Electronically Filed
04/05/2013 10:45:25 AM

RPLY *
BRIAN W. BOSCHEE, ESQ. % § s
Nevada Bar No. 7612

E-mail; bboschee(@nevadafirm.com CLERK OF THE COURT
COTTON, DRIGGS, WALCH,

HOLLEY, WOLOSON & THOMPSON

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone:  702/791-0308

Facsimile: 702/791-1912

Attorneys for Defendants West Edna, Ltd., dba Mojave Electric, Western Surety Company, The
Whiting Turner Contracting Company and Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland,
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, Counterclaimant and Crossclaimant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, a

Nevada corporation,
Case No.: A642583

Plaintiff, Dept. No.: 32
v. (Consolidated with Case No. A653029)

CAM CONSULTING, INC,, a Nevada
corporation; ANGELO CARVALHO, an
individual; JANEL RENNIE aka JANEL
CARVALHO, an individual; WEST EDNA
ASSOCIATES, LTD. dba MOJAVE
ELECTRIC, a Nevada corporation; WESTERN
SURETY COMPANY, a surety; THE WHITING
TURNER CONTRACTING COMPANY, a
Maryland corporation; FIDELITY AND
DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, a
surety; TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND
SURETY COMPANY OF AMERICA, a surety;
DOES 1-10, inclusive; and ROE
CORPORATIONS 1-10 inclusive;

Defendants.

AND RELATED MATTERS,

"QH LAS VEGAS, LLC, PO LAS VEGAS, LLC, LWTIC SUCCESSOR LLC, AND
FC/LW VEGAS’ REPLY TO PLAINTIFE’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO DISMISS,

OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Defendants QH Las Vegas, LLC, PQ Las Vegas, LLC, LWTIC Successor LLC, and
FC/LW Vegas (collectively “Moving Defendants”), by and through its undersigned counsel of

record, hereby reply to the opposition to their motion to dismiss Plaintiff Cashman Equipment

15775-72/1043212.doc
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Company’s (“Plaintiff”) Fifieenth Cause of Action for unjust enrichment against Moving
Defendants, articulated in the Fourth Amended Complaint. This Reply is based upon the Points
and Authorities set forth below, the papers and pleadings on file herein, and any argument of
counsel the Court entertains at the hearing of this Motion.

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I. INTRODUCTION

The fundamental flaw in Plaintiff’s claim for unjust enrichment is that in order for there
to be unjust enrichment under the laws of this state, the Plaintiff, in this case Cashman
Equipment, had to have conferred some benefit upon a Defendant, in this case the moving
Defendants, which the Moving Defendants have retained and enjoyed. In this case, even though
Mojave tendered the entire amount to CAM for the materials and labor that were supposed to be
provided to the Project by Cashman, there is no dispute that Cashman did not supply all of the
labor and materials required. In Cashman’s own Statement of Relevant Facts in the Opposition,

Cashman acknowledges that the “materials supplied by Cashman to the Project, the generator

systems, are working propetly. except for the FLC” See Opposition, P. 5, 94-5 {emphasis
added). Later in the Opposition, Cashman supports its argument by alleging that, “Defendants
retained the materials, as they are incorporated into the Project, and majority of the materials

supplied by Cashman, including the generators, are operational. See Qpposition, P. 7, 116-18.

The evidence in trhi.s case, primarily in the form of the testimony of' owners’
representative David Phillips, clearly shows that the reason that the Project has not been wrapped
up, and the owners have not released the nominal amount of retention they still have, is due
primarily to the fact that Cashman has refused to provide and install the PL.C Codes for the
generators. As a result of this, the Project is not complete, and this vital work remains unfinished
by Cashman. The Court previously ordered Cashman to supply and install the PLC materials,
which would have wrapped up the Project and in consideration for which Mojave was forced to
post yet another bond, but instead c:f completing the work this Court ordered it to complete,
Cashman instead chose to appeal that rlulir_ag and now the issue is pending before the Nevada

Supreme Coutt.

-2
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Yet, despite knowing that the reason that the full retention has not been paid and the
Project has not been wrapped up is due to its own refusal to complete the work that is the subject
of its lien and for which Mojave tcndered full payment to CAM, the Plaintiff comes before this
Court on an equitable claim seeking some type of damages from the owner for unjust
enrichment. The current and prior owners of this Project do not owe Cashman anything, The
only portion of Cashman’s work that was not tendered related to the work that Cashman has
repeatedly admitted that it did not perform, despite being ordered to by this Court. The Moving
Defendants have retained no benefit for which they did not pay, and Cashman has no evidence
showing otherwise. Thus, the claim for unjust enrichment must be dismissed with prejudice.

II. STATEMENT OF FACT RELEVANT TO THIS ISSUE

At this point, the Court can likely recite the facts of this case as well as any of the parties.

Whiting was the general contractor on the City Hall Project, and the city of Las Vegas let them

know that minority participation in the Project was an absolute necessity. Sce Deposition of

David Phillips, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated by this reference. P, 19, 11. §-25;

P. 20, 1. 1-10. Whiting then entered into an agreement with Mojave to provide certain labor and

materials. Consistent with the requirement set forth by the city of Las Vegas, Mojave enterced
into a subcontract with CAM, a qualifying disadvantaged business owner, to supply labor and
materials to the Project. Per the testimony of both the representatives of Cashman, Cashman was
given CAM’s information prior to Mojave entering into an agreement with CAM, and Cashman
determined that it had no reservations about providing materials and some labor to CAM so that

CAM could fulfill its obligations to Mojave. See Deposition of Keith Lozean, attached hereto as

Exhibit “B” and incorporated by reference. P, 30, 1. 15-26; P, 31, 1l. 1-25; P. 32, 11. 1-20. See

also Deposition of Shane Norman, attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated by

reference. P. 24, 11. 20-25, P. 25, 11. 1-2. .

As the Court is also well aware of at this point, despite the fact that Cashman had net
supplied all of the labor and materials it had invoiced for (the $755,893.93 that has been
repeatedly referenced in this case), Mojave tendered that full amount to CAM for ultimate
payment to Cashman. It was at that point that Cashman, instead of simply signing the check

-3-
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“are not the owners of the Project; the city of Las Vegas now is. Thus, even taking Plaintiff’s

over and then cutting CAM a check for its portion or taking a contemporaneously-dated check
from CAM, decided to accept a post-dated check from CAM and wait a few days for payment.
As the Court knows, that post-dated check was returned for insufficient funds and Cashman was
never able to procure payment from CAM, hence this lawsuit, the lien recorded against the
Property and the most recent claim for unjust enrichment against the owner.

There is no dispute between the parties that Cashman has no contractual relationship with

the current or prior owners of the Project. There is also no dispute that the Moving Defendants

allegations as true, the Moving Defendants have retained no benefit as they no longer own the
Property.

Further, there is no factual dispute that Cashman did not complete its work on the Project.
The PLC codes have never been supplied or installed, and that is the primary reason that the
Project is still open and the Moving Defendants have not paid out the remainder of the retention.
Thus, even if this Court were to determine that an unjust enrichment claim cow/d lie against the
prior owners.of the Property, none of whom are currently retaining any benefit for any of the
work Plaintiff allegedly provided, the “benefit” that Plaintiff alleges that the Moving Defendants
retained without paying for is work that the Plaintiff has repeatedly acknowledged was nof
provided for the Project.

Therefore, as a matter of law or fact, the claim for unjust enrichment must be dismissed
with prejudice, as discovery has closed and there is no evidence of any benefit retained by the
Moving Defendants that was not paid for.

HLLEGAL ARGUMENT

A. THERE ARE NO GENUINE ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT PRECLUDING
DISMISS OF THE UNJUST ENRICHMENT CLAIM WITH PREJUDICE

The discovery that Plaintiff has obtained demonstrated that the prior owners have
withheld payment for labor and materials that Cashman did not provide, namely the PLC codes.
There is no material factual dispute that Cashman has not completed the work on the generators,

as evidenced by the admissions of Cashman’s key personnel. See Exhibit “B,”, P. 37,11, 12-17,

-4 -
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Exhibit “C.” P, 36, 11. 8-13, and the Order of this Court directing Cashman to supply and install

the PLC Codes. The money being withheld, though nothing was actually withheld from
Cashman as Mojave tendered the full amount for work and materials even though the work was
not complete, is being withheld because there is still work left to be completed on the Project,
and specifically the generators. Thus, the argument that the Moving Defendants are withholding
money for a benefit conferred by the Plaintiff is refuted comﬁietely by the evidence in this case,
evidence that is not going to change given that discovery is now over. |
For purposes of summary judgment defense, now is the time for the Plaintiff to come
forward with its evidence that it has conforred a benefit upon the Moving Defendants that has not
been paid for. Instead, what the evidence, and the pleadings in this case, clearly demonstrate is
that whatever money has been held back by the Moving Defendants has been withheld due to the
benefit Cashman did not confer on the Project, namely supply and installation of the codes.
Thus, Plaintiff has no evidence to support this claim and it shouid be dismissed with prejudice.

B. ADDITIONALLY, PLAINTIFF HAS SOUGHT ITS PROPER REMEDIES TO
ATTEMPT TO RECOVER ANY MONEY OWED TO I'T

Typically, when a subcontractor or material supplier has not been paid for work
performed, that company records a mechanic’s len and sues to enforce that lien. While Moving
Defendants submit that Plaintiffs lien claim has no merit, that claim has been asserted against
the'Projeét and, if determined to be valid by the Court, pfovides an avenue for recovery for the
Plaintiff,

Additiéna]ly, Plaintiff has sued Mojave for claims arising out of sdmc conspiracy with
CAM to abscond with Plaintiff’s money. While these claims have absolutely no merit, and will
likely be dismissed with prejudice at some point in the case, Plaintiff has asscrted claims against
Mojave as well as the other Defendants.

Further, Plaintiff has brought claims against at least 3 different surcty bonds in order to
try to secure payment for its claims. Again, these claims are dependent upon a Court finding that
Cashman is actually owed money by any of the Defendants other than CAM, but they do providé
a basis for recovery in the event the Court makes such a determination. Plus, the Plaintiff has

-5
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claims, and a judgment, against the person and entity that actually wronged Cashman, namely
Cavalho and CAM. Those are the Defendants in this case that actually took the money
belonging to Cashman, and the Plaintiff has actually reduced those claims into a judgment.

Finally, for an unjust enrichment claim to lic against a specific defendant, the burden is
on the Plaintiff to show that the party actually enjoyed the benefit allegedly provided. In this
case, as noted extensively, there was no benefit conferred that was not paid for because Cashman
névcr actually finished the work, thus the reason the Moving Defendants withheld a nominal sum
of money and have not closed the Projec;t. Further, the Moving Defendants are not enjoying any
benefit because they do not own the Property any longer. They paid for the work actually
performed, and subsequently transferred the Project and Property to the city of Las Vegas. There
is no benefit being enjoyed by the Moving Defendants, and certainly not a benefit that was not
paid for.

Simply stated, there is no evidence in this case demonstrating that the Moving
Defendants have retained any benefit conferred by Cashman for which the Moving Defendants
have not tendered consideration. To thé extent some nominal amount of money has been held
back, that money has been held back due to the fact that Cashman has not completed the work on
the generators. Thus, this claim must be dismissed, and it must be dismissed ét this stage with
prejudice.

CONCLUSION

. The Plaintiff has sued every party under the sun in an effort to attempt o collect the
$755,893.89 from somebody. There is no dispute in this case as to which partics stole these
funds from the Plaintiff, and there is also no real dispute that the Plaintiff had ample
opportunities to prevent the thefl of these funds by CAM and Cavalho. However, in addition to
obtaining a judgment against the real villains in this dispute, Cashman has now chosen to drag
parties into this lawsuit that have nothing to do with this suit, no knowledge that Cashman ever
even supplied equipment to the Project, and that have retained no benefit from anything
Cashman supplied that they did not pay for. Cashman had an opportunity to conduct discovery
as to potential liability of the Moving Defendants under the flawed theory of unjust enrichment,
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and now that discovery is closed, no evidence exists support the claim and thus it must be
dismissed, along with the Moving Defendants, from this case with prejudice.
Datedthis 2 day of April, 2013,

COTTON, DRIGGS, WALCH,
HOLLEY, WOLOSON & THOMPSON

BRIAN W. BOSCHEE, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 7612

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Defendanis West Edna, Lid., dba
Mojave Electric, Western Surety Company, The
Whiting Turner Contracting Company and
Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland,
Travelers Casualiy and Surety Company of
America, Counterclaimant and Crossclaimant
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

1 HEREBY CERTIFY that, on the i day of April, 2013 and pursuant to NRCP 5(b), 1
deposited for mailing in the U.S. Mail a true and correct copy of the foregoing QH LAS
VEGAS, L1.C, PQ LAS VEGAS, LLC LWTIC SUCCESSOR, LLC and FC/LW VEGAS’
REPLY TO PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO DISMISS, OR IN THE
ALTERNATIVE, MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT, postage prepaid and addressed
to:

Jennifer R. Lloyd, Esq.

Marisa L. Maskas, Esq.
PEZZILLO LLOYD

6725 Via Austi Parkway, Suite 290
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Attorneys for Plaintiff

Edward Coleman, Esq.

COLEMAN LAW ASSOCIATES

8275 8. Eastern, Suite 200

Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Attorneys Jor Defendant Janel Rennie aka Janel Carvalho

Keen L. Ellsworth, Esq.
ELLSWORTH & BENNION, CHTD.
777 N. Rainbow Blvd., Suite 270

Las Vegas, Nevada 89107

Attorneys for Element Iron and Design

Cuctls
An employee of Cotton, Driggs, Walch,
Holley, Woloson & Thompson
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David Phillips - 1/10/2013
Cashman Equipment Company, et al. vs. CAM Consulting, Inc., et al.

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
% ok o, K K
CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, a
Nevada corporation,

Plaintiff,

)
)
)
)
)
vs. ) CASE NO. A642583
. )
CAM CONSULTING, INC., a Nevada )
corporation; ANGELO CARVALHO, an )
individual; JANEL RENNIE aka JANEL )
CARVAILHO, an individual; WEST EDNA )
ASSOCIATES, LTD., dba MOJAVE ]
ELECTRIC, a Newvada corporation; )
WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, a surety; )
THE WHITING TURNER CONTRACTING )
COMPANY, a Maryland corporation; )
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF )
MARYLAND, a surety; DOES 1 through )
10, inclusive; and ROE CORPORATIONS)
1 through 10, inclusive, )
)
)
)
)
)
)

Defendants.

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.

DEPOSITION OF DAVID PHILLIPS
Taken on Thursday, January 10, 2013
At 3:00 p.m.
At 6725 Via Austl Parkway, Suite 280
Las Vegas, Nevada

REPORTED BY: CHRISTY LYN DeJONKER, CCR NO. 691
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Cashman Equipment Company, et al. vs. CAM Consulting, Inc., et al.
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APFEARANCES:

For the Plaintiff:
JENNIFER R. LLOYD, ESQ.
Pezzillo Lloyd
6725 via Austi Parkway
Suite 2890
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

For the Defendants:

BRIAN W. BOSCHEE, ESQ.
Cotton, Driggs, Walch,
Holley, Woloson & Thompson
400 South Fourth Street
Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 85101
I NDEX
WITNESS: DAVID PHILLIPS
Examination Further Examination
By Ms. Lloyd: 3 37
By Mr. Boschee: 33 :
EXHIBITS
Exhibit WNo. Description Page
1 Preliminary Notice of Right to Lien 11
2 Application and Certification for Payment 26
Notice of Lien 32
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David Phillips -~ 1/10/2013
Cashman Equipment Company, et al. vs. CAM Consulting, Inc., ¢f al.

Page 3
1 {Prior to the commencement of the deposition, all of
2 the parties present agreed to waive statements by the
3 court reperter, pursuant to Rule 30(b) (4) cf NRCP.)
4 Thereupen --—
5 DAVID PHILLIPS,
6 was called as a witness, and having been first duly i
7 sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
8 EXAMINATION
9 BY MS. LLOYD:
1C Q. Hi, I am Jennifer Llecyd. I am attorney for

11 Cashman Equipment Company in this matter. We are here
12 for your depcsition today. You can gc ahead and state

13 your name for the record.

14 A. Tt's David Ross Phillips, P-B-I~L-L~I-P-S.
15 Q. You have done thils beforxe. -

16 A. Yes, I have.

17 QL Have you had your deposition taken before?
18 A, Yes, I have.

19 Q. How many times? A number of times?

20 A, Probably a dozen maybe.

21 0. When was the most recent?

22 A. It's probably been 16, 17 years.

23 Q. Okay. So let's briefly go cver the rules.

24 It's guestion and answer. We need verbal responses to

25 all of the guestions., The court reporter is going to

AT T ey

Depo International, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 admin(@depointernational.com

JA 00002113




David Phillips - 1/10/2013
Cashman Equipment Company, et al. vs. CAM Consulting, Inc., et al.
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Page 4
take down everything that we say, so we need to not
speak at the same time. You can take a break at any
time you need, just ask. FExcept for when a question is
pending, I would ask that you answer the gquestion prior
to taking the break.

If any of my questions are unclear or you
don't understand what I am asking, just ask me o
rephrase it and I will be happy to do that. Your
testimony is under oath today. It's the same oath you
take in a court of law.

Is there any reason why you cannot gilve your
complete and truthful testimony here today?

A. No.

Q. What did vou do to prepare folr your
deposition today?

A. I met with Shimali (phonetic) on Tuesday.

Q. Not geoing inte the substance of those
communications, did you do anything else to prepare for
your deposition today?

A No.

Q. What is the highest level of education you
have obtained?

A I have a degree in architecture from Texas
Ag&M University.

Q. And when did you graduate there?

Ty S e T oy A AT TREL AT
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David Phillips - 1/10/2013
Cashman Equipment Company, et al. vs. CAM Consulfing, Inc., et al.

et

Page 5
1 A. 1974. %
2 Q. And do you hold any professional licenses?
3 A I am a member of the Construction
4 Specifications Institute.
5 Q. And how long have you been a member there?
%) A. I belisve since '88.
7 Q. And have you been convicted of any crimes g
8 within the last ten years?
9 A. No.
10 Q. T am required to ask that. I hate to ask
11 that question.
12 A. I know.
13 Q. S50 tell me about where you are currently
14 employed.
15 A, I am currently emploved with ForestCity
16. Construction Services, LLC, which is a business unit of
17 ForestCity Enterprises, Inc. bésed in Cleveland, Ohio.
18 Q. And what's your position with ForestCity
19 Construction Services?
20 A. Vice president.
21 Q. Of a particular divisien or just vice i
22 president?
23 a, Vice president.
24 Q. Okay. What do your jeb duties entail?
25 A. I manage our development in construction
o = = T o
Depo International, LL.C
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JA 00002115




David Phillips - 1/10/2613
Cashman Equipment Compaay, et al. vs, CAM Consulting, Inc., et al.

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
18
20
21
22
23
24
25

projects in the west.
Q. The whole western region?

A. West of the Mississippi.

0. Are you based here in Las Vegas?
A, Yes, I am.
Q. And how long have you been in that position

with ForestCity?

A. Fifteen years.

o. And prior to that, where were you employed?

A. I was employed with Domingo Camaro
Architects.

Q. What was your position with --

A. I was the director of construction services.

Q. And have you been based here in Las Vegas for

15 years with ForestCity?

A, Yes.

C. Okay. So this litigation concerns the
new Las Vegas City Hall, as I am sure you are aware. I
am goling to use the word "project."™ If I use the word

"wroject,™ I am going to be referring to that
particular project. 5o can you describe to me
ForestCity Construction Services' role on that project.
A. We were employed by -— we were employed as
the owner's representative on-site by QH Las Vegas,

LLC, which was the entity that owned the property and

Page ©
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Page 7 f
1 developed the property.
2 Q. Okay. And then is there also a PQ Las Vegas? §
3 A, There is a PQ Las Vegas, LLC. f
4 Q. What is that?
5 A. That was the entity established for -- there
6 is a land swap within the development agreement. :
7 O Las Vegas is the property in Symphony Park. And %
8 it's the two parcels, Q and H. And so, you know, QH is g
9 Queen of Hearts, because that is the property. The i
10 Queen of Hearts sat on that property. So that is how
il they determined the two LLCs.
12 Q. Just coming up with a name?
13 A, Coming up with a name. So PQ was tied to the :
14 development agreement with the City. And when we ;
15 closed we swapped land.
16 Q. Okay. So then what is ForestCity
17 Enterprises' role? Are they like the parent
18 corporation?
15 A. That is the parent corporatiocn. i
20 Q. For all the different individual -- §
21 A. Entities.
22 . And is there a ForestCity Commercial
23 Construction Entity?
24 A. In the first guarter of 2012 we merged our
25 two construction divisions together. We had a
= =
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1 commercial construction division as well as a
2 residential construction. And in the reorganization of E
3 the company, as everybody is doing, we merged. And now
4 we are just Construction Services to deal with
%  everything.
6 Q. So at the time was it ForestCity Commercial
7 Construction that was the owner's rep on this project?
8 A. It was ForestCity Commercial Construction CO,
9 Inc.
10 Q. Were there any other owner affiliated
11 companies that were invelved in the projects, or did we
12 cover them?
13 A. The project was developed under ForestCity
14 Commercial Development California.
15 Q. Can you think of any others?
16 A. That is all the entities I believe that was
17 involved. |
18 Q. So what was your role on the project?
19 a. I was designated by the City as well as our
20 company as the owner's rep. I assisted in the
21 development of the construction documents with the
22 architects. I was involved in the RP for the
23 construction manager at risk. I was involved in the
24 final selections of contractors, subcontractors, with
25 Whiting Turner. And then I was on site to make sure
e Ts e LR S S s =
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that the construction was pursuant to construction
documents.

0. Did you have an office on site?

A. I had a trailer.

0. And were you there on a daily basis or a
weekly basis? ‘

A. Every day.

0. So when you are there at the project, are you
just observing the construction activities, or did you
have a particular role you took on at different times?

A No. I was there to just observe and make
sure that the project was moving smoothly; it was
within schedule, within budget; if there was any
questions that occurred that I could answer, or I would
take to the engineers to get answered. So I was more
of an assistant to make sure that the project ran
smoothly.

0. And then did you hold meetings at the project
with the general contractor?

A We had one once a month, OAC meetings, what
we called OAC, which is the owner, architect,
contractor meetings. At that time that would include
City staff representatives. A lot of my corporate from
Cieveland would come down; the developer from LA would

come over. And we would just do an overview of the
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Page
project, how the schedule was going, how the costs were
going. They would walk the project just to see how
everything was going.

0. Okay. Then did you participate in any
meetings with the subcontractors?

A, HNo.

O. pid you keep any records on site, concerning
preliminary notices or other things that the owner
might receive as part of construction?

A, I only received things that corporate would
somehow send to me, They all went to our corporate
office, which they kept, you know, lien notices and
things. But they weren't mailed directly to the
trailer.

Q. Recause the record address was the address --

A. Public Square and Queen.

0. So who in Cleveland would be responsible for
tracking that information?

A. I am not quite sure who in our coxporate
office did that. It went to legal, I believe.

Q. How big is ForestCity Enterprises?

A, We are a multi-billion~dollar corporation
with about 2800 employees across the country.

Q. That 1s pretty big.

A, It used to be a lot larger.
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1 Q. Oh, yeah?
2 (Exhibit 1 marked.)
3 BY MS. LLOYD:
4 0. So have vyou seen this document?
5 A. I don't recall seeing this one. %
6 Q. So it would have been served obviously on the %
7 Cleveland address for QH Las Vegas, and then you didn't ;
8 necessarily get copies of everything.
9 A. No, I didn't.

10 Q. Okay. But do you think that there are

‘11 records in Cleveland concerning the preliminary notices
12 that were received? i
13 A. well, if it went to Suite 1005, that is

14 ForestCity Construction Services or ForestCity

15 Commercial Construction suite numbers.
16 O. So they would likely kept records there :
17 - somewhere concerning all of these preliminary notices

18 or other notices that they might have received?
19 A. Yes.
20 Q. Let's talk a little bit about JMA's role on

21  the project. Can vou tell me what JMA was hired to do.

22 A, ForestCity Commercial Development hired JMA
23 as the executive architect, which under the executive
24 architect they were to do all the construction

25 documents. The design architect, which is Helkis
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Manfredi out of Boston, worked under JMA. And his
contract, JMA's centract, included all subtiers of
structural engineers, mechanical, electrical engineers.
It was all under their control.

Q. So did they act as part of their role to be

the owner's rep concerning certain items on the

project?
A. No.
Q. What was their role, then, in, I guess,

dealing with those subtiers? Like JBA was one of their
subtiers?

A. Right.

Q. So what was their role if they weren't acting
as owner's rep for certain approvals, or how did that
work?

A. I am not sure what you are asking.

0. Like, for instance, if they asked for
submittals on certain items to make sure that what was
going to be provided by a contractor or subcontractor
was to contract, were they the one that would have the
ultimate approval or would it go all the way up to,

say, you as the owner's rep for approval?

A. How did that process work?
Q. Yeah, how did that process work?
A, Well, the process is that in the construction

vt
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documents there is specifications that clearly indicate
what submittals are required in the project. The
subcontractor would prepare those specifications; you
know, product data, drawings, whatever was required
within the spec. It would first go to Whiting Turner.
They are required by our contract to review those
documents to make sure that they meet and fall within
the range of the contract documents. If they did, they
transmitted directly to JMA.

JMA would then distribute to whatever party
was required, either JBA or the structural engineer.
They would review them for the specification, to meet
all the specifications. If they did, they would stamp
them reviewed. Sometimes they stamped them reviewed as
noted, just because there might be some minor errors.
It would go back to JMA; JMA would review them. Then
if they were approved and stamped by them, then it
would go back to Whiting Turner. Then Whiting Turner
would in turn give copies back to the subcontractor.

0. And down the line?

A. Down the line. The only time I ever got
involved on anything would be if the submittal was
totally out of range of the specifications.

0. And do you recall any instances like that on

this project?
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A, No.

c. So in the submittal prbcess, then, JMA had
the final approval of the submittals that were for the
contract work?

A. Well, it's a combinatien. I require that the
contractor approve them because he bid the job, and I
am helding him responsible fer, you know —-—- T am
holding Whiting Turner responsible to build it within
the specifications. So from my point of view, Whiting
Turner's approval is just as important as the
engineer's approval. They are all equal in the realm
of responsibility.

Q. JMA, Whiting Turner?

A JBA. Everyone is —- from the owner's point
of view, they are all held --

0. Equally responsible?

A. -— egually responsible.

Q. What was vour invelvement with the selection
of subcontractors on the project?

A, What the process is that we go through is
that we do an RFP. Whiting Turner did an RFP to at
least three and mostly five subcontractors for each
trade. We would review who they were bidding to in
case we had peocple that we wanted teo add; or if we had

experiences with contractoxs we don't want to deal with
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anymore, then they would bid the project. We would as
a team —-- and that would include myself and our
corporate -~ we have an estimating group and we have
other people in Cleveland that would review the scope
of work, make sure that the scope was complete. We
would evaluate the cost.

As a public company we do not have to select
the lowest bidder, but we do select the lowest
qualified bidder on the project. We would normally
narrow that down toc three. We had -— T mean, we had
five to six on each trade because of the timing, and
everybody wanted tec work on the City Hall project. So
we narrow it down to three,

We would bring them in and have an interview.
We require -- ForestCity requires interviews, which
means you bring your project managers, you bring your
fbremen. . You bring anyone in upper level that would be
on that site in. And we would have resumes. And we
truly ~- you know, it's a team effort. So we do a
complete review.

At that time, we would go back and reconvene.
We would say, okay, we like, you know, this person or
that persoen. There was always qualifications of the
initial bid, because somecne would miss this or we

would have questions, Then we would bring them back in
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Award of
Attorneys’ Fees
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Cashman’s Reply
in support of
Countermotion for
Summary
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in Support of
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Attorneys’ Fees
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Cashman’s Reply
to its Motion for
Summary
Judgment on the
Payment Bond
Claim

04/05/2013

JA0002066-94
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to its Motion to
Stay or Suspend
Order Granting in
Part
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Preliminary
Injunction to
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Response to
Mojave’s
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Response to
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63

Certificate of 01/17/2013
Service for Fourth
Amended

Complaint

JA0001204-05

Complaint 06/03/2011

JA00001- 9

11

Complaint (Filed 12/09/2011

in A653029)

JA000104-11

28

Counterclaimants’ 07/18/2012
Motion for
Mandatory
Injunction to
Procure Codes on
OST or in the
Alternative
Application for

Writ of Possession

JA000332-58

104

Decision and Order 08/04/2014

32

JA00O0/777-81
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Defendants’ 06/28/2012
Answer to Third
Amended
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08/30/2012
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41

Defendants’
Motion to Expunge
or Reduce
Mechanic’s Lien

09/17/2012

JA000620-700

69

Defendants’
Opposition to
Cashman’s Motion
for Summary
Judgment on the
Payment Bond
Claim

03/15/2013

7-8

JA0001665-
1782

46

Defendants’
Opposition to
Cashman’s Motion
to Stay or Suspend
Order Granting in
Part
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Preliminary
Injunction to
Procure Codes or
Alternatively
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Motion for
Summary
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05/02/2012
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71

Defendants’
Supplement to
Motion to Expunge
Lien and
Opposition to
Motion for
Summary
Judgment as to
Lien and Bond
Claims

04/02/2012

8-9

JA0001894-
2065

89

Defendants’ Trial
Brief

01/16/2014

11

JA0002506-33

Errata to Amended
Answer to Second
Amended
Complaint,
Counterclaim and
Crossclaim

11/10/2011

JA00098-99

110

Errata to Notice of
Entry of Order
Denying
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Request for Costs
Pursuant to NRS
18.020

09/02/2014
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Codes
Complaint
Memorandum

92 Joint Trial Exhibit 01/21/2014 11 JA0002580-82
Index

92 .J01 Joint Trial Exhibits 01/21/2014 11- JA0002583-
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to
92.J65

Costs and
Disbursements

94 Motion for Relief 03/20/2014 29 JA0007099-
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10/31/2012
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Motion to
Consolidate
(re: Case
A653029)

01/11/2012

JA000112-18

93

Non-Jury Trial
Transcripts (for
January 21, 2014
through January
24, 2014)

01/31/2014

21-
29

JA0006553-
7098

40

Notice of Appeal

09/13/2012

JA00610-19

102

Notice of Appeal

05/30/2014

32

JA0007751-72

111

Notice of Appeal

09/02/2014

32

JA0007813-29

105

Notice of Entry of
Decision and Order

08/13/2014

32

JA0007782-88

76

Notice of Entry of
Defendants’
Motion for
Summary
Judgment of Surety
Payment and
License Bond
Claims and
Cashman’s
Countermotion for

05/06/2013
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Findings of Fact
and Conclusions of
Law
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35

Notice of Entry of
Findings of Fact
and Conclusions of
Law Based upon
Counterclaimants
Motion to Procure
Codes

08/13/2012

JA000417-22

107

Notice of Entry of
Judgment

08/21/2014

32

JA0007792-96

77

Notice of Entry of
Order Denying
Cashman’s Motion
for Summary
Judgment on
Defendants’
Payment Bond
Claim

05/06/2013

10

JA0002396-
2401

109

Notice of Entry of
Order Denying
Cashman’s
Request for Costs
Pursuant to NRS
18.020

09/02/2014

32

JA0007799-
7804
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Notice of Entry of
Order Denying
Defendants’

05/25/2012

JA000300-04
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Mojave’s Motion
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Reduce
Mechanic’s Lien

05/06/2013

10

JA0002402-07

79

Notice of Entry of
Order Denying QH
Las Vegas, LLC,
PQ Las Vegas,
LLC, LWTIC
Successor, LLC,
and FC/LW Vegas
Motion to Dismiss,
or in the
alternative, Motion
for Summary
Judgment

05/06/2013

10

JA0002408-13

87

Notice of Entry of
Order Granting
Cashman’s Motion
for Award of
Attorneys’ Fees
and Costs Pursuant
to NRS 108.2275

09/24/2013

10-
11

JA0002498-
2502

25

Notice of Entry of
Order Granting
Cashman’s Motion
to Amend
Complaint

05/25/2012

JA000295-99
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Order Granting
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Order Granting in
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Preliminary
Injunction to

Procure Codes

JA0001079-83

60

Notice of Entry of 01/09/2013
Order Granting
Motion to Amend

Complaint

JA0001149-53

16

Notice of Entry of 02/02/2012
Order Granting
Motion to
Consolidate (Filed

in A653029)

JA000129-34

114

Notice of Entry of 05/11/2015
Stipulation and
Order for
Dismissal of
Defendants
Fidelity and
Deposit Company
of Maryland and
Travelers Casualty
and Surety
Company of
America with
Prejudice

32

JA0007837-42

S7

Notice of Posting
Bond

11/07/2012
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Cost Bond
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Notice of Posting
Security Bond

08/09/2012

JA000407-13

82

Opposition to
Cashman’s Motion
for Award of
Attorneys’ Fees
and Costs Pursuant
to NRS 108.2275

06/20/2013

10

JA0002462-74

39

Opposition to
Cashman’s Motion
for
Reconsideration of
Order Granting in
Part Counter-
claimants’ Motion
for Preliminary
Injunction to
Procure Codes or
Alternatively
Motion for
Clarification and
Request for OST

09/07/2012

2-3

JA000499-609

96

Opposition to
Motion for Relief
Pursuant to NRCP
60(b) and Motion
for Attorneys’ Fees
and Costs Pursuant
to NRS Ch. 108

04/15/2014

30-
31

JA0007360-
7693

58

Opposition to
Motion to Amend
Complaint

11/19/2012
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32
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86

Order Granting
Cashman’s Motion
for Award of
Attorneys’ Fees
and Costs Pursuant
to NRS 108.2275

09/20/2013

10

JA0002496-97

o1

Order Granting
Cashman’s Motion
to Stay or Suspend
Order Granting in
Part Motion for
Preliminary
Injunction to
Procure Codes

11/02/2012

JA0001077-78

75

Order
Rescheduling
Pretrial/Calendar
Call

04/17/2013

10

JA0002388-89

18

Order Setting Civil
Non-Jury Trial,
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02/21/2012

JA000145-46

32

Order Setting Civil
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

84

Order Setting Civil 09/06/2013
Non-Jury Trial,
Pre-Trial/Calendar

Call

10

JA0002488-90

88

Order Setting Civil 10/1/2013
Non-Jury Trial,
Pre-Trial/Calendar
Call

11

JA0002503-05

90

Plaintiff’s Trial 01/16/2014

Brief

11

JA0002534-59

66

QH Las Vegas, 02/07/2013
LLC, PQ Las
Vegas, LLC,
LWTIC Successor,
LLC, and FC/LW
Vegas Motion to
Dismiss, or in the
alternative, Motion
for Summary

Judgment

5-6

JA0001241-
1355

74

QH Las Vegas, 04/05/2013
LLC, PQ Las
Vegas, LLC,
LWTIC Successor,
LLC, and FC/LW
Vegas Reply to
their Motion to
Dismiss, or in the
alternative, Motion
for Summary

Judgment

10

JA0002102-
2387

81

QH Las Vegas, PQ 06/11/2013
Las Vegas, LWITC
Successor and

FC/LW Vegas’

10

JA0002441-61
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Answer to Fourth
Amended
Complaint

59

Reply in Support
of Motion to
Amend Complaint

12/17/2012

JA0001127-48

31

Reply to
Cashman’s
Opposition to
Motion for
Injunctive Relief or
Writ of Possession

07/31/2012

JA000398-404

97

Reply to
Cashman’s
Opposition to
Motion for Relief
Pursuant to NRCP
60(b) and Motion
for Attorneys’ Fees
and Costs Pursuant
to NRS Ch. 108

04/23/2014

31

JA0007694-
7707

56

Reply to
Cashman’s
Opposition to
Motion to Expunge
or Reduce
Mechanic’s Lien

11/02/2012

JA0001102-11

15

Scheduling Order

01/31/2012

JA000126-28

Second Amended
Complaint

09/30/2011

JA00034-50

113

Stipulation and
Order for

05/08/2015

32

JA0007834-36
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Dismissal of
Defendants
Fidelity and
Deposit Company
of Maryland and
Travelers Casualty
and Surety
Company of
America with
Prejudice

73 Supplement to 04/05/2013
Cashman’s
Supplement to its
Countermotion for
Summary
Judgment on its
Payment Bond and
Mechanic’s Lien

JA0002095-
2101

Claims

24 Third A_mended 05/24/2012 JA000276-94
Complaint

36 Transcript of 08/22/2012 JA000423-38

Proceedings for
August 3, 2012

62 Transcript of 01/11/2013
Proceedings for
November 9, 2012

JA0001173-
1203
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